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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of Q P Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
| am pleased to present to you the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021").

The world was still under the shadow of the coronavirus
disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) in FY2021. Despite the extensive
vaccination programmes in different countries and regions,
the virus continued to spread and mutate, which led to
the prolonged pandemic. Since November 2021, Omicron,
a fast-spreading COVID-19 variant, has caused another
wave of global health crises as the numbers of COVID-19
cases soared again, hindering the recovery of economic
activities and business operations worldwide. The prolonged
pandemic has catalysed the establishment and maintenance
of habits and lifestyle related to disease prevention. In
particular, the e-commerce boom continued to prevail
and maintained its dominance in the trading markets; the
growth of popularity of indoor entertainment, originally as a
substitution of outdoor activities especially during the peaks
of pandemic, also continued to last. On the other hand, the
effective public health policies and implementation of disease
control measures in the People’s Republic of China (including
Hong Kong) (the “PRC”) resulted in a rather stable pandemic
situation in FY2021, providing favourable conditions for PRC
manufacturers to capture the growth of demand for different
commodities.
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MAJOR BUSINESS MOVES AND
ACHIEVEMENTS

We are pleased to see the growth of demand for our tabletop
game products stretching into FY2021. On one hand, the
changes in lifestyle due to social distancing concerns
continued to fuel the retail demand for indoor products and
hence the increased orders from our customers who are toy
and game companies. On the other hand, the disruption of
factory operations of local vendors in Europe caused by the
pandemic boosted the demand for alternative manufacturing
services in other regions. Before the outbreak of pandemic,
the Group had already been highly focused on the long-term
development of our tabletop game business, which included
consolidating our back-end infrastructure to maximise
our production quality and capabilities for tabletop game
products, as well as active business development efforts
through our sales representative in Europe. The concerted
efforts of our sales, product engineering and research and
development teams have laid the groundwork for the growth
in our original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) business in
FY2021 as we were able to seize new business opportunities
from both existing and new customers, which led us to
counteract the negative effect of inflated shipping costs
and extended order fulfillment schedule due to the lasting
disruption of international freight throughout FY2021.

Development of web sales business remained our key
business focus in FY2021. This year, we successfully
launched our sixth major online sales platform,
www.maketotebags.com, which offers bag customisation
solutions for both individual customers and resellers,
expanding the spectrum of our web sales business.
Moreover, in the fourth quarter of FY2021, we proudly
launched Q P Market Network (“QPMN”) to tap into a
business-to-business-to-customer (B2B2C) e-commerce
model. QPMN is a platform-as-a-service (PaaS) powering
smart collaborations between e-shops, designers and us to
provide next-generation print-on-demand (POD) services.
With QPMN'’s plugins, e-shop owners can easily add product
customisation functions to their websites while enjoying
dropshipping services and bulk discounts from us. The
first plugin of QPMN which is customisable puzzle, the
hero product of our web sales platform, was launched in
December 2021. To facilitate the development of our new
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web sales initiatives, we have devoted extra resources to
expand our marketing team and IT team to support web
infrastructure development, product development, branding
and promotion, injecting new blood with energy, creativity,
market insights and expertise into our teams.

Our ambition to establish a comprehensive supply chain
in Vietnam remains unchanged. The sublease of land in an
industrial park in Ha Nam Province, Vietnam as announced
on 29 June 2021 marked a new milestone for the pursuit of
our long-term strategies to consolidate our overall production
capacity for future business expansion, enhance our risk
management capability and provide more geographical
manufacturing options for our OEM customers. The land will
be used to establish our first self-owned production plant
outside the PRC with end-to-end production capabilities,
serving as the hub of our supply chain in Vietnam.
Construction of the plant will commence in the second
quarter of 2022 and is expected to complete in the third
quarter of 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

In FY2021, we achieved growth in overall revenue of
approximately 12.7% to approximately HK$1,389.8 million,
driven by the increase in both OEM sales and web sales.
Our OEM sales increased from approximately HK$1,074.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020”) to
approximately HK$1,191.0 million for FY2021, representing
an increase of approximately 10.8%, which was mainly
attributable to the growth of tabletop game demand, our
efforts in new business development and our continuous
improvement in production capabilities and service
excellence that gained the trust of existing and new OEM
customers. Revenue generated from our web sales in
FY2021 also reached a record high of approximately
HK$198.7 million, representing an increase of approximately
25.8% from approximately HK$158.0 million for FY2020,
which was mainly attributable to the increased demand for
our customised products and our expanded customer base.
Its proportion in our total revenue rose from approximately
12.8% in FY2020 to approximately 14.3% in FY2021, which
demonstrated the determined and sustained execution of our
key business strategy to develop our web sales business as
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the long-term growth driver. Our overall net profit for FY2021
dropped by approximately 8.0% to approximately HK$119.0
million from approximately HK$129.3 million for FY2020.
The net profit margin decreased from approximately 10.5%
in FY2020 to approximately 8.6% in FY2021. Meanwhile,
our gross profit also decreased by approximately HK$6.8
million or 1.5% to approximately HK$430.1 million in FY2021,
while the gross profit margin decreased to approximately
30.9% in FY2021 from approximately 35.4% in FY2020.
We believe that such decreases were mainly attributable to
the appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”) against Hong Kong
dollar (“HKD”), the increased transportation costs and
the decrease in subsidies from the PRC Government and
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”)
Government in FY2021 which outweighed the effect of the
growth in overall revenue, increased proportion of our web
sales business in overall revenue, as well as the decreased
costs resulting from our cost reduction and efficiency
improvement measures.

The Board has proposed to declare a final dividend of
HK11.0 cents per share amounting to approximately HK$58.5
million for FY2021, which is expected to be paid on or
around Friday, 24 June 2022. In making the decision, the
Board has prudently considered the Group’s current and
future cash flows, the uncertainties in the economy, the
outlook for further growth and profitability and views of key
stakeholders, including regulators and shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”). The final dividend is subject to
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting (‘“AGM”).
If approved, this will represent total dividends for FY2021 of
HK13.0 cents per share.

OUTLOOK & PROSPECTS

While different countries and regions are actively taking
different approaches to tackle the pandemic, it is almost
a given that COVID-19’s impact is not likely to come to an
end in the near future. Despite the continuing uncertainties
brought by the pandemic and potential geopolitical volatility,
we remain cautiously optimistic about the Group’s prospect
in the coming year. We will continue to stay highly focused
on the expansion of our web sales business to realise
sustainable growth in this business area. In particular, we
will actively enrich the product range of QPMN through
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development of more plugins, as well as implement
marketing strategies to broaden the market exposure and
awareness of QPMN in the e-commerce field. With effective
promotion and market penetration, we expect QPMN to
take our web sales business to another level in the future by
leveraging the customer base of global e-shops and vastly
expanding our market reach and business. Operation-wise,
we have formulated our long-term strategic blueprint for
establishing a comprehensive smart operation network
which seamlessly connects orders from OEM and web sales
customers with our back-end production sites via smart
cloud-based systems. To this end, in the coming year we will
continue our pursuit of smart manufacturing in our Dongguan
plant, which includes advancing the maturity level of the
existing smart production workshops and also extending
smart operations to more production lines and departments.
To facilitate our technical development and application as
well as to explore investment opportunities, we have set up
a new company to identify potential tech projects of local
new entrepreneurs that are related to our business areas.
Based on our network with the innovative digital community,
we will actively seek collaboration with tech project owners
to accelerate the development and application of their ideas
with our financial and advisory support, with the ultimate goal
of bringing positive impact to our business and operations.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere appreciation to all of our employees
who embraced the challenges and contributed to the Group
in a dedicated and professional manner all along. | also
thank our Shareholders, business partners and professional
parties for their support throughout the year.

CHENG Wan Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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FINANCIAL | B1 7558 &
HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-A=t+—HLEE

2021 2020

—B-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Revenue W = 1,389,759 1,232,631

Gross profit E A 430,108 436,866

Profit for the year F N A 119,042 129,348

Listing expenses EmRAX - 1,166

Adjusted net profit KRS B 4 Al 119,042 130,514
Earnings per shares (HK cents) ERAERCEMW)

— Basic and diluted — BEARREE 22.38 24.57

Adjusted Profit Attributable to
Revenue Equity Holders of the Company
Wz RABRA D AR R REML R
HK$'000 1,389,759 HK$'000
TR 108,601 1,232,631 FET 130,514*
1,162,979’
1,079,630 119,042
91,861*
78,889
71,544*
2017 2018 2019 ' 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—“T—tF —T-\F “E-NF -T-TF -—E-—F —“T—+4 -—T)\F —T-NEF -—T-TF —FT——
* Eliminated the effect of non-recurring listing related expenses of HK$20.6 m\lhon
HK$7.6 million and HK$1.2 million for FY2018, FY2019 and FY2020, respectively
£ B JEFE  —E-NFUBREFER-_Z_ZFURFEN
7L TEEBETLRI2ESE -z
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MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Corporate Profile

The Group is a long-established paper product
manufacturing and printing services provider. Headquartered
in Hong Kong, we operate two key production plants at
Dongguan and Heshan in Guangdong Province of the PRC,
with the capability to offer value-adding and customised
product engineering services and printing solutions to
our customers for a wide spectrum of products. We have
over 30 years of operating history, and have established
stable business relationships with our major customers in
The United States of America (the “USA”) and countries in
Europe.

Our principal product categories are tabletop games,
greeting cards, educational items and premium packaging.
Our products are sold to () OEM customers who generally
order mass quantities for direct sales and distribution
through their own sales network; and (ii) individual and
corporate customers who generally order smaller quantities
through online sales channels. Our major OEM customers
include an international greeting cards publisher, and
multinational children educational products and toys brands.

Business Overview

Throughout the reporting period, the COVID-19 pandemic
continued to have extensive impact on the global economy.
Despite signs of recovery of the global economy and
resumption of retail activities thanks to the effective disease
control measures and growing vaccination rates, the
emergence of new variants and the subsequent infection
outbreaks dashed hopes of the pandemic subsiding
completely. Meanwhile, the lasting global supply chain strain
that surfaced in the first quarter of 2021 hindered the flow of
goods around the world and resulted in a significant surge in
shipping costs. In such a challenging and volatile business
environment, the Group remained alert and responsive to the
changes and uncertainties and dedicated to the optimisation
of its operation and services in order to support steady
business expansion. We implemented a wide range of
enhancement initiatives in different areas of our operations,
ranging from production standardisation, automation,
work flow integration and quality improvement to logistics
management, energy consumption and waste control. Such
efforts made it possible for us to remain resilient to the
external headwinds and partly offset the negative impact of
uncontrollable factors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

In FY2021, the Group’s revenue increased by approximately
12.7% from approximately HK$1,232.6 million for FY2020
to approximately HK$1,389.8 million for FY2021. We have
seen strong growth in demand for tabletop game products
since the outbreak of COVID-19, and this momentum
continued throughout the reporting period. Our sustained
business development efforts to increase our market
presence and awareness as well as the constraints on
production capacities of manufacturers in Europe due to
COVID-19 outbreaks enabled us to capture more tabletop
game orders derived from the rising consumer demand
for tabletop games. We also made tremendous efforts to
achieve certain breakthroughs in production technique and
engineering and elevate our production standards in terms
of product sophistication, material application, craftsmanship
and cost reduction, so as to meet or even go beyond the
stringent requirements of our OEM customers, which allowed
us to gain their long-term trust and partnership. Although
in the first half of 2021 our OEM sales were affected by
the global shipping disruption which delayed our order
fulfilments and hence the realisation of sales revenue, the
situation slightly eased later in the year and its impact on
our sales performance was softened. Overall, the OEM sales
recorded a growth of approximately HK$116.4 million or
10.8% from approximately HK$1,074.6 million for FY2020 to
approximately HK$1,191.0 million for FY2021.

Many analyses have indicated that the trend of growth in
worldwide retail e-commerce sales is irreversible. Riding on
our well-developed web infrastructure, customer base and
reputation of our web sales platforms, we further enhanced
our web sales business through launches of digital marketing
campaigns and new products, quality improvement and
new website development, etc. Such efforts enabled us to
continue to thrive in the e-commerce landscape. During
FY2021, our web sales business yielded a remarkable
increase in revenue of approximately HK$40.7 million or
25.8% from approximately HK$158.0 million for FY2020 to
approximately HK$198.7 million for FY2021. Meanwhile, the
number of active registered user accounts, which refers to
the number of registered user accounts with order(s) placed
in our major websites namely www.makeplayingcards.com,
www.boardgamesmaker.com, www.createjigsawpuzzles.
com, www.printerstudio.com, www.gifthing.com and www.
maketotebags.com, also increased by approximately 14.2%
from approximately 47,900 as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately 54,700 as at 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In spite of our growth in overall revenue in FY2021, the Group
recorded a net profit of approximately HK$119.0 million
during FY2021, representing a decrease of approximately
8.0% from approximately HK$129.3 million for FY2020.
The net profit margin also decreased from approximately
10.5% for FY2020 to approximately 8.6% for FY2021. Such
decreases were mainly attributable to (i) the appreciation
of RMB against HKD during FY2021; (ii) the increase in
transportation expenses in relation to delivery of finished
goods; and (iii) the decrease in subsidies from the PRC
Government and the HKSAR Government.

Future Outlook

In order to fully grasp the emerging business opportunities
and to remain resilient amid the ongoing uncertainties and
potential adversity arising from the pandemic situation and
geopolitical crisis, the Group will focus on consolidating its
operational excellence and strive for steady and diversified
business expansion.

The development of our supply chain in Vietnam is one of
our key strategies to expand our production capacity and
diversify operational risks with the additional manufacturing
location. The Group entered into a contract with a lessor
on 21 December 2021 regarding the sublease of land and
the lease of infrastructure in an industrial park in Ha Nam
Province, Vietnam for establishing a self-owned production
plant outside the PRC. While the preparation work for
construction of the new plant is underway, we are also
concentrating on improving the standards of different areas
of operations in our current subcontracted production
base in Vietnam, particularly workflow management, labour
competency and people development, material sourcing and
logistics, which will help us formulate best practices for our
future Vietnam plant. At the same time, we will continue to
apply new supply chain technologies to our operations to
improve the visibility, connectedness, data collection and
application and agility across different production workshops
and business units to optimise our overall efficiency.
Meanwhile, we will also seek continuous improvement in
our manufacturing process and research & application
capabilities to cater for our expansion of both OEM and web
sales businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

Our OEM business will remain our major and stable revenue
stream. To consolidate our OEM business, we will focus on
business development and product diversification. Based on
the experience gained through our successful endeavours
to enlarge our customer base in Europe, we will continue to
strive to grab business opportunities in the tabletop game
market in the region where we still see considerable room for
growth. We will also seek to expand our product offerings
for our existing customers to better cater for their business
needs while achieving business diversification. Meanwhile,
we are also well aware of, and have ourselves prepared for,
the possibility of increasing competition from manufacturers
in Europe when the pandemic eases off in the future.

Web sales business is our long-term growth driver. We will
continue to implement different development strategies to
expand our customer base so as to capture the growth
of the global online market. In particular, the development
of Q P Market Network (“QPMN”) is intended to extend
our online print-on-demand solutions to worldwide online
business operators and customers without being restrained
by geographical and cultural boundaries. To gain reputation
and credibility so as to effectively promote QPMN to new
collaborators, we intend to leverage our well-established
business relationships with our existing customers and
launch online collaboration projects.

Overall, the Group remains confident in the growth of the
overseas tabletop game market and web sales business.
The Group will continue to devote resources to the relevant
business units to enhance its competitive advantage and
further expand our business. External factors including
surging shipping costs, fluctuating material costs, ever-
increasing labour costs and other risks catalysed by the
COVID-19 pandemic that manufacturers endured in FY2021
may persist in the coming year. The Group will continue
to closely monitor and assess the development of these
uncertainties and take appropriate measures to mitigate their
impacts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group achieved revenue of approximately HK$1,389.8
million for FY2021, representing an increase of approximately
12.7% as compared with approximately HK$1,232.6 million
for FY2020. The increase in the Group’s revenue for FY2021
was driven by the increase in both OEM sales and web
sales.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of total revenue
for the periods indicated by business segment:
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020
—R_—-F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F & T THB T
OEM sales OEM %4 & 1,191,030 85.7 1,074,643 87.2
Web sales HBuhi i & 198,729 14.3 157,988 12.8
Total 8=t 1,389,759 100.0 1,232,631 100.0

OEM sales increased from approximately HK$1,074.6 million
for FY2020 to approximately HK$1,191.0 million for FY2021,
representing an increase of approximately 10.8%. The
increase was primarily due to the recovery of the global
retail market after the COVID-19 pandemic situation had
eased and the increase in sales to our major customers who
principally purchase educational items, tabletop games and
puzzles from us.

Web sales increased from approximately HK$158.0 million
for FY2020 to approximately HK$198.7 million for FY2021,
representing an increase of approximately 25.8%. The
increase was primarily due to the surging demand for playing
cards during the period of pandemic-driven e-commerce
boom.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

The table below summarises the geographical revenue based TRl A & TR HI R R R4 B 9 1 &
on the destination of delivery for the periods indicated: 25 H Hb 6 IR 2

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020
B —F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET
The USA ES 948,414 68.2 852,848 69.2
Europe &M 255,129 18.4 197,261 16.0
The PRC s 96,836 7.0 97,059 7.9
Others H b 89,380 6.4 85,463 6.9
Total st 1,389,759 100.0 1,232,631 100.0

The USA and Europe were the two largest overseas markets =& N BUMN AR EBF AR NGNS
of the Group during the year, which in aggregate accounted AF DG T _—FFPHREFEER_T=
for 86.6% and 85.2% of the total revenue for FY2021 and = & 8f B F [ 42 Uk 25 #986.6% [285.2% °
FY2020, respectively. The increase in sales to the United MEBEMSHEEHEEMTESE AR K
States market was mainly attributable to the increase in fIEFR BT EXFH MY A BN T L
demand for educational items of one of our major customers N & F I ML EENE RBK LI+ -
and the increase in demand of our web sales products. The [RBNTISHEEER DT EHNKEE
increase in sales to the European market was mainly due to B COVID-195% 15 A 18 ¥t K 7N 2 B 5k Ih 1¢
the economic recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic and fIREBUMEF EFEERGIE -

the Group having successfully secured orders from new

customers based in Europe.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of
raw materials, staff costs in relation to production, sub-
contracting charges, depreciation, utilities and factory
overheads. The Group recorded an increase in cost of sales
of approximately 20.6% from approximately HK$795.8 million
for FY2020 to approximately HK$959.7 million for FY2021.
The increase in cost of sales was primarily attributable
to (i) the increase in raw material costs as a result of the
appreciation of RMB against HKD and the increase in the
use of paper, auxiliary accessories and other materials in our
production as a result of the increase in revenue for FY2021
as compared with the corresponding period; (i) the increase
in staff costs as a result of the increase in the number
of production staff and the absence of reductions and
exemptions of several corporate social insurance premiums
for enterprises in the PRC recorded in FY2020; and (iii)
the increase in sub-contracting charges as a result of the
increase in OEM sales and the utilisation rate of production
capacity of the Group reaching its peak for a certain period
of time.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For FY2021, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
HK$430.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$6.8 million or 1.5% as compared with approximately
HK$436.9 million recorded in FY2020. The gross profit
margin decreased from approximately 35.4% for FY2020
to approximately 30.9% for FY2021,
attributable to the appreciation of RMB against HKD for
FY2021; and the absence of reductions and exemptions of
several corporate social insurance premiums for enterprises
in the PRC recorded in FY2020, partially offset by the
increase in the portion of our web sales which have a
relatively higher gross profit margin compared to our OEM
sales.
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MANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
En fi uT nf & ﬁ'

Other gains/(losses), net

The Group’s other gains/(losses), net mainly consist of
foreign exchange loss, fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments and loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment. The Group’s increase in other gains/decrease
in other losses in FY2021 were primarily due to the fact
that the Group entered into more forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge against currency fluctuation and therefore
the Group recognised higher fair value gain on derivative
financial instrument for FY2021 as compared with FY2020.

Other income, net

The Group’s other income, net mainly consists of sales of
scrap materials and government grants. The increase in
other income, net was mainly due to the increase in sales
of scrap materials, partially offset by the decrease in grants
as a result of the absence of grant from the Employment
Support Scheme of the HKSAR Government during FY2021.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of
transportation expenses, staff costs of our sales personnel,
sales commission and service charges of payment gateways.
The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately HK$24.8 million or 22.8% from approximately
HK$108.8 million for FY2020 to approximately HK$133.6
million for FY2021. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in transportation expenses incurred in relation to
the delivery of finished goods.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly comprise staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation, and legal and professional
fees. The Group’s administrative expenses increased by
approximately HK$22.3 million, or 13.5%, from approximately
HK$165.2 million for FY2020 to approximately HK$187.5
million for FY2021. The increase was primarily attributable
to the increase in the number of senior staff during FY2021
as compared with FY2020 for the purpose of expanding the
web sales business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs, net

Our finance costs, net decreased by approximately HK$2.3
million or 78.0% from approximately HK$2.9 million for
FY2020 to approximately HK$0.6 million for FY2021, mainly
due to the decrease in the average bank borrowings balance
for FY2021 as compared with that of FY2020.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense decreased by approximately
HK$18.3 million, or 60.9% from approximately HK$30.1
million for FY2020 to approximately HK$11.8 million for
FY2021. The decrease was mainly due to one of the Group’s
subsidiaries becoming accredited as a high-tech enterprise
in Guangdong Province, the PRC, and therefore being
entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% for three years
from FY2021.

Profit for the year

The Group’s profit decreased by approximately HK$10.3
million or 8.0% from approximately HK$129.3 million for
FY2020 to approximately HK$119.0 million for FY2021. The
net profit margin decreased from approximately 10.5% for
FY2020 to approximately 8.6% for FY2021. When excluding
the non-recurring listing expenses for FY2020, the net profit
would record a decrease of approximately 8.8% for FY2021
as compared with that of FY2020.
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I\/IANAGEI\/IENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
En fi uTuFFE & *ﬁ

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares (the “Shares”) of the Company were listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 16 January 2020 (the “Listing”). There
has been no change in the share capital of our Group since
then and share capital of our Group only comprises ordinary
shares. As at the date of this annual report, the Company
has 532,000,000 ordinary shares in issue.

The Group relies principally on its internally generated capital
and bank borrowings to fund its business. Details of the
borrowings (including the maturity profile of borrowings) are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During FY2021, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity
position, with working capital mainly financed by internal
resources. The Group adopts a prudent cash and financial
management policy. We closely review trade receivable
balances and any overdue balances on an ongoing basis and
only trade with creditworthy parties. We closely monitor the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet
its funding requirements to manage liquidity risk.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group reported net current
assets of approximately HK$214.9 million, as compared
with approximately HK$232.5 million as at 31 December
2020. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents was approximately HK$158.8 million, of
which approximately HK$62.5 million was denominated in
HKD, approximately HK$30.0 million was denominated in
RMB, approximately HK$64.5 million was denominated in
United States dollars (“USD”) and the remaining balance
was denominated in other currencies (31 December 2020:
approximately HK$236.7 million, of which approximately
HK$131.8 million was denominated in HKD, approximately
HK$64.8 million was denominated in RMB, approximately
HK$38.8 million was denominated in USD and the remaining
balance was denominated in other currencies), representing
a decrease of approximately HK$77.9 million as compared
with that as at 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly
due to the purchase of property, plant and equipment for the
purpose of expanding the business scale of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, total borrowings and lease
liabilities for the Group amounted to approximately HK$88.9
million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$92.9 million).
The borrowings were denominated in HKD and lease
liabilities were denominated in HKD and RMB. All bank
borrowings are at floating rates and lease liabilities are at
fixed rates.

For FY2021, the net cash generated from operating activities
was approximately HK$116.2 million (FY2020: approximately
HK$193.6 million). The net cash generated from operating
activities was mainly derived from the profits recorded during
the review period. The net cash used in investing activities
was approximately HK$112.6 million (FY2020: approximately
HK$47.7 million). The net cash used in financing activities
was approximately HK$82.9 million (FY2020: approximately
HK$17.9 million). For FY2021, the net cash used in investing
activities was mainly attributable to payment in relation to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment, and the net cash
used in financing activities was mainly attributable to the
dividend payment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2020: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately
HK$25.0 million (31 December 2020: approximately HK$6.4
million) capital commitments in relation to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated by the total debt (being borrowings
and lease liabilities) divided by the total equity as at the end
of the respective reporting periods and multiplied by 100%.
The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately 10.5% and
11.8% as at 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively.

We closely monitor our gearing ratio, analyse the maturity
profiles of our borrowings and manage our liquidity level to
ensure a sufficient cash flow to service our indebtedness
and meet cash requirements arising from our business. We
will explore various financing opportunities to improve our
capital structure and reduce our cost of capital.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN
EXCHANGE RATES AND RELATED
HEDGES

As the Group is headquartered in Hong Kong and our
production facilities are primarily located in the PRC,
most of our production cost and operating expenses
are primarily denominated in HKD and RMB, while our
revenue is mainly denominated in USD and HKD, and we
are exposed to foreign currency risks primarily as a result
of revenue, production costs and operating expenses that
are denominated in foreign currencies other than HKD. The
Group’s foreign currency exposure also comprises assets
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the
subsidiaries’ functional currencies.

The Group has set up a policy to manage its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates and employing financial instruments
for hedging should the need arise. The Group does not
adopt a formal hedge accounting policy. During FY2021,
the Group entered into certain forward foreign exchange
contracts based on actual demand to sell USD and purchase
RMB with licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong. The
Group categorises these contracts as being entered into for
hedging purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, the notional principal amounts
of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
were approximately HK$358.8 million (31 December 2020:
HK$117.0 million). For FY2021, fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments of approximately HK$13.7 million
(FY2020: HK$3.9 million) was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (31 December 2020: nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES

On 29 June 2021, the Group entered into a memorandum
of understanding with a lessor, an independent third party,
for the sublease (“Sublease”) of a plot of land with an
area of approximately 40,000 square meters for a term
of 48 years for a total consideration of approximately
VND65,319,535,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$21,988,000) in Vietnam. Details of the memorandum of
understanding in respect of the Sublease were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 29 June 2021. On
21 December 2021, the Group entered into a contract for
infrastructure leasing and the land Sublease (“Contract”)
with the lessor. The Contract and the Sublease do not
constitute a notifiable transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

On 30 June 2021, the Group acquired from Mr. Leung Pui
Wing, an independent third party, for the entire issued share
capital of Universe Oriental Enterprise Limited (“Universe
Oriental”) at the adjusted consideration of approximately
HK$10,156,000. On 8 July 2021, the Group entered into the
sale and purchase agreements with Mr. Tsang Siu Cheong
and Mr. Wong Ka Ming, each an independent third party,
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Brighten Wish
Limited (“Brighten Wish”), Goldenway Fortune Limited
(“Goldenway Fortune”), Mega Access Capital Resources
Limited (“Mega Access”) and Billion Space Development
Limited (“Billion Space”) and take the assignment of the
directors’ loans free from encumbrances at the aggregate
consideration of HK$41,800,000 (subject to adjustments) (the
“Acquisitions”). The Acquisitions were completed at the
adjusted consideration of approximately HK$41,837,000 on
20 July 2021. Universe Oriental, Brighten Wish, Goldenway
Fortune, Mega Access and Billion Space are principally
engaged in property investment and hold office premises
located at Flat C, D, E, F and G, on the 21st Floor of
Kings Wing Plaza 2, No. 1 On Kwan Street, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong, respectively. In addition, the Group
acquired two car park spaces located at Kings Wing Plaza
2 from Mr. Tsang Siu Cheong and Mr. Wong Ka Ming at the
aggregate consideration of HK$5,560,000 on 15 December
2020. The Acquisitions constitute discloseable transactions
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules of the Company.
Details of the Acquisitions were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 July 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during FY2021 (FY2020: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as those disclosed in this annual report, there were no
other plans for material investments or capital assets during
the year under review.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, right-of-use assets amounted to
approximately HK$57.8 million (2020: HK$59.1 million) and
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$33.4 million (2020: HK$35.0 million) have been charged
as security for bank borrowings of the Group.

Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial information.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2020 of which
133,000,000 ordinary shares (comprising 13,300,000 Hong
Kong offer shares and 119,700,000 international placing
shares) had been allotted and issued under the global
offering, at an offer price of HK$1.18 per Share. The actual
net proceeds from the listing of the Company’s shares on 16
January 2020 (the “Listing”) were approximately HK$111.9
million (after deduction of the listing expenses).

As at 30 March 2022, the Company has not yet utilised the
net proceeds from the Listing of approximately HK$63.1
million (the “Unutilised Net Proceeds”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T

The table below sets out an adjusted allocation as adjusted 3 & 7l BT 15 2k T8 )% 28 (& A B H e (3R 18
in the same manner and same proportions as shown in the MR EZRE AT /RBIHERE 5 X M E 7 58 2)
Prospectus and the actual use of the net proceeds: M ER

Expected

Actual use of  Unutilised net Revised timeline for

net proceeds up proceeds asat  Unutilised net allocation of the utilising the

Actual net to 31 December 31 December proceeds asat Unutilised Net  remaining net

proceeds 2021 2021 30 March 2022 Proceeds proceeds
EZ-%--% RZB=-%

+ZR=t-B +ZA=t-BH W-B--%=AH
FERETEN i & B A i 8 :+Ehi§bm BETHABAR BRAKTHEHE
E%Fﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁé ERRZ RERE FBRERE BRETEAZ TENEARER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 (Note 1)
T THL BT )

MTN
>;’J

Enhance the Group’s production REAEENE
capacity and operational flexibility 4

— Developing production support 12,081 (12,081) - - - N/A
in Southeast Asia through TER
subcontracting agreement

— Setting up Vietnam production ~ —BBEREABNRF 12,081 - 12,081 12,081 = N/A
site by acquisition of the 3 TER
suitable factory building
(Note 2)

— Acquiring new machines for the 34,564 34,564 34,564 - N/A
production site in Vietnam TER
(Note 2)

— Setting up Vietnam production - - - - - 46,645 By 31 December
site by construction of a 2022
factory building (Note 2) —T-_f%

TZA=t-HA
Optimise the Group’s product mix 27,964 (8,610) 19,354 14,977 14,977 By 31 December

and production specialisation 2022

by, among others, reallocating -

the Group’s production capacity TZA=+—HA
to Heshan and enhancing the

Group's operational efficiency

Enhance the Group’s technological % F 13,087 (11,056) 2,031 1,495 1,495 By 31 December
capability and upgrading the 2022
Group's IT infrastructure —T-_f%

TZA=t-HA

Working capital and other general 12,081 (12,081) - - - N/A

corporate purposes TER
111,858 (43,828) 68,030 63,117 63,117

Note 1: Due to the uncertain economic and market conditions primarily — Af##7 - fﬁ* A Z i COVID-19/8 3 5 2k 1) /& 7%

driven by the outbreak of COVID-19, certain plans as stated in the MATHEYN  BREEBMAH 25 T &
Prospectus have been deferred. The expected timeline for utilising BFERR - By TFIS X IE FEE M T8 5
the remaining net proceeds is based on the best estimation of the BREXRDERASEHARARTSZMKRIL
future market conditions made by the Group. It might be subject SEMFTMAEL - HAlgEE MBI B A
to changes based on the current and future development of the RARRERLBFES o

market conditions.
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Note 2:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, for the portion of net proceeds
from the Listing which is intended for “enhance the Group’s
production capacity and operational flexibility”, the Group
originally intended to utilise the net proceeds of (i) approximately
HK$12.1 million for setting up Vietnam production site by
acquisition of the suitable factory building and (ii) approximately
HK$34.6 million for acquiring new machines for the production
site in Vietnam. Accordingly, the Group entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with a vendor,
an independent third party, to acquire certain land, factories,
machines and assets in Vietnam (collectively, the “Assets”) on
30 June 2020. Subsequently, the Group and the vendor have
agreed to enter into the supplemental MOU on 29 December 2020
to extend the exclusivity period and the long stop date of the
proposed acquisition. Details of the MOU and the supplemental
MOU in relation to such proposed acquisition were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 30 June 2020 and 29
December 2020. As additional time is required for the partitioning
of land title in respect of the land (which forms part of the Assets
located in Hai Duong Province, Vietnam) for the parties to proceed
with the acquisition contemplated under the MOU, in order to avoid
undue delay of the Group’s plan to set up its own production site
in Vietnam, the parties agreed to terminate the MOU accorded to
the interests of both parties and the refundable deposit of HK$20.0
million under the MOU and supplemental MOU was reclassified as
part of the Unutilised Net Proceeds as at 31 December 2021.

As set out in “MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES” above, the
Group entered into the Contract with the lessor for the sublease of
a plot of land with an area of approximately 40,000 square meters
and the leasing of infrastructure in an industrial park in Ha Nam
Province, Vietnam for a term of 48 years. Instead of acquiring a
suitable factory building and new machines for the production site
in Vietnam as originally intended, the Group plans to carry out the
construction works for a factory, including office premises and the
accompanying infrastructure for the production of the Group in its
ordinary and usual course of business. Accordingly, the Board has
resolved to reallocate a total of approximately HK$46.6 million from
the Unutilised Net Proceeds which was set for “setting up Vietnam
production site by acquisition of the suitable factory building”
and “acquiring new machines for the production site in Vietham”
purpose, and to re-designate these amounts for the purposes of
“setting up Vietnam production site by construction of a factory
building”. The Board does not consider the above change to be a
material change in use of proceeds as the change still aims to help
the Company to achieve its intended purpose of setting up the
Group’s own production site in Vietnam. The Board is of the view
that the change in use of the Unutilised Net Proceeds will allow the
Group to meet the expansion needs of production capacity and is
in the best interest of the Group and its Shareholders as a whole.
Save as disclosed in this report, the Board confirms that there are
no other changes to the use of the other net proceeds from the
Listing. The Board will continuously assess the plan for the use of
the Unutilised Net Proceeds and may revise or amend such plan
when necessary to cope with the changing market conditions, and
strive for better business performance of the Group.

The Unutilised Net Proceeds have been placed as bank
deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong as at the date of
this report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (Z8#{&), aged 63, is one of our
founders, an executive Director,
and chief executive officer of our Company. Mr. Cheng was
appointed as a Director in April 2018 and redesignated as
an executive Director in January 2019. He is responsible
for formulating overall strategies, planning and business
directions of our Group. Mr. Cheng also serves as a director
of Archer Praise Limited, Billion Space Development Limited,
Brighten Wish Limited, boardgamesmaker.com Limited,
createjigsawpuzzles.com Limited, DPI Laboratory Services
Limited, Eternity Year Investment Limited, Goldenway
Fortune Limited, makeplayingcards.com Limited, Mega
Access Capital Resources Limited, Multi International
Investment Group Limited, Printer’s Studio Limited, Q P
Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q P Holdings
(Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q P Printing
Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Technology Development
Limited, Q P Trading Limited, Q P TRADING ASIA PTE. LTD.,
QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited, Universe Oriental
Enterprise Limited, and a director and legal representative
of Tiandin ZenSee Technology Co, Ltd., Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Company Limited*, Dongguan ZenSee Product
Testing Limited, Dongguan Zensee Printing Limited,
Shenzhen Zen See Information Technology Co., Ltd.", Q
P Enterprise (Vietnam) Company Limited and Q P Trading
(Vietnam) Company Limited. Mr. Cheng has over 35 years
of experience in the printing industry. He established our
Group in 1985 with Mr. Yeung Keng Wu Kenneth and served
as a director of Q P Printing Limited since its incorporation.
Mr. Cheng is the spouse of Ms. Hui Li Kwan, an executive
Director of our Group.

chairman of our Board

Since December 2016, Mr. Cheng has been serving as a vice
chairman of the board of directors of the Hongkong Shine
Tak Foundation Association Limited, a charity organisation,
and has been serving as a permanent honorary president
since December 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth (15 8% ), aged 63, is one
of our founders and an executive Director, and is responsible
for formulating overall strategies and planning, and
overseeing the manufacturing operations of our Group. Mr.
Yeung was appointed as our Director in April 2018 and
redesignated as an executive Director in January 2019. Mr.
Yeung also serves as a director of Archer Praise Limited,
Billion Space Development Limited, Brighten Wish Limited,
boardgamesmaker.com Limited, createjigsawpuzzles.com
Limited, Eternity Year Investment Limited, Goldenway
Fortune Limited, makeplayingcards.com Limited, Mega
Access Capital Resources Limited, Multi International
Investment Group Limited, Printer’s Studio Limited, Q P
Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q P Holdings
(Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q P Printing
Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Technology Development
Limited, Q P Trading Limited, Q P TRADING ASIA PTE. LTD.,
QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited, Universe Oriental
Enterprise Limited, Tiandin ZenSee Technology Co, Ltd. and
Taunus Printing (Heshan) Company Limited*. He has over 35
years of experience in the printing industry. He established
our Group in 1985 with Mr. Cheng Wan Wai and served as a
director of Q P Printing Limited since its incorporation.

Between January 2012 and January 2017, Mr. Yeung had
been a member of the 12th Dongguan Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He
has been serving as a permanent honorary president of
Hongkong Shine Tak Foundation Association Limited, a
charity organisation, since December 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEERE

Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny (B #0), aged 59, is an executive
Director, and is responsible for formulating strategic
planning, overseeing overseas sales, human resources,
administration and training functions of our Group. Ms. Liu
was appointed as our Director in April 2018 and
redesignated as an executive Director in January 2019. Ms.
Liu also serves as a director of Archer Praise Limited, Billion
Space Development Limited, Brighten Wish Limited,
boardgamesmaker.com Limited, createjigsawpuzzles.com
Limited, Eternity Year Investment Limited, Goldenway
Fortune Limited, makeplayingcards.com Limited, Mega
Access Capital Resources Limited, Multi International
Investment Group Limited, Printer’s Studio Limited, Q P
Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q P Holdings
(Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q P Printing
Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Technology Development
Limited, Q P Trading Limited, Q P TRADING ASIA PTE. LTD.,
QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited, Universe Oriental
Enterprise Limited, Tiandin ZenSee Technology Co, Ltd. and
Taunus Printing (Heshan) Company Limited*. She joined our
Group in September 1990 and has over 35 years of
experience in the printing industry. Ms. Liu obtained a
degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in May
2004.
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Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas (FR %= 3&), aged 58, is
an executive Director, and is responsible for overseeing
business development and sales functions of our Group.
Mr. Chan was appointed as our Director in April 2018 and
redesignated as an executive Director in January 2019.
Mr. Chan also serves as director of Archer Praise Limited,
Billion Space Development Limited, Brighten Wish Limited,
boardgamesmaker.com Limited, createjigsawpuzzles.com
Limited, Eternity Year Investment Limited, Goldenway Fortune
Limited, makeplayingcards.com Limited, Mega Access
Capital Resources Limited, Multi International Investment
Group Limited, Product Innovator Limited, Printer's Studio
Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q
P Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q
P Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Technology
Development Limited, Q P Trading Limited, Q P TRADING
ASIA PTE. LTD., QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited and
Universe Oriental Enterprise Limited. He joined our Group in
October 2000 and possesses over 20 years of experience in
the paper-based items manufacturing and printing industry.
Mr. Chan obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
November 2013.
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Ms. HUI Li Kwan (&F %1 %&), aged 60, is an executive Director,
and is responsible for managing material development and
supply. Ms. Hui was appointed as our Director in April 2018
and redesignated as an executive Director in January 2019.
Ms. Hui also serves as a director of Archer Praise Limited,
Billion Space Development Limited, Brighten Wish Limited,
boardgamesmaker.com Limited, createjigsawpuzzles.com
Limited, Eternity Year Investment Limited, Goldenway Fortune
Limited, makeplayingcards.com Limited, Mega Access Capital
Resources Limited, Multi International Investment Group
Limited, Printer’'s Studio Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited,
QP Holdings Limited, Q P Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P
International Limited, Q P Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing
Limited, Q P Technology Development Limited, Q P Trading
Limited, Q P TRADING ASIA PTE. LTD., QP (HK) Limited,
Radiant Keen Limited and Universe Oriental Enterprise Limited.
She joined our Group in July 1985 and has over 35 years of
experience in the printing industry. Ms. Hui is the spouse of
Mr. Cheng Wan Wai, an executive Director and chairman of our
Group.
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Mr. MAK Chin Pang (Z &), aged 50, is an executive
Director, and is responsible for overseeing administrative
and legal compliance matters, accounting and corporate
finance functions of our Group. He was appointed as our
Director in April 2018 and redesignated as an executive
Director in January 2019. Mr. Mak also serves as a director
of Archer Praise Limited, Billion Space Development Limited,
Brighten Wish Limited, boardgamesmaker.com Limited,
createjigsawpuzzles.com Limited, DPI Laboratory Services
Limited, Eternity Year Investment Limited, Goldenway Fortune
Limited, makeplayingcards.com Limited, Mega Access
Capital Resources Limited, Multi International Investment
Group Limited, Product Innovator Limited, Printer's Studio
Limited, Q P Enterprises Limited, QP Holdings Limited, Q
P Holdings (Vietnam) Limited, Q P International Limited, Q
P Printing Limited, Q P Sourcing Limited, Q P Technology
Development Limited, Q P Trading Limited, Q P TRADING
ASIA PTE. LTD., QP (HK) Limited, Radiant Keen Limited and
Universe Oriental Enterprise Limited. He is the chairman
of the risk management committee and a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of our
Company. He joined our Group in May 2001 and has over
20 years of experience in accounting, finance, corporate
governance, capital management and strategic planning
matters.

Mr. Mak obtained a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration in Finance from the Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in November 1994. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. He also obtained Six Sigma Green Belt from Six
Sigma Institute in July 2013.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas (B & &), v+, up, aged 48,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director in
December 2019. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and risk management committee of our Company.
Mr. Chan is currently a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and
has over 20 years of experience in the legal practice. He has
become a partner of Squire Patton Boggs, a law firm since
September 2005.

Mr. Chan was admitted to practise law as a solicitor in Hong
Kong in May 1999 and has since then become a member
of The Law Society of Hong Kong. He served as a council
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong from December
2014 to May 2019. He was also admitted to practice law in
the Australian Capital Territory and Victoria, Australia in June
1997 and October 2000, respectively, and was admitted
to practice as a solicitor in England and Wales in October
2007. Mr. Chan graduated from The University of Melbourne,
Australia, with a double degree of Bachelor of Laws and
Bachelor of Science in March 1997.
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Mr. Chan served as a council member of The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology from April 2016 to
March 2022. He was appointed as a member to the Legal
Aid Services Council for a term of two years from September
2018 and was re-appointed to serve for another term of two
years from September 2020. He has also been appointed as
a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of Castle
Peak Hospital and Siu Lam Hospital, and as a lay assessor
to the Medical Council of Hong Kong. Since November
2018, Mr. Chan has been serving as a council member of
Fu Hong Society, a non-governmental organisation in Hong
Kong dedicated to help the mentally handicapped and those
in need to live with dignity. He was appointed as chairman
and has been re-designated as vice chairman of eBRAM
International Online Dispute Resolution Centre Limited
(formerly known as eBRAM Centre Limited), an independent
and not-for-profit organisation under Hong Kong law as a
company limited by guarantee since May 2020. Since June
2021, Mr. Chan has become a non-club-linked director of
the board of the Hong Kong Football Association with a term
until June 2025. Mr. Chan was appointed as a representative
of the 13th National People’s Congress of the PRC in 2019.
He was awarded the Medal of Honours from the Government
of the HKSAR in July 2016 and has also been appointed as a
Justice of the Peace by the Government of the HKSAR since
July 2021.

Mr. Chan has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of (i) Sa Sa International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 178), since September 2019; (ii) Pangaea
Connectivity Technology Limited (Stock Code: 1473), since
January 2021; and (iii) Million Cities Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2892), since December 2021, respectively. The shares
of the abovementioned companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel (E83CH4), B8s, mH, JP,
aged 64, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director in December 2019. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and risk management committee
of our Company. He is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Engineers and a registered professional engineer of the
Engineers Registration Board. He has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering industry.

Since August 1993, he has been serving as the Managing
Director of Dunwell Group (including Dunwell Industrial
(Holdings) Limited Dunwell Technology (Holdings) Limited
and Dunwell Enviro-Tech International Limited. The business
of its group of companies covers collection and handling of
waste oil, wastewater and chemical waste, manufacturing
and installation of wastewater treatment and recycling system
and provision of technical advisory services.

Prof. Cheng serves as the President of the Hong Kong
Environmental Industry Association. Between July 2015 and
July 2017, he served as the chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries, and was appointed as its Honorary
President since July 2017. He also currently serves as a
member of the Chief Executive’s Council of Advisers on
Innovation and Strategic Development and the Committee on
Innovation, Technology and Re-industrialisation.

Prof. Cheng was appointed by The University of Hong Kong
as Honorary Professor for the period from March 2016 to
February 2019 and as Adjunct Professor for the period from
March 2019 to February 2021 in the Department of Industrial
and Manufacturing Systems Engineering. He has also been
appointed by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as
Professor of Practice (Management) in the Department of
Management and Marketing. He was appointed as a Justice
of the Peace by the Government of the HKSAR in July 2011.
He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in 2017 and
the Medal of Honours in July 2007 from the Government of
the HKSAR.
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In February 2014, Prof. Cheng received the Certificate of
Congressional Recognition for his induction into the Hall of
Fame Class of 2014 from the California State Polytechnic
University, Pomona, the United States. He obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering from the
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona, the United
States, in June 1981.

Mr. NG Shung (= &), Jr (Australia), aged 58, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director in December
2019. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and
a member of the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and risk management committee of our Company.
He is a fellow certified public accountant in Hong Kong and
has over 10 years of experience in professional accounting.
He has been operating publication business by serving
as the chairman of the board of directors of Racing World
Publications Limited since 2003.

Mr. Ng was admitted to the status of Certified Practising
Accountant of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants in September 1992, and was issued a Public
Practice Certificate by the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants in February 1993. He was admitted
as a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (formerly known as the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants) in March 1999. He obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Economics from Macquarie University, Australia,
in April 1986, and a degree of Master of Commerce in
Organizational Behaviour from the University of New South
Wales, Australia, in April 1988. He was also admitted as
a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Director in January
2018.
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Mr. Ng had served in the Executive Committee of the Hong
Kong Paralympic Committee & Sports Association For The
Physically Disabled from 2009 to 2015, and had been the
chairman of its public relations and marketing subcommittee
from 2010 to 2013. He had served as an Elected Member
of the General Committee of Riding For The Disabled
Association Limited and as chairman of the Public Relations
and Fundraising Subcommittee from 2003 to 2010 and
from 2015 to 2016, respectively. He has also served as the
vice-chairman of the International Liaison Subcommittee
and vice-chairman of the Rehab Subcommittee of Riding
For The Disabled Association Limited from 2011 to 2013
and from 2012 to 2015, respectively. He had also served as
the president of Hong Kong Racehorse Owners Association
from 2014 to 2015 and was appointed as a Voting Member
of the Hong Kong Jockey Club in 2016. He was appointed
as Justice of the Peace by the Government of New South
Wales, Australia, in 1992, and was awarded Chief Executive’s
Commendation for Community Service by the Government of
the HKSAR in 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUNG Wai Ming Kenny (G£{&8), aged 61, joined
our Group in May 1994. Mr. Hung is the general manager
of Taunus Printing (Heshan) Company Limited*, and is
responsible for the management and supervision of the
production and operation of Heshan factory. Mr. Hung
had been served as a director of Q P International Limited
between January 2018 and December 2020. Mr. Hung has
over 30 years of experience in production management.

Mr. HA Kevin Tu Hao (8 %), aged 56, joined our Group
in November 2003. Mr. Ha is the director of technology
development of our Group, and is responsible for the
management and supervision of our technology department.
Mr. Ha had been served as a director of Q P International
Limited between January 2018 and December 2020. Mr.
Ha has over 20 years of experience in the printing and
publishing industry.

Mr. WOO Yu Sing Kevin (##i %), aged 58, joined our
Group in March 2018. Mr. Woo is the director of product
integrity of our Group, and is responsible for the management
and supervision of our product integrity department to
safeguard the product integrity and safety, quality system
and assurance, compliance, and environmental, occupational
health and safety. Mr. Woo had been served as a director of
DPI Laboratory Services Limited between March 2018 and
December 2020. Mr. Woo has over 35 years of experience in
the quality system, quality control and assurance management
in the manufacturing industry, as well as the laboratory
management.

Mr. CHU Chong Kei Elvis (% £l &), aged 58, joined our
Group in November 2008. Mr. Chu is the director of quality
assurance and compliance of our Group, and is responsible
for the management and supervision of our quality assurance
and compliance department. Mr. Chu had been served as
a director of Q P International Limited between January
2018 and December 2020. Mr. Chu has over 25 years of
experience in the quality control and assurance management
in the manufacturing industry.
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Mr. CHEUNG Chun Man (R X), aged 49, joined our
Group in October 2012. Mr. Cheung is the IT director of our
Group, and is responsible for management and supervision
of our IT department. Mr. Cheung has over 20 years of
experience in the information and technology. Mr. Cheung
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Mathematics from the
University of Waterloo in Canada in May 1997.

Dr. YUEN Wai Hung (=& #), Ph.D. (Chem), MRSC, CChem,
CSci, aged 54, joined our Group in April 2011 till January
2020 and rejoined us in May 2020, Dr. Yuen is the senior
research and application manager of our Group, and is
responsible for the management and supervision of our
research and application activities. Dr. Yuen had been
served as a director of DPI Laboratory Services Limited
between June 2012 and January 2020. Dr. Yuen has over
20 years of chemistry research experience and industrial
applications, and provides scientific and technological advice
to internal stakeholders and clients. Dr. Yuen obtained a
degree of Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.) from the University
of Manchester Institute of Science and Technology (UMIST)
and the Victoria University of Manchester in 1997. He has
been awarded the status of Member (MRSC) and Chartered
Chemist (CChem) by the Royal Society of Chemistry in
1994 and recognized as a Chartered Scientist (CSci) by
the Science Council in 2004. He is a member of China
Association of Inventions (CAl) and serving as Technical
Committees Member of ASTM International since 2011.
Dr. Yuen is currently the inventors of four China Invention
Patents and one China utility model patent. He had been
appointed as lecturer and Honorary Assistant Professor in
the Department of Chemistry by different universities in Hong
Kong.
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Mr. HUI Chun Yip David (578 %), aged 43, joined our
Group in November 2009. Mr. Hui is the engineering director
of our Group, and is responsible for the management
and supervision of our engineering department, and he is
concurrently the general manager of our Vietnam operations.
Mr. Hui had been served as a director of Q P International
Limited between January 2018 and December 2020. Mr.
Hui has over 19 years of experience in the engineering area
of the manufacturing industry. He obtained a degree of
Bachelor of Engineering in Manufacturing Informatics and
Systems Engineering from the City University of Hong Kong
in November 2006 and a degree of Master of Engineering in
Engineering Management from the Open University of Hong
Kong in October 2016. Mr. Hui was certified as a Registered
Lean Specialist (Life Type Registration) in October 2014
and a registered Lean Sigma Black Belt in March 2015 by
the Six Sigma Institute of Hong Kong. In September 2015,
he obtained a certificate of certified Six Sigma Black Belt
from the China Association for Quality. He completed the
Industry 4.0 Program Facilitator Training in June 2017 and
was awarded a certificate of completion from the Fraunhofer
Institutes of Production Technology and the Hong Kong
Productivity Council.

Mr. WONG Hung Pan (Z %), aged 36, joined our Group
in March 2017. Mr. Wong is the financial controller of our
Group and the company secretary of our Company, and
is responsible for financial matters, corporate governance,
capital management, company secretarial matters and
strategic planning. Mr. Wong has over 14 years of experience
in audit and assurance, financial management, and corporate
governance with several international accounting firms and
listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong obtained a degree
of Bachelor of Arts in Accounting and Finance from the
University of Exeter, the United Kingdom in July 2007 and
further obtained a degree of Master of Corporate Governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September
2019. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of The
Chartered Governance Institute, and an associate member of
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. He is also a
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charterholder.

* The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official
names of these companies are in Chinese.
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the
corporate governance of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to high level of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability. The Company has adopted the principles and
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of corporate governance.
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During FY2021, the Company has applied and complied with
the CG Code in each case as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, except for the deviation from the CG Code
of code provision A.2.1. Under code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual and the division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established
and set out in writing. Mr. Cheng Wan Wai currently holds
both positions of the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company, being responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved by members of the Board
from time to time. Mr. Cheng has been the key leadership
figure of the Group who has been primarily involved in the
formulation of business strategies and, more importantly,
the determination of the overall direction of the Group since
1985. The Board considers that having Mr. Cheng acting as
both our chairman and chief executive officer provides strong
and consistent leadership to our Group and facilitate the
efficient execution of our business strategies. Also, the Board
considers there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board, such as major
issues affecting the operations of the Company are made in
consultation with experienced and high caliber Directors in
regular Board meetings, the delegation of authorities to the
management and the supervision of the management by the
members of the Board and the relevant Board committees.
Having considered the factors mentioned above, the Board
considers Mr. Cheng is the best candidate for both positions
and the present arrangements are beneficial and in the
interest of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.
The Board will continue to review and consider segregating
the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer at an
appropriate time, taking into account the circumstances of
the Group as a whole.

The CG Code and code provisions specified in this corporate
governance report refer to the CG Code and code provisions
prior to their amendments effective on 1 January 2022.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard indicated by the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code adopted by the
Company during FY2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Roles and Responsibilities

The Company is headed by an effective Board which
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and takes decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company. The Board directly and indirectly
through its committees, leads and provides direction to the
management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation by the management. The Board monitors the
operating and financial performance of the Group, reviews
the internal control policies of the Group, and ensures that
effective governance and sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place. The Board operates
under defined terms of reference which set out matters
specifically reserved for its decision. The terms of reference
are available on the website of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required
from a Director to perform his responsibilities to the
Company, and whether the Director is spending sufficient
time performing them.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company and may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company. The Directors shall disclose to the Company
details of other offices held by them.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to policy setting, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of
six executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, whose biographical information set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. The composition of the
Board is as follow:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (Chairman)
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny

Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas
Ms. HUI Li Kwan

Mr. MAK Chin Pang

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel
Mr. NG Shung

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning. The independent
non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.
The independent non-executive Directors will also be able to
provide an impartial, external opinion to protect the interests
of our public Shareholders.
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Save for Mr. Cheng Wan Wai and Ms. Hui Li Kwan are
the spouse of each other, there is no other relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) among members of the Board.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
Records

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors. Notices of not less than fourteen days
will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for regular board meetings.

During FY2021,
interval, at which the Directors approved, among other
things, (i) the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020, (i) the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 and (iii) the distribution of dividends as
well as discussed the overall strategy, business progress,
operation updates, and quarterly results.

four Board meetings was held at regular

The attendance records of each director at the Board, Board
committee meetings and annual general meeting (“AGM”)
during the financial year are set out in the table below:

Audit

Name of Directors Board  Committee

gz EHZRE

Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (Chairman) 414 -
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth 4/ —
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny 4/4 -
Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas 4/4 =
Ms. HUI Li Kwan 4/ =
Mr. MAK Chin Pang 4/4 -
Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas 4/ 212
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel 4/4 2/2
Mr. NG Shung 4/4 22
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors during the financial
year.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have brought in a
wide range of business and financial expertise, experience
and independent judgement to the Board. Through active
participation in the Board meetings and serving on various
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors
will continue to make various contributions to the Company.

Throughout the reporting period, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board
with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmations, the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent during
the reporting period.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement
or a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in
the Articles.
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At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the
power to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or as an additional Director
to the existing Board subject to any maximum number of
Directors, if any, as may be determined by the Shareholders
in general meeting. Any Director so appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and be subject to
re-election at such meeting. Any Director so appointed as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the first AGM of the Company after his appointment and
be eligible for re-election at such meeting. Any Director so
appointed by the Board shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are
to retire by rotation at an AGM.

At each AGM, one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the number of
Directors is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one third shall be the number of retiring
Directors. The Directors to retire in each year shall be those
who have been in office longest since their last re-election or
appointment but, as between persons who became or were
last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for
election to the office of Director at any general meeting,
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected has been lodged at
the head office or at the registration office of the Company.
The period for lodgment of such notices shall commence
no earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of the
relevant general meeting and end no later than seven days
before the date of such general meeting and the minimum
length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be lodged must be at least seven days.
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Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities
and to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Directors are encouraged
to participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be
arranged and reading materials on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate.

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a formal and
comprehensive induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Prior to the Listing, all Directors have been given the training
regarding the directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate
governance and regulatory updates and relevant reading
materials including compliance manual/legal and regulatory
updates/seminar handouts have been provided to the
Directors for their reference and studying.

During the financial year, our legal adviser has provided
an online training and relevant materials to all Directors on
continuous professional development for directors.
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The current Board members have participated in the BREIEEEXERFRELX M T A TE
following training programmes during the year: SIIEE -

Types of training
i
Reading materials
relating to general

Attending business, regulatory
online training organised  updates on listing rules
Name of Directors by our legal adviser and board practices
HEEE-RER.
SMBBEANEERER InRARESEEAN
EHNE L BREEEER

Executive Directors HWHEES

Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (Chairman) BEBLRE(LTE) / /

Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth BEBEE / /

Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny BERmz / v/

Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas REERE / v/

Ms. HUI Li Kwan FHERL / v/

Mr. MAK Chin Pang ERELE / /

Independent non-executive Directors BUEHTEES

Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas PREEE L / /

Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel BVEHK / v/

Mr. NG Shung REEE / /
BOARD COMMITTEES BEEXZET
The Board has established four committees, namely, the E=Z@ X VNEZES BIEXEZS
audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination € - HFEEE € - ERXEZEehERE
committee and risk management committee, for overseeing BZEE®  UEBEAQGEHEMNEEREM -
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board ZARARMEBEEEZESHEIHEZmE
committees of the Company are established with specific #E&E  BRHEARS B NES -
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their Z=EEZE€WBESE TN EARQ 7 H
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board Ui KRBt Fr#BuL WA EERKERES
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the & °

Stock Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders
upon request.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. NG Shung, Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas and
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel, and is chaired by Mr. NG
Shung who has appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Under its terms of reference, the primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to (i) make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and removal of the external auditor; (i)
review the financial statements of the Group and monitoring
the integrity of such financial statements; (iii) oversee the
financial reporting, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and (iv) oversee and manage the
relationship with external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee held two meetings to (i) review the audited annual
results and annual report for the year ended 31 December
2020; (i) review the unaudited interim results and interim
report for the six-month ended 30 June 2021; (iii) review
the remuneration, terms of engagement, the relationship,
and independence of the Group’s external auditor; and
(iv) monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit function
by reviewing the internal audit programme and the major
investigation findings. The Audit Committee also met the
external auditor once without the presence of the executive
Directors.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee considered that
the relevant financial statements have been prepared in
compliance with the applicable accounting principles and
requirements of the Stock Exchange and disclosures have
been fully made.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHAN Hiu
Fung Nicholas, Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel and Mr. NG
Shung and one executive Director, namely Mr. MAK Chin
Pang, and is chaired by Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas.

Under its terms of reference, the primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management
of our Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to (i) review the remuneration
policy of the Group; (i) assess the performance of executive
Directors with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives; (i) review the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management of the Group;
and (iv) make recommendations to the Board on respective
remuneration packages.

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors
and five highest paid individuals are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021. The range of remuneration of the senior
management are as follows:

Range of Remuneration

¥ E
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ARrlFMEZEe(FMEESDH =%
BIUFNTESTREELL - BXRHK
BEREBEEENR—BRTEZTERE
AR YHRBEERLEEEER -

REBESLE FHZESNTIERES
SRINBEERNAKREEERERE
BREZHMAE  JEA N H R 2 5

ET
A

RBE-_Z-_—F+_A=1+—HILFE -
FWZEEeRTT—XREeE  UNO)EMAK
EENFHMEER: (N2ELEXEEERR
EERTESENRR: (I BERAEE
ERRTEERSREE BN NETE
RivitB@FHEERnESeiRbES -

EBRARREZR A& &S AL 5B
MEBEHERNEE T —F+__A=+—
BUEFEEZAVBHRRMEI - SRERE
Bz MeEEmT :

Number

of Senior
Management
EREEEAY

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

Z % 7T 1,000,000 7T
1,000,001;% 7T &1,500,0007 7T
1,500,001 7t 2,000,000 7T 2
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel, Mr.
CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas and Mr. NG Shung and one
executive Director, namely MAK Chin Pang, and is chaired by
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel.

Under its terms of reference, the primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to our
Board on the appointment and removal of our Directors. In
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
and maintaining diversity on the Board, where necessary,
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

Pursuant to Director nomination policy of the Group, the
Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following
selection criteria, procedures and process for nomination of
Directors:

()  The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
factors when nominating potential candidates for the
appointment and reappointment of Directors:

° whether the individual’s educational background
and qualification, skills and experience are relevant
to the Company’s business model and specific
needs;

° the individual’s character and reputation for
integrity;

° whether the individual would be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;
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° In respect of appointment and reappointment of
independent non-executive Directors, to consider
the independence of the individual with reference
to the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules;

° how the individual would be able to contribute to
the diversity of the Board with reference to the
factors set out in the Board diversity policy of the
Company from time to time in force; and

o Board succession planning considerations.

(i)  The Board or the Nomination Committee shall deploy
such channel(s) for identifying suitable director
candidates as it deems appropriate, including
but not limited to referrals from existing Directors,
Shareholders, advisers and third party agency firms and
advertisements.

(i) The Nomination Committee shall adopt such process as
it deems appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
potential candidates, such as interviews, background
checks and third party reference checks, and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals to be nominated for directorships based
on the selection criteria set out in paragraph (i) above.

(iv) The ultimate responsibility for the selection and
appointment of Directors shall rest with the entire
Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Nomination
Committee held one meeting to (i) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board; (i) make recommendations
to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors; (iii) assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and (iv) review its own performance, constitution and terms
of reference and recommend any changes if considers
necessary to the Board for approval.
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Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee of the Company (“Risk
Management Committee”) comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung
Nicholas, Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel and Mr. NG Shung
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Mak Chin Pang, and
is chaired by Mr. Mak Chin Pang.

Under its terms of reference, the primary duties of the Risk
Management Committee include, but are not limited to, the
following: (i) reviewing the risk management system of the
Group and ensure that the management has performed its
duties to establish an effective risk management system;
(i) formulating risk policies and standards; (iii) reviewing the
material risk exposures of the Group; (iv) reviewing annually
the changes in nature and extent of significant risks; (v)
reviewing annually the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risk management systems; (vi)
reviewing the Directors’ decisions on entering into hedge
arrangements; (vii) reviewing the effectiveness of the hedge
policy; and (viii) providing recommendations to the Board
on improving the hedge policy, where appropriate and if
necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Risk
Management Committee held two meetings to monitor the
risk management and internal control system by reviewing
major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters and response from management to these
findings.

Board Diversity Policy

In order to enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to
maintain the high standard of corporate governance, we have
adopted the Board diversity policy which is available on the
Company’s website. It sets out the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity of our Board. Pursuant
to the Board diversity policy, we seek to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors
when selecting the candidates to our Board, including but
not limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience,
knowledge, cultural, education background, ethnicity and
length of service. The ultimate decision of the appointment
will be based on merit and the contribution which the
selected candidates will bring to our Board.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring
the diversity of our Board members and review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board diversity
policy on an annual basis.

Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including, strategies and management planning, human
resources, administration, training, business development,
sales, material development, procurement, accounting and
corporate finance, engineering, information technology and
legal compliance. We have three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, representing
one third of the members of our Board. Taking into account
our existing business model and specific needs as well as
the different background of our directors, the composition of
our Board satisfies our Board diversity policy.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s diversified

composition was summarised as follows:

Gender

£ 5]

Age
F#e
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision in the CG Code.

During the reporting period, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this corporate governance report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

In order to ensure the internal control system operate
effectively, the Company has adopted a series of internal
control policies, procedures and self-assessments designed
to provide reasonable assurance for achieving objectives
including effective and efficient operations, reliable
financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. The Board reviews the risk management
and internal controls annually. Highlights of the Company’s
internal control system include the following:

Code of conduct — Our code of conduct explicitly communicates
to each employee our values, acceptable criteria for decision-
making and our ground rules for behavior.
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Internal audit — Our Group has its own internal audit team
which regularly monitors key controls and procedures in
order to assure our management and the Board of Directors
that the internal control system is functioning as intended.
The internal audit department carries out an annual risk
assessment on each identified audit area and revised an
annual audit plan according to the nature of business and
risk exposures. The audit plan is reviewed and agreed by
the Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of
work, the internal audit department conducts other review
and investigation work as may be required. The internal audit
department is also responsible for following up corrective
actions to ensure that satisfactory controls are maintained.
The Audit Committee receives summary reports from the
internal audit department periodically while the results of
internal audit reviews and responses to the recommended
corrective actions are also reported to the executive
Directors.

Compliance with Listing Rules — QOur various policies aim
to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules, including but
not limited to aspects related to corporate governance,
connected transactions and securities transactions by the
Directors.

Enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the
occurrence of non-compliance incidents — The Company
also adopted a number of enhanced internal control
procedures to prevent the occurrence of non-compliance
incidents.
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We have established a set of risk management policies and
measures to identify, evaluate and manage risks arising from
our operations. Our risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with our corporate
strategy, goals and objectives. Each of our operating
departments is responsible for identifying and analysing risks
associated with its function, maintaining a comprehensive
risk register, preparing risk mitigation plans, measuring
effectiveness of such risk mitigation plans and reporting
the status of risk management. Our Risk Management
Committee, Audit Committee and ultimately the Board
supervise the implementation of our risk management
policy at the corporate level by bringing together each
operating department, such as quality control, research and
development and sales, to collaborate on risk issues among
different functions.

The Board, through the Risk Management Committee and
Audit Committee, conducted an annual review of both design
and implementation effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, which covered
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance control for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Such annual review was done with a view to ensuring the
Group’s resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal control and financial reporting functions are
adequate. The Directors satisfied and confirmed that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information to ensure inside information remains confidential
until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is
efficiently and consistently made. The Group is committed
to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or
misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
disclosure of inside information in a balanced, adequate and
effective way.

The Group sets out written guidelines and procedures to the
employees or directors of the Group, while the employees or
directors of the Group undertake to ensure inside information
of the Group is not to be disseminated to the public unless
the Board decides such information is regarded as inside
information and requires disclosure in accordance with
the Listing Rules and the Securities and Future Ordinance.
Measures are in place to preserve the confidentiality of inside
information and to ensure that its recipients recognise their
obligations to maintain its confidentiality. In communicating
with external parties, only designated officers are authorised
to respond to enquiries in allocated areas of issues. The
written guidelines and procedures will be subject to be
reviewed by the Company as and when it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$2.1 million
and approximately HK$0.8 million respectively, details of
which are set out below:
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FHET

Audit Services Bz R 2,120
Non-audit services (mainly represented interim EEZRF(EBRETFKE

review and taxation services provided by SRR EBET R HEE A A
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliates) R EER R SRS 820
Total Bt 2,940

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WONG Hung Pan has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”).
He is an employee of the Group and have day-to-day
knowledge of the issuer’s affairs. His biography is set out in
the section of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary on corporate governance and
Board process. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company Secretary had attended not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels. To safeguard Shareholders’
interests and rights, separate resolution should be proposed
for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange
after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting
by the Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association (the
“Articles”), the Board may whenever it thinks fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”). EGM shall also
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

A Shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company at 21/F, Kings Wing Plaza 2,
No. 1 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, New Territories,
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
Shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/
she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put forward enquiries to the
Board at general meeting or send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: 21/F, Kings Wing Plaza 2, No. 1 On Kwan Street, Shek
Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Board/Company
Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director of the
Company

The Company adopts a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director of the Company. The following procedures are
subject to the Articles, the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and applicable legislation and regulation:

° If a Shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote
at the general meeting convened to deal with the
appointment or election of Director(s), wishes to
propose a person (other than himself/herself) for
election as a Director at that meeting, he/she may
lodge a written notice with the Company Secretary
at 21/F, Kings Wing Plaza 2, 1 On Kwan Street, Shek
Mun, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

° In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders
of that proposal, the written notice must state (i) his/
her intention to propose such person for election as
a Director, and (i) the biographical details of such
nominated candidate as required under Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules for publication by the Company
and be signed by the Shareholder concerned and the
person who has been proposed indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

° The period for lodgement of the above notice shall
be a seven-day (7) period commencing on a day
after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election of Director(s).
If the Directors should determine and notify the
Shareholders of a different period for lodgement of
the above notice, such period shall in any event be a
period of not less than seven (7) days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting.
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° Upon receipt of the above notice from a Shareholder
which is received after publication of the notice of
general meeting, the Company shall, prior to the
general meeting, publish an announcement or issue
a supplementary circular disclosing the particulars of
the proposed Director pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

Shareholders who have enquiries regarding the above
procedures may write to the Company Secretary at 21/F,
Kings Wing Plaza 2, 1 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s website (www.gpp.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of
the Company to the Shareholders, other stakeholders
and investors. The Company will also update the website
information from time to time to inform Shareholders and
investors of the latest development of the Company.

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company is endeavours to maintain
an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular,
through AGM and other general meetings. At the AGM,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to
meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

In preparation for the Listing, the Company has adopted
the Articles pursuant to a special resolution passed by
the Shareholders on 20 December 2019. Since then, the
Company has not made any changes to the Articles. An
up to date version of the Articles is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report, there is no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends. Our Directors may recommend a payment
of dividends after taking into account, among others,
our operations and earnings, capital requirements and
surplus, general financial condition, contractual restrictions,
capital expenditure and future development requirements,
Shareholders’ interests and other factors which they may
deem relevant at such time. We expect to pay a dividend in
respect of each financial year of not less than 30% of our
distributable profits each year. The payment and amounts of
dividends, if any, depend on our results of operations, cash
flows, financial position, statutory and regulatory restrictions
on the dividends paid by us, future prospects and other
factors which we consider relevant. Holders of our Shares
will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according
to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the
shares. The declaration, payment and amount of dividends
will be subject to our discretion. The proposed payment of
dividends is also subject to the absolute discretion of the
Board and any declaration of final dividend for the year will
be subject to the approval of our Shareholders. The Board
will review the dividend policy on an annual basis.

Any distributable profits that are not distributed in any
given year will be retained and available for distribution in
subsequent years. To the extent profits are distributed as
dividends, such portion of profits will not be available to be
reinvested in our operations.
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REPORT OF THE

The Board herein presents their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 155.

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final
dividend at the rate of HK11.0 cents per share amounting
to approximately HK$58.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which is expected to be paid on or around
Friday, 24 June 2022 to all persons registered as holders of
shares of the Company on Friday, 17 June 2022, subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the AGM to be held on
Wednesday, 8 June 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a
discussion on the prospect of the Group’s future business
development, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Group are shown in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Financial
Highlights” and “Financial Summary” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group has
endeavoured to strictly comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. The Company
recognises the importance of environmental protection.
The Company is committed to providing an eco-friendly
energy environment for our staff and has developed energy
conservation and carbon reduction policy so as to minimise
negative environmental impacts. The details are set out in
the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the financial year, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by our Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We fully understand that employees, customers and vendors,
and other stakeholders (together “Stakeholders”) are
the key to our sustainable and stable development. We
are committed to maintaining a good relationship with our
Stakeholders so as to ensure our continuing development.

The Group regarded our staff as the most valuable
assets of the Company. The Group is providing a fair and
harmonious workplace where individuals with diverse
cultural backgrounds are treated equally. The Group offer
a reasonable remuneration package and fair opportunities
for career advancement based on employees’ performance.
The Group also provides our staff with different training,
including on-the-job training and training courses provided
by professional organisations in order to enhance our staff’s
career progression.

The Group believes that our vendors (including
subcontractors) are equally important in business operation
and development. We proactively communicate with
our vendors to ensure they are committed to delivering
high-quality and sustainable output.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for each of the last five financial years is set out in the
section headed “Financial Summary” of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$547,000 (2020: HK$551,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 20 December 2019 (“Share Option Scheme”), no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders unless otherwise as required
by the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FEGHE

MBEHE
AEERBERABYRFRESFZES
EENRAEMEINAFRIMEHE
—fi o RMEBIL A EURERSEE MK
BRZ2—8D -

ME BERKRE
AEFEHE_ZT_—F+_A=+—H1t
FEMNYVE BMEMXREZEIHFBIHN
RAE VSR ERMEES o

B

HE_ZT-_—" &+ _-_A=+—HILH
B AEEEERNEEREMBROE
547,000/ 7T (ZE ZF 4 : 551,000/ 7)) °

ZEHBHE
BRAABRZE—NF+_AZ+HEM®
mERETE(ERESEDN B E
—E--—F+-A=+-ALEE 4%
B EmET LA FEEABREHOE -

B 2
HE_T-_—F+-_A=+—HILEE
KRB ASLHFBIARNGET KRR
M 5E16 ©

BrRBERE

MRS B 8 B B D RDA 1 EEA RE A
NEARLABRERREEHRMBZ
BEBBREG BBIXASERES
5 -

BE LEHEREARATF
& &
E-P-—F+-A=+-BLEE
ARFRHEMHBATEEBE - L
SMEEMART M LB -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F%§

69



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company may pay dividends out of share premium,
retained earnings and other reserves. As at 31 December
2021, the Company’s reserve available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$142.3 million.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
61.6% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately
22.0%.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 37.1% of the total purchases for the year
and purchase from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 15.1%.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, subcontracting
fees charged by the Group’s five largest subcontractors
account for approximately 83.5% of the total subcontracting
fees for the year and the subcontracting fee charged by
our largest subcontractor included therein amounted to
approximately 26.6%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the Group’s five largest customers, suppliers and
subcontractors during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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BANK BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowing of the Group as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the qualification as
Shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on 8 June 2022, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 2 June 2022
to Wednesday, 8 June 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 1 June 2022, being the last share registration
date.

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend (subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the AGM), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 15 June 2022
to Friday, 17 June 2022, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
qualify for the entitlement to the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company are required
to lodge all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 June 2022.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the reporting period
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Wan Wai (Chairman)
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny

Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas
Ms. HUI Li Kwan

Mr. MAK Chin Pang

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Hiu Fung Nicholas, mMH, JpP
Prof. CHENG Man Chung Daniel, BBS, MH, JP
Mr. NG Shung, JpP (Australia)

In accordance with Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles,
Mr. Chan Hiu Fung Nicholas, Prof. Cheng Man Chung
Daniel and Mr. Ng Shung shall retire by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all independent non-executive Directors,
and still considers them to be independent as at the date of
this annual report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the existing Directors of the Company
are set out in section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Promoting good corporate governance and managing
enterprise wide risk is a priority of the Company. The
Company convinced that corporate governance and directors
and officers liability insurance (the “D&O Insurance”)
complement each other. The Company has arranged
appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against Directors
and senior management arising out from corporate activities.
The D&O Insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has been appointed
for a term of three years subject to the provision of retirement
and rotation of directors under the Articles. Either party has
the right to terminate the service agreement by giving not
less than three months’ written notice to other party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a term of three years at an annual remuneration
set out in their appointment letters subject to the provision
of retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles.
Either party has the right to terminate the service agreement
by giving not less than one month’s written notice to other

party.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM have entered into service contract with
the Company which are not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 9 and note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements, there were no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or a connected entity of a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year, nor were there any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries for the year. There were also no contracts of
significance between the Company or one of the subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company (which is not a contract of service with any
Director or any person engaged in the full time employment
of the Company) were entered into or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group had a total of 2,568 (31 December 2020: 2,333)
full-time employees as at 31 December 2021. The Group’s
employee benefit expenses mainly included salaries, over
time payments and discretionary bonuses, other staff
benefits and contributions to retirement schemes. For
FY2021, the total staff costs of the Group (including the
Directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$362.4
million (FY2020: approximately HK$300.0 million).

The remuneration policy of the Company is reviewed
regularly, making reference primarily to the market
conditions and performance of the Company and individual
staff members (including the Directors). Remuneration
packages include, as the case may be, a basic salary,
Director’'s remuneration, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of
our Group and individual performance. During the financial
year, the remuneration policy and remuneration packages of
the Directors and senior management are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, with consideration
given in regard to experience, duties and responsibilities,
performance and achievement of the individuals, with
reference to the market condition in relation to the Group’s
performance and profitability.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws
and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own dishonesty,
wilful default or fraud.

During FY2021, the Company has taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought
against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and/or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of our Company in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”) which
will be required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to in that section,
or which will be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be
notified to our Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of

the Company

Name of Directors and
chief executives

EERTETHAEES
Mr. CHENG Wan Wai
HiRELEE
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth
15 8% 8 5t A&

Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny

B2 AR 2z +

Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas
RBRE

Ms. HUI Li Kwan
FFHME I

Mr. MAK Chin Pang

BERES L

Capacity/
nature of interest

B ENE

Interest in a controlled
corporationete 2
PR A B =

Interest in a controlled
corporation®ete 2
XA E R

Interest in a controlled
corporationete 3
P ] A B R (W

Interest in a controlled
corporationiete 4)
¥ 5132 B 4 2 v

Interest of spouse™ete 9
Fic 488 #E 25 (W o)

Interest in a controlled
corporation®ete 6
X1 A B e e

(i) &7

)

Number of
Underlying
Shares held

(Note 1)

FENEB
Bt BB

(B aE1)

310,353,954 (L)

310,353,954 (L)

64,706,046 (L)

19,950,000 (L)

310,353,954 (L)

3,990,000 (L)

AEBRERNER

Percentage of
shareholding

BEREDE

58.34%

58.34%

12.16%

3.75%

58.34%

0.75%
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Notes:

The Letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

The shares are held by Good Elite Holdings Limited (“Good Elite”),
the entire issued share capital of which is owned as to 50% by Mr.
CHENG Wan Wai and as to 50% by Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth.

The shares are held by Cypress Spurge Holdings Limited (“Cypress
Spurge”), the entire issued share capital of which is wholly-owned by
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny.

The shares are held by Dawn Gain Investment Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Wang Tao
Thomas.

Under the SFO, Mr. CHENG Wan Wai is deemed to be interested in
the same number of Shares held by Good Elite. Ms. HUI Li Kwan is
the spouse of Mr. CHENG Wan Wai. Under the SFO, Ms. HUI Li Kwan
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. CHENG Wan
Wai is interested.

The shares are held by Welcome Mark Investment Limited, the entire
issued share capital is wholly-owned by Mr. MAK Chin Pang.
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1. AXFELEZBALIRZEROTNOTR
(EERBFLHEERIIEXVE)

2. fi% 13 F Good Elite Holdings Limited ([Good
Elite D138 - E2 HEHTRABBBE KX
A K45 85 5 £ 9 BIHE B 50% &k50% °

3. & 17 B Cypress Spurge Holdings Limited
([Cypress Spurge) 55 + E2 2 & TR
AAEBERMZEE2EHE -

4, f% 19 EEDawn Gain Investment Limited# A -
H2RERTRAEMREELEREHRSR -

5. BEFEHFRBEGEY  BBELEEEHER
Good Elite#F B HERESBEMRO P HEE#EE ©
HFHNELLTABEREEENRER - REZS
RHEED  FHELTHBEARBEBEL
EMERSNBERDPEAER -

fi% {5 f Welcome Mark Investment Limited#¥
B H2HEBRTRABERIBELEZ2ER
E=]

o
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(ii) Long position in the ordinary shares of (i) HBLIEZERNER
associated corporations

Number of
Underlying
Shares
Name of Directors and Name of associate Capacity/nature held Percentage of
chief executives corporations of interest (et 1) shareholding
KENER
BExR gvig Q=]
FETBRAEERR HEEEE B SV $-1:3- (8 2£1) FRESH
Mr. CHENG Wan Wai Good Elite Beneficial owner 1(L) 50%
BB EEE EmERA
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth Good Elite Beneficial owner 1(L) 50%
15 858 % & EmERA
Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny Cypress Spurge Beneficial owner 1(L) 100%
B R 2+ ExnlEAA
Mr. CHAN Wang Tao Thomas Dawn Gain Investment Beneficial owner 1) 100%
Limited
[R &8 k& ExnlEAA
Ms. HUI Li Kwan Good Elite Interest of spouse 1(L) 50%
AAFIA R o B &=
Mr. MAK Chin Pang Welcome Mark Beneficial owner 1(L) 100%
Investment Limited
ERELE EnlAA
Note: B it -

1. The Letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part 1. EXFELUEZBATRZERMDTPNGTE
XV of the SFO) in such Shares. (EERBHRIBBHEBIIEXVER)
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at
31 December 2021.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or
debentures

Save for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates
had any interest in a business which competed or was likely
to compete with the business of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the following persons (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) or corporations who had
interests or short positions of in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which will be required, pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to in that section, or which will be required, to be notified to
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Name of
substantial Shareholders or
other persons Nature of interest
FTERRREMALTER EEME
l\/ls WONG Lai Ying Interest of spouseote2)
EEHLL B {8 18 25 (22
Good Elite Beneficial ownerNote 3)

BN HA AW

Cypress Spurge Beneficial owner®ete 4
Em A AW

Notes:

1. The Letter “l” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Under the SFO, Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by Good Elite. Ms.
WONG Lai Ying is the spouse of Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth.
Under the SFO, Ms. WONG Lai Ying is deemed to be interested in all
our Shares in which Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth is interested.

3. Good Elite is beneficially owned equally by Mr. CHENG Wan Wai and
Mr. YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth. Each of Mr. CHENG Wan Wai and Mr.
YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares that are held by Good Elite under the SFO.

4. Cypress Spurge is beneficially wholly-owned by Ms. LIU Shuk Yu
Sanny. Ms. LIU Shuk Yu Sanny is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares that are held by Cypress Spurge under the
SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021,
according to the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, there was no
person who had any interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20 December 2019, the Company adopted the Share
Option Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible persons for their contributions
to the Group. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in
compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and
up to 31 December 2021, no options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
Eligible Persons (as set out in below) (i) to optimise their
future contributions to our Group; (ii) to reward them for their
past contributions; and (iii) to attract, retain or otherwise
maintain on-going relationships with Eligible Persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be
beneficial to the performance, growth and success of the
Group.
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Eligible persons

The Board may, at its sole discretion, invite any director or
proposed director (including an independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group, any executive director
of, manager of, or other employee holding an executive,
managerial, supervisory or similar position in, any member
of the Group (an “Employee”), any proposed Employee,
any full-time or part-time Employee, or a person for the
time being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any
member of the Group (an “Executive”), a consultant,
business or sole venture partner, franchisee, contractor,
agent or representative of any member of the Group, a
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of the Group,
or an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of any
of the foregoing persons (together, “Eligible Persons” and
each an “Eligible Person”).

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to
have been accepted when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together
with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.0 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company within the period specified in the letter containing
the offer of the grant of the option. Such remittance shall in
no circumstances be refundable. Once such acceptable is
made, the option shall be deemed to have been granted and
to have taken effect from the offer date.

82 QP GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 &EZRERA A

BEBAL
EEeUsRBNBERAFAKEITMKE
REAZEMNESHEZES (BRBIUIF
HITES) EARTES  KEHERN
SEERAKEAREETHR B2 &
BRBUBMLcEMmEE(EE]) - EMA
EEEE TR FBEER HE
FAARNKEEITMKERARFEE2BHR
BTEZEMAT(TBRARD A&E
ERIKERRZER  XEHABERF
B FgeEn A8 KREBxK
R RAKEEMAMKERF R/
PR AR EREMRMARD - BERH
EXIHEMBRF2EALERE  E[ L
MALTZHEBEAERZR LT RANDGR
BRIGEBAL SR RIEGEKA
£]) -

EMWBREEY
EARRBIRNE A &2 KRR Kt
PIEENHBEARIBARAERNESE
MEZABRENRFEIA  ERAAR
ARXH ANERIOETIERERBER
BORER  ZRRONBERES KR
REEEM ZEXREEMFBER BT
BRE —RKEM BERESKESE
B YRROBHEERR -



Maximum number of Shares available for
subscription

The maximum number of Shares to be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (and under any other post-IPO share option scheme
of the Company) shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
Shares representing 53,200,000 Shares in issue immediately
after completion of the Global Offering and as at 16 January
2020 (the “Listing Date”) (“Scheme Mandate Limit”),
provided that the Company may at any time as the Board
may think fit seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit, except that the maximum
number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
(and under any other post-IPO share option scheme of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting
where such limit is refreshed. Options previously granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other post-IPO
share option scheme (including those outstanding, cancelled
and lapsed in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Share Option Scheme or any other post-IPO share option
scheme or exercised options under the said schemes of the
Company) shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the limit as refreshed. The Company shall issue a circular
containing the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(d)
and the disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing
Rules to the Shareholders. In addition, the Company may
seek separate approval from the Shareholders in general
meeting for granting options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that the options in excess of the Scheme
Mandate Limit are granted only to the Eligible Persons
specified by the Company before such approval is sought
and for whom specific approval is obtained. The Company
shall issue a circular to the Shareholders containing the
information required under Rule 17.03(3) of the Listing Rules.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, the maximum
number of Shares to be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Share Option Scheme (and under any other post-IPO
share option scheme of the Company) shall not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any one Eligible
Person (including exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. Where any further grant of options
to such an Eligible Person would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
which may be granted to such Eligible Person (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the Shares in
issue, such further grant shall be separately approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Person
and his associates or close associates (as the case may be)
abstaining from voting. The applicable requirements of Rule
17.03(4) of the Listing Rules shall be complied with.

The maximum numbers set out in this paragraph shall
be subject to adjustment in accordance with the lapse of
options but shall not in any event exceed the limits imposed
by Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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Grant of options to core connected persons

Insofar as and for so long as the Listing Rules require, where
any offer of an option is proposed to be made to a Director,
chief executive of the Company or substantial Shareholder
or any of their respective associates, such offer must first
be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who
is or whose associate is the grantee to whom the option
is proposed to be granted). Insofar and for so long as the
Listing Rules so require, no option may be granted to any
substantial Shareholder or independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates which would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted or to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme (and under any other share
option scheme of the Company) in the 12-month period up
to and including the date of board meeting for proposing
such further grant (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the share capital of the Company in issue; or (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares
at the date of the board meeting for proposing such further
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, unless such further grant
is approved by the Shareholders in general meeting. Before
seeking such approval, the Company shall issue a circular
containing such information as required by the Listing Rules
to the Shareholders. At such general meeting, the grant
of options to the substantial Shareholder or independent
non-executive Director or any of their respective associates
shall, for so long and insofar as the Listing Rules so required,
be approved by the Shareholders by way of poll with the
Grantee, his associates and all core connected persons of
our Company abstaining from voting, except that any such
person may vote against such resolution provided that he
has informed the Company of his intention to do so and
such intention has been stated in the relevant circular to the
Shareholders.
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Subscription price of the Shares

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of the grant of the relevant
option (and shall be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the option) but the subscription price shall not
be less than whichever is the highest of:

(i) the nominal value of a Share;

(i)  the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;
and

(i) the average of the closing prices of Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer
date. The subscription price shall also be subject to
adjustment in accordance with the reorganisation of
capital structure.

Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised, and the period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board
in its absolute decision. However, no offer shall be capable
of or remain open for acceptance after the expiry of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date.

Duration

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.
However, the Shareholders may by a resolution in general
meeting at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme.
Upon expiry or termination of the Share Option Scheme,
no further options shall be offered but in all other respects
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
full force and effect. All options granted before such expiry
or termination (as the case may be) and not then exercised
shall continue to be valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
In respect of any option granted, the Board may in its
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discretion determine the exercise periods, provided that such
period shall not be longer than 10 years commencing on the
commencement date of such report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the Board
confirms that the Company has maintained the public float
as required by the Listing Rules as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of
the Shares.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements. The transaction
related to the rental payment to a related party, which
constituted a de minimis connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, was fully exempt from the
requirements of reporting, annual review, announcement,
approval of independent shareholders and other relevant
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Other than the transaction mentioned above, the
Directors confirm that the related parties transactions did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company, which consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ng
Shung, Mr. Chan Hiu Fung Nicholas and Prof. Cheng Man
Chung Daniel, has reviewed, together with the participation
of the management, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements of the Group for FY2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there are no
significant events affecting the Group after FY2021 and up to
the date of this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. The Board has taken
the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a resolution for
their re-appointment as independent auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

There is no change of independent auditor in any of the
preceding three years.

By order of the Board
CHENG Wan Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL,

ABOUT THE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Q P Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) hereby publish the Environmental,
Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report (“Report”) of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”

r “We”) for the year ended on 31 December 2021 (the
“Reporting Period” or “FY2021”). This Report summarises
our policies, approaches and practices towards ESG
management to its stakeholders and enabling them to have a
better understanding about the progress and performance of
the Group’s ESG development.

Scope of Report

This ESG Report covers the Group’s business in paper
product manufacturing and printing of its headquarter in
Hong Kong and two key production plants at Dongguan
and Heshan in Guangdong Province of the PRC. The
Company will continue to review the scope of reporting
regularly according to our materiality principles and the key
stakeholders’ opinions, and will extend the scope in future if
necessary.

Overview of our ESG Management

The Group is a paper product manufacturing and printing
services provider. Like many other industry players, our
business and operations are highly intertwined with ESG
issues. We believe that sustainable practices in ESG help us
set the foundation for long-term success and value creation
for our stakeholders. Our ESG proposition and commitment
to sustainability in business development, manufacturing
operations, facility management,
management and community engagement are embedded in
our corporate culture, which is set out in our Vision, Mission
and Core Values below.

human resources

Vision
We are dedicated to becoming the industry’s most preferred
and trustworthy partner.
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Mission
— To create value for our stakeholders through innovation,
services excellence and products of the highest quality.

— To empower our people with competence and
professionalism, so they can take pride in work and
being part of our team.

— To contribute to the community by always acting with
integrity and care.

Core Values

— Integrity: We conduct our business in an ethical, faithful
and responsible manner. We pledge to live up to every
commitment we make and be accountable for every
step we take. Our values of integrity, honesty and
fairness are the fundamental building blocks of our
success. These values are not only key to everything
we have achieved so far, they also shape the way we
do business and define who we are.

— People: We treat everyone with respect and care, and
value the contributions and accomplishments of every
individual. Through continual training, development
and encouragement, we empower our people on their
journey by providing support and resources to help
them grow and achieve both their own goals and ours.

—  Professionalism: Our professionalism, as reflected in our
everyday decisions, embraces an unfailing commitment
to precision, accuracy and efficiency, the relentless
pursuit of product quality and service excellence, and a
tireless passion to exceed our customers’ expectations.

— Care: As a responsible corporate citizen, QP cares
for both the well-being of the next generation and the
long-term health of the planet. We adopt a proactive
approach to supporting the communities from which we
take our strength, and manage our daily operations in
accordance with proven green principles.
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Our ESG Management Structure

The Group adopts a top-down management approach to
ESG management. The Board is responsible for overseeing
the management of the Group’s ESG issues, which includes
formulating and reviewing ESG policies, strategies, directions
and priorities; evaluating ESG risks and opportunities;
administering and reviewing our ESG performance,
effectiveness and internal control; and approving ESG
reports and relevant disclosures. We have also established
an ESG working group which is comprised of department
heads of administration, human resources, material sourcing,
production, sales and corporate communications. The
working group is in charge of the identification of major ESG
risks, formulation of sustainability targets, implementation
of sustainable practices and evaluation and reporting of
sustainability performance in different areas of business
operations according to their materiality, expectations of
top management and stakeholders and relevant regulatory
requirements. The working group also coordinate and
supervise ESG issues,
key performance indicator targets and make appropriate
adjustments in the light of business developments of the
Group. Through regular reports from and meetings with
the working group, the Board reviews the Group’s targets
and performance from time to time to address potential
risk, evaluate our ESG standards and seek continuous
improvement.

regularly review the progress of

The Board is fully aware of the increasing demand for good
corporate sustainability practices that can benefit both a
company’s commercial success and public interest. Under
the leadership of the Board, the Group will continue to
step up efforts and resources in different ESG aspects to
build more sustainable and equitable business operations.
As a manufacturer, we will particularly focus on improving
our performance in environmental and operational aspects
including emission and waste management in the coming
years, which are all inextricable parts in our daily operations
and may potentially lead to intensive and extensive impact, to
meet the heightened regulatory standards and expectations
of stakeholders. Details of relevant policies, strategies and
targets are set forth in later sections of this report.
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Reporting Standard

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(‘ESG Reporting Guide”). The Board has acknowledged
its responsibility to oversee the Group’s sustainable
development and review the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of this report.

This report was prepared following the four principles
suggested in the ESG Reporting Guide.

Materiality — Materiality assessments are carried out to identify
material environmental and social issues that have major
impacts on the Group and its significant stakeholder groups.

Quantitative — Key performance indicators and improvement
goals are measurable and are reported in a quantitative way
with narrative and comparative data where appropriate.

Balance — The ESG performance of the Group is reported
in an objective and fair manner without the inappropriate
use of selections, omissions or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the
report reader.

Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies are adopted
to assess key performance indicators which allow meaningful
comparisons of relevant data over time. Any changes to
the methodologies or any other relevant factors affecting a
meaningful comparison will be disclosed in this Report.

Contact and Feedback

The Group values your feedback on this Report and
our ESG performance.
suggestions, please feel free to contact us via email at
investorrelations@qgpp.com.

If you have any comments or
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

By thoroughly considering the individuals and parties
that may affect or be affected by the operations of the
Group, the Group identified six significant stakeholder
groups, including governmental/regulatory organisations,
shareholders/investors, employees, customers, suppliers
and community partners. The Group maintains a close tie
with these significant stakeholder groups to understand
their expectations and concerns through regular and
effective communication channels, including but not limited
to the general meetings, annual and interim reports, press
releases, social services and charity works, seminars and
interactions in daily operations. We strive to balance their
expectations and concerns when assessing and determining
our ESG directions. The Group ensures that the relevant
risk management measures and internal control systems
are operating effectively. The following table shows the
management response to the expectations and concerns of
the six significant stakeholder groups.

EXPECTATIONS AND
CONCERNS
MEREXR

STAKEHOLDERS
B &

Government/ > Compliance in laws and
regulatory regulations
organisations BRARRER >
B/ SEkE > Fulfill tax obligation
BORBELE

> Uphold integrity and compliance in operations

REEFRFHERAER

Establish comprehensive and effective internal

control system

eV IRS R §: 0l k- (ki Y

> Compliance with relevant laws, regulatory
requirements and industry standards
BFHEBER EERATRITERE

> Pay tax on time, and contribute to the society
EREARLOELS

B L BREARS

KhhESH
AREBRAZEAIETERIAEHE
EXENEANERE  FRHANEEX
HOEAR BREBN EE#E K
R/EE BT BF HEBRLE
BIERBH AKEBERFEERHNEE
BRFETBRE SETHREMNE
BREBRETRRERAS  FEM
hHRE  HER HERBREAST
F-MIEREERBER THRREN
HELETER EFELREERMD
RE d@hkEHTAE AR F
BREMNPEREE - NEEHERNAR
REREREEMlRSEFNRRZERE
MIET - TRINTEEEHNEER
Fip&EARMERBTHCE -

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
EEECDE
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EXPECTATIONS AND

STAKEHOLDERS CONCERNS MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
R & MEHEER EEEEE
Shareholders/ > Return on investment > Management possesses relevant experience
investors % & B3R and expertise to optimise the sustainability and
BRHEE > Information transparency profitability of the Group’s business
B BERE EREAAHBLRNERTE  BRAEEE
> Corporate governance system TR 45 B 1 & B F e
TEERHE > Regular information dissemination by publications
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company

FA Bk A2 BT KR 7R B 48 it T B 3% A AL

> Dedicated to business growth, risk management
and improvement in internal control
BOREBE K - BT 2N R B2l 2

Employees > Labour rights > Set up contractual obligations to protect
8T EThx employees’ rights and welfare
> Career development HEAHNEENREETIHSEHRER
xR > Encourage employees to participate in continuous
> Compensation and welfare education and professional training
B K48 A BEEI2EKEEHERFEEET
> Health and workplace safety > Establish a structural human resource evaluation
BEREIESHZE framework for staff development and promotion
BUKBUEANBERIGER REBIZERK
B

> Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration system
BYRNT aBMARFINEFBHER

> Enhance occupational health and workplace safety
level

RABERERIESMZ 2KT
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EXPECTATIONS AND

B L BREARS

STAKEHOLDERS CONCERNS MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
" & MEHEER EEEEE
Customers > High quality and safe > Maintain a high standard of product quality
zPE products RESEZENEMREE
BERLZEM > Provide customer service and product engineering
> Timely delivery solutions to satisfy customers’ specific needs
kERE REEFPRERERIERATR UREREP
> Reasonable pricing HREEE
BEREE > Formulate comprehensive quality assurance
> QOperational compliance process and recall procedures
BHRLEE HEEEMNEEREREMEEREF
> Ensure adequate production capacity and stable
operation for order fulfilment
BRRAEERNRBENEEATHEE
> Ensure the performance of contractual obligations
BRBITEHNEL
> |mprove efficiency and cost-effectiveness of
operation and production
HELEREENAERKAN &=
> Ensure compliance with international standards
on quality, security, environment and social
responsibilities
BRETEE T2 BERMEEETHANE
PR AR 2
> Protect customers’ intellectual property rights
RAER P S ERE
Suppliers > Stable demand > Ensure the performance of proper contractual
R FRIBE obligations are in place
> Good relationship with the BRETHEESGHNRL
Company > Maintain an effective supply chain management

HEARRAMREFR i B 1R
> Corporate reputation
PEREE

system
RESHHEEEER R
> Establish and maintain strong and long-term co-
operating relationship with good quality suppliers
HeEHERR Y MREFEER BN ERE
> Ensure timely payment in accordance with
purchase contract

RARBERESORENK
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EXPECTATIONS AND

STAKEHOLDERS CONCERNS MANAGEMENT RESPONSE
R & MEHEER EEEEE
Community > Environmental protection > Establish an effective and efficient system for
ft & RIBRE disposal of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
> Community contribution BUAMARSRONBEEREZEENEEZRSK
it = & B > |Implement eco-friendly measures to reduce use of
> Economic development energy, water and paper
RpEE ERRER RO ERER  KRAR
> Perform periodic third-party environmental
assessments

THETE=TREFNME

> Contribute to the community through donations to
registered charities
BAMAMASREBRN  EHLE

> Encourage employees to participate in charitable
activities and voluntary services
BEETI2NEEEHRETRE

> Maintain a good and stable financial performance
and business growth
RERFEIRENHBEENIBKER
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MATERIALITY MATRIX

The Group has evaluated a number of environmental, social
and operating criteria and assessed their significance for the
Group and its stakeholders. This assessment helps us ensure
that the Group’s business objectives and development
direction are in line with the stakeholders’ expectations and
requirements. The Group’s and stakeholders’ matters of
concern are presented in the following materiality matrix:

L
a
>

an

Importance to Stakeholders Medium

HESENEEN H

Low

&

Low

&

< Environmental
¢ BEIE

B HBREARE

EEMER
AEEEHEZRRE e ERE -
THGEHARERERDENERN -
HEFHEAEDRMABRAEENRKA
FHEARTAENARNENHELER
Ko AKREEFNENBEEIFTHEINRN
ATNEZMERERE:

MATERIALITY MATRIX
EEMEE

Promotion opportunities
4 Staff compensation and
welfare policies

¢ EFtie
8 TEHERARMIBCR

Hazardous wastes and sewage
Occupational health and safety
Operational compliance
Product quality and safety
Customers' satisfaction level
Customer data protection and
privacy

Intellectual property rights
Anti-corruption

VY VVes

Veo vV

Compliance of environmental
laws and regulations
Talent management
Anti-discrimination
Protecting human rights
Training and development
Preventive measures for child
and forced labour

Vendor management
EFRBARER
AT ER

AR

REAE

SRR
BTIRARESTH
bi=laEi=ich
HERER

Community involvement

cseees o

Clean production
Use of raw materials
Rk AR

R

Medium High
th B
Importance to the Group
HAKENERM
¢ Employee > Operation
¢ BIFHE > ZEHE
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SUSTAINABILITY TARGETS AEERREREE

To ensure effective implementation of our sustainability AEFREREERMNAFERESR
strategies, the Board has formulated a set of 5-year targets = =€ 2 5 PEH - B BE - AE /ﬁ&*éf/ﬁ
of continuous improvement in the areas of emission, FHEMF ETLHE REERE S (@

BHT—ERFEE
HOTRIIERE - BFE BN
M

S| EREMNEE -
gl

waste reduction, efficiency of energy and water use, staff
development and community investment to guide our
planning, execution and evaluation in the long run. Details of
the targets are set forth below:

Status in 2021

5-year targets (2021 — 2025)

EFBR(= —FE-F-HF) ZER-FHRR
Emission Reduce greenhouse emission (tonnes CO,e Reduced by approximately
per HK$1 million of revenue) by 10.0%* 8.2%"
BER BRERBHAEM _SHREE B1EE | BERLHN82%
78 7T W 2 ) R 210.0%

Waste reduction

L RE

Reduce disposal of hazardous and non-
hazardous solid waste (tonnes/per HK$1
million of revenue) by 10.0%*

EENEEZREEWEE (WM _SILBEE
HF1H & B T ) 4 10.0%

Reduced by approximately 5.7%"

B #)5.7%"

Energy use efficiency

RE IR B8 3 A a8

Reduce electricity consumption (MWh/per
HK$1 million of revenue) by 15.0%*

HEOCKER, 818 88 lzs) R/ 415.0%

Increase the portion of renewable electricity
in overall eleotricity consumption to 15.0%

AIBAE N hEES S LHIHREFE15.0%

Reduced by approximately
8.4%"*

BB 4 418.4%"

0.0%*

0.0%*

Water use efficiency

Reduce hazardous and non-hazardous
wastewater (tonnes per HK$1 million of
revenue) by 5.0%"

Increased by approximately
4.3%™"

KERE R & EEREEEKW B1EEE TR 218 In494.3%
45.0%*

Staff development Increase the average training hours per 12.3 hours
employee per year to 20 hours

BI%RE BHREITEF T 57 BIE I E 20/ 12.3/ N

Community investment Increase our involvement in knowledge 936.5 hours

HERRE

sharing and charity work to 1,500 hours in
total per year

BERMARABREERASZTENAREIE
N E1,500/) B

936.5/)\

Based on 2020 benchmark
The Group is in the process of assessing the feasibility of installations
of renewable energy facilities in its factories and inviting for quotations

from vendors.

The increase in 2021 was due to the increase in use of water for
certain production processes. The Group is in the process of
reviewing those processes to improve the overall water use efficiency

in coming years.

- K=
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Management of emissions

The Group is mainly engaged in the manufacture and sale
of paper products including tabletop games, greeting cards,
educational items and premium packaging. We are fully
aware of the exhaust gas, wastewater, noise and various
wastes generated during our production process and daily
operation that bring a certain impact on the environment.
We believe that our long-term business growth and success
are closely linked to our efforts in maintaining environmental
sustainability and resources protection. Therefore, we are
committed to controlling our impact on the environment
through various means, including emission reduction,
efficient use of resources and fostering an environmentally
friendly culture in the workplace.

Our Environmental Management System (“EMS”) has
been certified with the international standard (ISO14001:
2015), which forms the basis for formulating the Group’s
environmental strategy and is fully implemented in all aspects
of our business operations. The Group’s environment-
related measures and work guidelines are formulated based
on the significant environmental factors and risks identified
in accordance with the EMS, with the aim of providing
employees with guidelines to follow in business operations.
In addition, the system precisely clarifies the environmental
responsibility of each position to motivate all employees to
work collaboratively.

During the Reporting Period, we were not involved in any
confirmed non-compliance incidents in relation to emissions
that had a significant impact on the Group.
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Management of exhaust gas and greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions

The production process of printing and paper products
(such as offset printing, silk screen printing, paper surface
treatment, etc.) and the daily operation of the factories
(such as the use of kitchen and vehicle) will generate
certain exhaust gases, including inorganic gases such as
benzene, toluene, xylene, volatile organic compounds and
hot exhaust gas. As a manufacturer in the printing industry,
we are obliged to comply with the “Emission Standard of
Volatile Organic Compounds for the Printing Industry (E /sl
TEEZEEERECESWEBIZZ) in the PRC. Therefore,
the Group strives to implement the measures stated in the
“Administrative Procedures for Emissions” to minimise the
emissions generated during the production process and
daily operation. Specifically, we adopt the following emission
control measures. Organic gases such as volatile organic
compounds are collected through gas collection hoods,
purified through ultraviolet photocatalytic facilities and
activated carbon absorption devices, and emitted at high
altitude in accordance with regulations, with emission levels
regularly measured. Inorganic gases such as carbon dioxide,
sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxides are first drawn out
through exhaust fans, discharged through dust collectors,
and then purified by eco-friendly air conditioners. In order
to further improve the management of volatile organic
compound emissions, we partially upgraded the volatile
organic compound treatment system of our Dongguan plant
during the Reporting Period to enhance the filtration capacity,
S0 as to effectively reduce the level of hydrocarbons to below
80mg/M? (2020: 160mg/M3). In addition, we maintain our air
purification treatment equipment regularly to ensure their
continuous and effective operation. We have installed a real-
time monitoring system at the exhaust vent of our Dongguan
plant to measure the parameters of volatile organic
compounds to monitor and control the gases emitted. Apart
from this, we also regularly examine the functionality of air
treatment facilities. Each year, we engage a qualified third-
party organisation to conduct external inspections to ensure
compliance with the emission standards of the “Air Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China (FEA R HFE KR ITEPR).
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG BREHAN XEENRERBHER
emissions amounted to approximately 21,641.21 tonnes of 2 A #21,641.210 — &btk & =2 ([ M
carbon dioxide equivalent (“tonnes COze”). The major GHG StREE]) BMHEBHFHNETER
emissions from our operations are from Scope 2 emissions, ZEREHMELEBE _HEHRE - 54
which account for approximately 21,235.28 tonnes COz2e 21,235.28M8 — At E E AN E R
or approximately 98.1% of the total emissions. Our major #J98.1% - HFIN T EZL R ZLMEBERER
air pollutants include nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides and SE1b¥ - ALY R BN Y - PR EH
particulate matter. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s AN AEBERN T EEZRSLEVHERE
major air pollutant emissions met the permitted level. FEFTFAKE -

[l & %

Type of pollutants

FRYER

Total GHG Emission Tonnes CO2e 21,641.21 20,911.784
REREBHERESE WE—|kixE 8

Scope 1 Emission! Tonnes CO2¢e 405.93° 346.064
#HEEERE W — S LiRE 2

Scope 2 Emission? Tonnes CO2e 21,235.28 20,565.72
& E 28 22 WS LiRE S

Intensity Tonnes COze per HK$1 million 15.57 16.974

of revenue
BE W — S LiRE 2

H1E &3 Tz

Nitrogen oxides Tonnes 0.34 0.28
E=RIek7) A
Sulphur oxides Tonnes 0.001 0.001
k=R 8
Particulate matter Tonnes 0.02 0.03
FE R 073
1 Scope 1 represents direct GHG emissions generated by the use of 1 HEEBBERAH £HARERBEE
gasoline, diesel and refrigerant. WEEAERBYNRE -

2 Scope 2 represents indirect GHG emissions generated by the use of 2 HEEBACTHAREEEMENRARNES
purchased electricity from local power companies. FFEANBEREREBIHENRE -

3 The increase was due to the increase in the use of refrigerant 3 ZENTTERBLBRER T _—F#TK
resulting from a large scale of maintenance for central air-conditioner Al e S EMBR B AL MATER -
was carried out in the Heshan plant during 2021.

4 Reasonable assumption was made to adjust the comparative figures 4 HRZZE_ZTFHNLEBETTE  WEELE
due to incomplete records in 2020. (i.e. using consumption average of ERSZIUNAZRLBHEFTEIEAEMA MDY
other months) T EREE) ©
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We are committed to continuously reducing the GHG
emissions generated from the Group’s operations and
ensuring our exhaust gas emissions meet the emission
standards of the “Air Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and the “Emission Standard
of Volatile Organic Compounds for the Printing Industry” GB
EPB DB44/815-201. At the same time, we have commenced
the certification of ISO 14064 for quantifying, reporting and
verifying GHG emissions, with emission items and standards
of data becoming more systematic and adhering to the
international standards. The certification will be completed
in 2022 with more systematic emission projects and
information data and standards. We will also review relevant
policies and measures from time to time and upgrade our
equipment where appropriate to further improve the Group’s
management of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas emissions.
The Group has set up a 5-year emission target (please refer
to reference section of “Sustainability Targets” for details)
and taken the abovementioned steps to achieve it.

Management of wastewater discharge

The Group complies with the “Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (4 ZE A
R #£FE K525 85%)", the “Discharge Limits of Water
Pollutants (7K;5 2% 8k JRBR{&)” and other applicable laws,
regulations and standards. We have formulated relevant
internal policies, procedures and various emission reduction
measures to effectively control and manage the wastewater
discharge of all facilities such as production plants, offices,
staff dormitories and canteens. We regularly maintain
wastewater treatment facilities and pipelines to ensure their
proper functioning and prevent leakage, thereby reducing
water wastage and secondary pollution to the environment.
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Hazardous wastewater

Hazardous wastewater generated from the Group’s operations
mainly includes wastewater produced from the cleaning
of printing blankets and machinery, laboratory wastewater
and wastewater containing air compressor oil. During the
Reporting Period, we upgraded the water reuse system in
the Dongguan plant to improve the reuse rate of wastewater
during production process and effectively reduce the discharge
of industrial wastewater. In addition, we have implemented
and enhanced relevant measures in different operational
departments, including the use of water recycling and filtration
system in the plate-making department to recycle water and
reduce wastewater, the purification of wastewater through our
wastewater treatment station, and the engagement of qualified
contractors to collect and recycle hazardous wastewater and
sludge with hazardous substances deposited in sedimentation
tanks. With a series of effective improvement measures
implemented during the Reporting Period, the hazardous
wastewater discharged by the Group was approximately 206.22
tonnes and the intensity of hazardous wastewater discharged
decreased by approximately 70.0% to approximately 0.15
tonnes per HK$1 million of revenue.

Non-hazardous wastewater

The non-hazardous wastewater produced in the Group’s
operations mainly includes domestic wastewater from
offices and staff dormitories, as well as oily wastewater
generated in canteens. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has complied with laws and regulations such as the
“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, and actively managed and enhanced
the management of non-hazardous wastewater. For oily
wastewater, our wastewater treatment facilities decompose
the oil residues so that the wastewater can fulfil the
relevant standard to be discharged together with domestic
wastewater. In addition, our factories are equipped with
domestic wastewater septic tanks to treat and discharge
wastewater to local sewage treatment plants. We conduct
regular inspections and maintenance on our wastewater
treatment facilities and water facilities, such as freshwater
pipes, to prevent any malfunction and avoid unnecessary
domestic wastewater due to water leakage. In order to
ensure our emissions meet the legal requirements, we have
installed a monitoring system at the water outlet to measure
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the relevant parameters of the discharged wastewater,
including pH value and electrical conductivity, in real time,
and transmit the data to the relevant local government
departments simultaneously. During the Reporting Period,
the non-hazardous wastewater discharged by the Group
was approximately 211,051.13 tonnes and the intensity
of non-hazardous wastewater discharged increased by
approximately 4.5% to approximately 151.86 tonnes per
HKS$1 million of revenue. The increase was due to the
increase in use of water for certain production processes.
The Group is in the process of reviewing those processes to
improve the overall water use efficiency in coming years.

We are committed to reducing the discharge of wastewater
generated from the Group’s operations. We plan to install
water recycling equipment in the Heshan plant and the
Dongguan testing laboratory to reduce the overall wastewater
discharge of the Group. We will also review the relevant
policies and measures from time to time and upgrade the
equipment in due course to further improve the wastewater
discharge management of the Group.

Management of solid waste disposal

We have formulated internal waste management procedures
to standardise the process of all waste treatment and
storage, and require strict implementation by our employees
to ensure that our waste disposal complies with relevant
laws and regulations, such as the “Law on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste of
the People’s Republic of China (4 % A K L 15 E 52 BE ¥
FRIRIE PG JAX). We have also signed undertakings with
the relevant local governments to strive for excellent waste
management. The Group strictly complies with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (F#EA K HEXMBEIRIRR#E L) and the
“Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China (FEZEARLMBEIIRERER E). We pay close
attention to the updates in national and local environmental
protection laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group was not involved in any breaches of relevant
laws and regulations in relation to generation and discharge
of hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste that had a
significant impact on the Group.
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Hazardous solid waste

Hazardous or harmful solid wastes refer to the waste items
on the National Hazardous Wastes Catalog. Chemicals
are inevitably consumed during our production. In order
to minimise the impact of chemicals on the environment
and comply with relevant laws and regulations, we have
established guidelines for hazardous waste treatment to
manage the handling, disposal, transportation, storage and
recording of toxic and hazardous substances, which are
stored in properly labelled and sealed containers located in
assigned storage areas to avoid mixing with other wastes
and prevent secondary pollution. The hazardous wastes are
handled by qualified professional environmental agents.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s plants generated
approximately 200.13 tonnes of hazardous solid waste
and the intensity of hazardous solid waste generation has
decreased by approximately 12.7% to approximately 0.14
tonnes per HK$1 million of revenue.

Non-hazardous solid waste

Non-hazardous waste refers to waste that is not listed on
the National Hazardous Wastes Catalog, which can be
divided into “recyclable waste” and “non-recyclable waste”.
The Group endeavours to promote recycling. A4 paper
waste is reused in the production process and in office,
and recyclable waste, including waste paper, waste pallets,
waste hot foil paper, waste printing blankets and waste zinc
plates, are sold to recycling companies. We also set up
environmental protection zones in our plants, offices and
dormitories for waste separation and recycling to reduce
unnecessary waste disposal. We organise relevant training to
equip our staff with practical knowledge on waste disposal,
including colour labels for different types of recycled waste,
so as to facilitate our staff to contribute to solid waste
management. Non-recyclable waste mainly includes office
waste, daily domestic waste, kitchen waste, etc. They are
placed in non-recyclable garbage areas or garbage bins, and
are transported to the health department for handling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s plants generated
approximately 9,201.05 tonnes of non-hazardous solid waste
and the intensity of non-hazardous solid waste generation
was decreased by approximately 5.6% to approximately 6.62
tonnes per HK$1 million of revenue.
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We are committed to continuously reducing the solid waste
generated from the Group’s operations. We plan to upgrade
the relevant equipment and measures at both plants,
including using bag packaging in chemical handling to
reduce the use of plastic barrels or iron barrels, optimising
chemical packaging and increasing the recovery rate of
plastic barrels, reducing the use of rags, etc. We arrange
qualified contractors to collect and dispose of hazardous
solid waste and recycle all general solid waste generated
from our plants. We will also implement an incentive scheme
to further promote waste separation and recycling among our
employees and encourage them to practice environmental
protection in the workplace. We review relevant policies and
measures from time to time and upgrade our facilities in due
course to further improve the solid waste management of
the Group. The Group has set up a 5-year waste reduction
target (please refer to reference section of “Sustainability
Targets” for details) and taken the abovementioned steps to
achieve fit.

Management of noise

The noise produced during the Group’s operations mainly
comes from production machinery and equipment, vehicles
and forklifts. The Group strictly complies with relevant
laws and regulations, including the “Emission Standard for
Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary (T 2 1> 2 R R IR 15
IR B2 B RAZ #E ) (GB12348-2008 ) of the PRC, and entrusts
a third-party organisation to conduct annual inspection on
the noise conditions of the operating facilities. We control
the noise level and its impact on the environment through
planning the location of production workshops, prioritising
the use of low-noise equipment, regularly conducting repair
and maintenance on machinery and equipment and limiting
the whistling noise from vehicles and forklifts in the plant
areas. Meanwhile, we provide earplugs to employees who
need to work in a noisy environment to reduce the risk of
occupational hearing loss.

We are committed to continuously reducing the noise
produced during the Group’s operations. We aim to control
the noise produced during our operations to a level that
conforms to the standard of GB 12348-2008 Il in 2022. To
this end, we plan to optimise the layout of factory workshops
to reduce the noise affected areas. We will review relevant
measures from time to time to further improve the Group’s
noise management.
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Management of resources utilisation

The Group attaches great importance to the effective
management and use of energy and resources. The energy
and resources used in the Group’s operations mainly include
gasoline, diesel, electricity, water and paper. The Group has
formulated and implemented various policies with respect to
energy and resources management based on the principle of
“reduction at source”, and strictly complies with the “Energy
Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF %
AR FEFEE L EJRE)”, the “Water Law of the People’s
Republic of China (% A K £ MBI 7K %) and other relevant
laws and regulations on resource conservation. The Group
is committed to continuously improving the energy and
resources management of various facilities of the Group
and reducing the impact of our business operations on the
environment. Adopting the ISO50001 energy management
system, we identify and evaluate the major sources and
use of energy and resources annually. We implement a
number of relevant measures in the production departments,
offices, staff dormitories, canteens and other facilities. We
also promote the knowledge and awareness of resource
conservation among employees, encourage them to make
full use of resources, maximise their efficiency and eliminate
the waste of resources. Every year, all relevant departments
formulate plans to boost energy efficiency to achieve the
Group’s overall energy conservation goals. Our measures for
the efficient use of resources are as follows:
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Energy conservation
Electricity saving

Electricity is the major energy consumed in the Group’s
business operations. Therefore, we strictly comply with the
“Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PFEAREMBIE AR E)” and other applicable laws
and regulations, and implement a series of energy-saving
measures to enhance the Group’s electricity management
and reduce electricity consumption. We have installed an
online energy monitoring system in our production plants to
obtain real-time data of electricity consumption from different
control points, mainly including printing machines, die-cutting
machines, surface finishing machines, air-conditioning and
lighting, and our administrative department is responsible
for monitoring and analysing the data and taking action in
case of abnormal situations. During the Reporting Period,
we reduced the need for air-conditioning in production
workshops in our Dongguan Plant by consolidating their
layouts and production processes. Based on our internal
estimation, approximately 119,000 kWh of electricity can be
saved per month. We also actively adopted more energy-
efficient electrical appliances and replaced old equipment,
including replacing the UV oven with LED oven, and is able
to save approximately 51,600 kWh of per month. We also
actively promoted energy-saving and consumption reduction
policies and enhanced relevant awareness among employees
to establish good electricity consumption habits.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
approximately 26,470.16 MWh of electricity in its operations.
The intensity of electricity consumption was decreased by
approximately 8.4% to approximately 19.05 MWh per HK$1
million of revenue during the Reporting Period.

We plan to replace transformers and air compressors in
power distribution rooms, upgrade central vacuum air supply
systems and install photovoltaic power generation devices.
The Group has set up the 5-year energy use efficiency
targets (please refer to reference section of “Sustainability
Targets” for details) and taken the abovementioned steps to
achieve them.
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Conservation of gasoline and diesel

Gasoline is mainly used for vehicles, while diesel is mainly
used for forklifts (fork lift trucks) in our plants. The Group has
formulated various conservation measures to regulate the
use of gasoline and diesel, including regular inspection and
maintenance on vehicles and forklifts by the administrative
department to ensure their energy efficiency and prevent
unnecessary fuel consumption and exhaust emissions due
to mechanical failure, and requiring drivers to plan the most
efficient driving routes in advance and turn off the engine
when idling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
approximately 45,499.08 litres of gasoline and approximately
23,512.08 litres of diesel in its operations. The intensity of
gasoline consumption decreased by approximately 3.0%
to approximately 32.74 litres per HK$1 million of revenue
and the intensity of diesel consumption increased by
approximately 9.1% to approximately 16.92 litres per HK$1
million of revenue during the Reporting Period. The increase
in use of diesel was due to the increase in use of diesel
forklifts as a results of manpower reduction of the warehouse
of Dongguan plant during the Reporting Period. We plan to
replace gasoline vehicles and diesel forklifts with electric
vehicles or forklifts to reduce the use of mobile fuel in
coming years.

Energy consumption

B L BREARS
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Direct Energy — Mobile Fuel Gasoline Litres

HERER - BBRH 7T H NT+
Diesel Litres
5 i AT

Indirect Energy Electricity MWh

] % 82 R A= JK I ¥

45,499.08 41,620.37
23,512.08 19,113.40*
26,470.16 25,620.83

*

Reasonable assumption was made to adjust the comparative figures
due to incomplete records in 2020. (i.e. using consumption average of
other months)
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Water conservation

We understand the importance of water resources to
production and daily life. Water used in our production
process is mainly related to the printing process. In order to
reduce water consumption in production and increase the
utilisation rate of water resources, we have installed a water
reuse system and a water recycling and filtration system in
our production plants to recycle and reuse wastewater in the
production process. We also conduct regular inspection and
maintenance on water facilities, such as freshwater pipes
and water dispensers to avoid water leakage.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s water consumption
in operation was approximately 211,257.35 tonnes and the
intensity of water consumption was increased by approximately
4.3% to approximately 152.01 tonnes per HK$1 million
of revenue. The increase in water consumption intensity
was mainly due to the increase in use of non-hazardous
wastewater during the Reporting Period. Such increase was
explained in reference section of “Management of Emission
— Non-hazardous wastewater”. We plan to conduct water
balance tests, install more water meters, use water-saving
appliances look for room for water-saving, and collect
rainwater for greening purpose, etc. The Group has set up
a 5-year water efficiency target (please refer to reference
section of “Sustainability Targets” for details) and taken the
abovementioned steps to achieve it.

£ 49 A 7K
BPIRAKERERNEEMBELED
EEZE -LEBETNAKEIESRE
RITHF BRIV EERK BRRKER
MAXR  BARLEERELZETKEH
EGEKBERERBRRG  BREBBLE
BEPAREK - HAFITE H A KRE (N
RIKE BRFUKHE) EITE HRE M EE -
PA M B IR R KIE R ©

RBEHA  AEBEEEPHNFEKE
A #9211,257.35M8 + FEK 2 [E 18 N £94.3%
EH1EEB TR IEH152.010F - BKE
EEMOETEARESHRNEEZREKER
=M BEERERE R RN ER —
BEBKINEEESELRRE - B M5
EEmAKEGAR - Bk A
KXAEBA  WERKELZIEAKSE - K
SEERTERFKERE AU =B R (G
BE2HAUFEXREE]—&) X2
KR b B RERZERE o

Water Consumption Tonnes
RKE ]

Water Consumption Intensity
revenue

RKEE M/ B1E BB TS

Tonnes per HK$1 million of

211,257.35 179,657.24*

152.01 145.75*

Reasonable assumption was made to adjust the comparative figures
due to incomplete records in 2020. (i.e. using consumption average of
other months)

The water used in all of the Group’s plants and offices is
supplied by the local water supply department. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any issue in
water supply.
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Paper for production

Paper is the major raw material used in the Group’s
production. We have established internal policies and
procedures to regulate the process of raw material
procurement, usage, storage and quality inspection to
procure paper that meets the production and quality
requirements (please refer to reference section of “Supply
Chain Management” for details). The purchase and
distribution of paper are according to the production plan
that developed based on demand. Through our product
engineer’s analysis and calculation, we ensure to maximize
the utilisation of paper that help to reduce consumption.
We generate monthly reports on paper consumption and
conduct analysis and assessment on the purchase, usage
and production scrap rate, to ensure effective control
of paper consumption. During the Reporting Period, the
Group consumed approximately 32,305.87 tonnes of
paper for production. The intensity of paper consumption
for production was decreased by approximately 11.6% to
approximately 23.25 tonnes per HK$1 million of revenue
during the Reporting Period.

Office paper

We are committed to building a “green office” and adopt a
series of measures to reduce the use of printing paper. We
assign printing permissions according to job requirements
and preset printers to duplex printing mode. We make
full use of paper that has been used on one side for
photocopying or printing, have up recycling bins in place to
collect paper used on both sides and deliver it to qualified
recyclers for handling. Some of the waste paper produced
in the production process is reused in the office. We also
encourage employees to send documents in the electronic
form whenever possible to reduce printing. During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s office paper consumption
was approximately 12.60 tonnes. The intensity of office
paper consumption was decreased by approximately 31.1%
to approximately 0.009 tonnes per HK$1 million of revenue
during the Reporting Period.
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Use of packaging materials

Carton boxes and cardboards are the major sources of
our packaging materials. In order to promote recycling,

we provide options of recyclable packaging materials to
our customers. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
total packaging material used for finished products was
approximately 3,456.02 tonnes. The intensity of packaging
materials used for finished goods was decreased by
approximately 12.5% to approximately 2.49 tonnes per HK$1
million of revenue during the Reporting Period.

BEMB®E S
MEREREBEMEEMENEERR -
AEBEKBER BEMARFREEFEA
RS EMBREE RFEHA -
AEERKBFTAEREMENBENS
3,456.02MF - B n BT A B KM & E B
BERLHN1%EFIEEBS TR ELD
2.49MF o

Packaging Materials Consumption Tonnes 3,456.02 3,503.24
BREMEAE WA
Packaging Materials Consumption Tonnes per HK$1 million of 2.49 2.84
Intensity revenue
BEMHERTE WE,/B1E 8B TR
Environment and natural resources REREAER

We understand that cutting down trees for the production of
paper may cause long-term environmental disturbance to the
forest habitats and may affect the biodiversity of animals and
plants, soil fertility and water quality. Therefore, we use paper
certified by the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) in some of
our production to support sustainable forest management
practices, thereby protecting the forests and mitigating
our impact on the environment. We also encourage our
customers to use FSC-certified paper.
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Climate change

The Group’s principal places of operation, including
production plants and offices, may be exposed to climate
change or natural disasters such as floods, fires, hurricanes,
etc. In the event of such accidents, the Group’s business
operations may be affected, including plant operations, staff
safety, material supply, order delivery, etc. Therefore, we
have formulated policies and response procedures in respect
of the relevant disasters, implemented preventive measures
and took out insurance to enhance the Group’s capabilities
to respond to climate-related accidents and reduce their
impact on the Group’s operations and finances.

EMPLOYMENT

Employees are our most valuable assets. One of the
Group’s core values is to treat our employees with respect,
care, support and empowerment. The Group is an equal
opportunity employer. We are committed to providing
equal opportunities in all aspects of employment including
recruitment, remuneration, training and promotion of
employees. Adhering to the principles of equality, diversity
and inclusion, the Group’s human resources policies
and practices are strictly compliant with the applicable
laws, which include but not limited to the Employment
Ordinance, the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, the Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance, and the Race Discrimination Ordinance and the
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF
AR KEMEL & RX).

RIR - g RERRE

Rix 21t
AEBETELEMH(BREERE LB
ER)GAIBEMmB KK - AKX BREAFR
REAXEAXETNHE - WHREL
SH - ARENEBEFEEIRIETE -
EEBFEEE BEIx2 YHEHE-
AERNEF - At HFERBEBEXE
HEBRREEERERF  $1TRIER -
W BRE - RIEARNEE S RXEBE
SEHHNESENRBEEHAEENE
BRVBHFE -

& 18

BEIRBMEEEMEE S TEILS
E-BEMIF UBHHEHIEREAEN
AEBHNZLEBEBEZ- - AKEATE
e BMNBNEEFENSHTEIR
HIEEHEe BEETINRE . FH-
BillRAB AEENANEREE K
BITEAMET IS - 2T R EROEREA -
WERBETEAEE  BREETRAE
1 16 B ~ CME B AR AR B ~ (52 R I 4R
i B « (R BEE /8 AL 1 AR 15 1) R (FF ik 1
BB ARCPEARKEMBE L FHE
[BED e

fin 4B

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 %% 113



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANGE REPORT
R - B RERWRE

As at 31 December 2021, our Hong Kong headquarter, R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H HZMHE
Dongguan plant and Heshan plant had a total of 2,509 B3 - REMEKE LUK E H£HE2,509
employees. All of them were contracted employees. Detailed ZEE 23 2454 EE - IR - F
breakdown of our total workforce by gender, age group, ##5 EFEEMBEIDHES &
employment type and geographical region is as follows: ARSI T

As at 31 December

Number of employee

EE#®H

Total e 2,509 2,249
By gender &R 8o

Male S 1,381 1,219
Female g 1,128 1,030
By age group RFERARE 2

Age 18-30 182 307K 466 389
Age 31-40 3152405 803 774
Age 41-50 A ENS0)+ 948 868
Age above 50 505% JA 292 218
By employment type BEEBENE S

Full-time =B 2,502 2,242
Part-time iy 7 7
By region % it & &l 5

Hong Kong office BERAE 92 75
Mainland plants A b B B 2,417 2,174
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s average turnover
rate was approximately 4.8%. Detailed breakdown of
our employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region is as follows:

Employee turnover rate

RIE - e NERWRE

RBEEHAR AEENHTFHORIAENR
4.8% o IR - Sk AR K it Em & 5 #)
BERREHAFINWT :

EBERALE
By gender &R &2
Male B 5.0% 3.3%
Female peg 4.4% 3.5%
By age group RERAERE D
Age 18-30 18 & 305K 12.9% 8.8%
Age 31-40 31E 405 3.2% 2.1%
Age 41-50 A1 E505% 2.5% 1.8%
Age above 50 505% A & 3.9% 3.1%
By region Zith = & 5
Hong Kong office BERA 1.5% 1.4%
Mainland plants A H B B 4.9% 3.5%
Note: the employee turnover rate is calculated by averaging the monthly i  BEERAREZFHEARKXRFE - FAR

turnover rates. Monthly turnover rate is calculated by the number of
employees who left the Group / average number of employees during
the months times 100%. Employees who left the Group within a
month of the commencement of their employment are not counted.

Compensation and benefits

We review employees’ remuneration packages with reference
to the comparable market level,
and the Group’s financial performance annually to ensure
our competitiveness in retention of high caliber employees.

employees’ performance

Employee remuneration includes basic salary, end of year
payment and discretionary bonus. In addition to the statutory
leave entitlement,
annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave and compassionate
leave. Apart from the statutory insurance schemes, eligible
employees are entitled to medical insurance and medical
check-up. In special occasions, the Group offers compassion
gifts to employees such as gift cheque for marriage and
condolence money.

our employees are entitled to extra

RERBAAEENEEAR ARFESE
B ABELA00%:TE - EETEABERN—E
AABEASETEAEER ©
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As a family-friendly employer, we are concerned about
employees’ family life and well-being. Our family-friendly
employment practices include five-day work week, which
allows employees not only to spend more time with their
families, but also get sufficient rest and develop personal
interests. We also allow flexible working hours and special
work-from-home arrangement for employees who are in
need of flexibility to balance their family obligations and work
duties.

To join hands with our employees and the society to combat
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group implemented a series
of new measures to maintain social distancing and facilitate
disease control. We followed the government’s appeal to
make work from home arrangement during community
outbreaks of COVID-19. We also allowed flexible working
hours and lunch hours if our Hong Kong employees preferred
to avoid the busy crowd during peak hours to reduce the risk
of virus infection. To promote vaccination, we offered extra
paid leave to employees who voluntarily participated in the
vaccination programme.

116 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED E£2&£EZERAR AT

ERXERERE RMABEIEENRK
EAEREL RPN RKERZRERES
BEREARTIER BEIAEZER
BHRA KERERMEAK - KM
EREME LRRAMEFFTEREYS
FEEEMTIHEBENEERIAERT
tEH) R BE -

AEEERUMEEFRE A5EEE
HE—RB M - ARIF A X BB R R
ERRES BRMEBERTTE &
COVID-19%t B B B HMELE AR TER
e MBEMNEEREFERHE LTS
e B P DRI 2 R R B - B R A T B
M ERREARTFRER - AEEEEE
EREMBETEREEEZEMNE TEN
BHBRE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

We attach great importance to occupational safety and
health, and are committed to creating a safe working
environment, so that all employees can receive the greatest
protection in the workplace. We strictly comply with the
occupational safety laws and regulations related to the
Group’s operations, including the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases (H # A K £ F BB 2 % 5 76)%)", the
“Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEAREFMBE A EZ 2 L) and the “Fire Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FF # A R 15 4 B
&) In order to achieve better safety risk management and
control, we have established an occupational health and
safety management system and has passed the international
standard of ISO45001: 2018 certification (an updated version
of the original OHSAS 18001: 2007 certification). We have
formulated and implemented a number of safety policies and
guidelines, safety objectives and work plans for different
areas, providing detailed and specific safety guidelines
to employees at all levels, standardising daily operational
practices and safety performance, and eliminating potential
risks as much as possible to prevent accidents. Safety
policies and guidelines, safety objectives and work plans
are regularly audited and reviewed by senior management.
Meanwhile, we also conduct internal safety audits annually to
review our overall safety performance.

In order to strengthen the Group’s governance in
occupational safety and health, the Group established the
Occupational Safety and Health Committee in FY2021, which
is led by the Executive Directors and has four functional
teams to review and supervise four important areas in
occupational safety and health, namely equipment safety,
inspection and emergency support, promotion and training,
and safety compliance. We also conduct occupational safety
and health management risk assessments on management
systems, equipment safety standards, job responsibilities,
training, culture promotion, reward and punishment systems
through third-party professional organisations to review
and improve the Group’s occupational safety and health
management in a more objective, comprehensive and
professional manner.
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Occupational safety in production operation

Identifying hazards and making improvements are the first
step to enhance occupational safety. Therefore, the Group
has established a hazard identification policy to set out clear
identification procedures. The identification work covers
various potential risks throughout the production chain
and the supporting departments. We actively conduct risk
assessment and prevention in all aspects of our production
operation. Considering that the Group uses a variety of
production machineries and equipments, and that machine
safety risks are common in occupational safety risks, we
have commissioned an independent third-party professiona
organisation to conduct a comprehensive machine safety risk
assessment on our plants, and introduced an assessment
system that conforms to the international standards, so as
to perform comprehensive review and achieve continuous
improvement in the long run. With the professional support
of that organisation, we have completed safety assessments
and formulated improvement plans for all machines at each
production site, including the addition of machine protective
devices and machinery maintenance, etc. We have also
established equipment safety standards as a regulatory
reference for daily safety inspection, maintenance and follow-
up of machines and equipment.
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In addition to machine operation, different departments and
processes in our production operation may also involve
other hazards. Therefore, the Group strives to take various
measures to minimise the safety risks to its employees. The
identified hazards also include the generation of dust and
noise, falling, contact with objects and equipment, use and
disposal of chemicals, etc. We have formulated and strictly
implemented working guidelines on the purchase, handling
and storage of chemicals to ensure that all chemicals used in
our plants are purchased from qualified chemical suppliers,
and all hazardous materials are stored in chemical storage
areas with restricted access and explosion-proof cabinets,
with surveillance devices in place to prevent accidental
leakage. We provide employees with qualified occupational
safety protective equipment, including safety shoes, gloves,
industrial noise reduction earplugs, filtering masks, safety
goggles, etc., to protect them from occupational hazards.
In addition, we have also set up a job safety responsibility
system, which sets out the grading criteria for inspection
management and promotes the implementation of various
occupational safety measures in the workplace through an
incentive system. At the same time, we employ qualified
safety officers to conduct internal safety inspections on
a daily basis to ensure the implementation of adequate
preventive safety measures and proper operations. We also
regularly engage external professional institutions to audit
and review hazard sources and risk management.

Safety training and emergency preparedness

Training is an indispensable part of building an occupational
safe working environment and culture. The Group strives to
provide occupational safety training courses and activities
to all employees to enhance their safety awareness and
enable them to acquire relevant practical knowledge and
qualifications. The scope of training includes occupational
health and safety management system, machinery safety
and operation, work permit system, use and storage of
chemicals, etc., aiming at enhancing employees’ professional
knowledge of hidden dangers and hazards in the workplace
and allowing them to apply such knowledge in production
operation. We have also arranged some of our operational
management staff to attend the Certified Machinery Safety
Expert programme and to develop them to be qualified
machinery safety professionals, so that they can carry out
daily inspections and follow-up on machinery and equipment
safety effectively.
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In addition to training, we have also formulated detailed
contingency plans to deal with fire, chemical leakage and
other emergency incidents. Emergency drills,
drills and chemical spillage drills, are held regularly.

including fire

Work injury and work-related fatalities

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded no
work-related fatalities and recorded a total of 680.9 lost
days due to work-related injuries. We deeply regret that
the Group recorded one work-related fatality related to
machine operation in 2020. After the accident, the relevant
departments of the Group immediately took improvement
measures, including upgrading machine protection facilities,
conducting safety training for machine operators, etc.
The Group also set up an investigation team promptly to
identify the causes of the accident and report to the Board.
Moreover, we commissioned a third-party professional

organisation to conduct a workplace safety assessment,
seeking to avoid the recurrence of unfortunate accidents
through a comprehensive review on relevant policies and the
implementation of occupational health and safety measures.
No work-related fatalities were recorded for the year ended
31 December 2019.
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Number of work-related B T T-# H) A £ 0 1 0
fatalities

Rate of work-related ETIT WAL E 0 0.042% 0
fatalities

Note: The rate of work-related fatalities is calculated as the number of work- A% - TTUHEOLERTERE LT R AR

related fatalities divided by the average number of employees in each
year.
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Control measures in relation to COVID-19

In response to the pandemic situation and operation of our
offices and plants in different regions and the pandemic
control policies of the local governments, we have formulated
various emergency response guidelines and implemented
stringent and effective pandemic prevention measures,
including health declaration mechanism, regular disinfection
and hygiene control, work-from-home arrangement,
promotion of pandemic prevention awareness, etc. to
minimise the risk of spread of the pandemic.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Talent is an important cornerstone of sustainable
development of an enterprise. The Group has established
relevant policies and systems and continues to devote
resources to promote the training and competency
enhancement of employees at all levels, so as to facilitate the
long-term development of employees and the Group.

RIR - g RERRE
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The Group has established a qualifications framework, which
sets out the required competency matrix and standards for
different departments and positions as the criteria for staff
qualification assessment and formulation of continuous
development and training. The Group has set up an internal
training center to systematically plan, organise and execute
diversified employee training programmes and assessments,
and continuously improve the skills and qualifications of
employees to meet the development needs of employees and
the Group. The training programmes cover different areas
such as leadership and management, teamwork, production,
information technology, quality awareness, occupational
safety and health, culture of continuous improvement, work
ethics, etc. In line with the Group’s long-term strategy to
develop smart operations, during the Reporting Period,
we invited the Hong Kong Productivity Council to design
and provide training on industrial 4.0 technologies for staff
involved in relevant projects based on the progress and plan
of our smart operation development, so as to equip them
with relevant professional knowledge and latest industry
information. The training program was subsidised by the
Re-Industrialisation and Technology Training Programme
of the Innovation and Technology Fund of the HKSAR
Government. In addition, to align with recognized external
standards, we also arrange external training and certification
for our employees. During the Reporting Period, we arranged
a few operational management staff to attend the CMSE®
Certified Mechanical Safety Expert programme and obtain
relevant professional qualifications, and arranged employees
from different technical positions to undergo relevant official
competence certification.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was awarded the
“2021 Smart Learning Enterprise Award” by the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and the
“Manpower Developer” by the Employees Retraining Board in
recognition of our performance in talent development.

The Group has set up a 5-year staff development target
(please refer to reference section of “Sustainability Targets”
for details).
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Percentage of employees

trained
ZIEEED L
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B L BREARS

By gender &R & o

Male = 55.0%

Female 74 45.0%
100.0%

By employee category REEERNE S

Senior Manager and above = AR KA £ &R 0.6%

Middle Management RARERE 9.5%

General Staff —f&ET 89.9%
100.0%

Average training hours

completed per employee
BEEETHZIN IR

By gender
Male
Female

By employee category
Senior Manager and above
Middle Management
General Staff

BB & o
54

g

ZEESEE D
SRRIEB R FRR
PSR E

—MRET

12.3
12.3

11.3
10.1
12.5
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group exercises a policy of zero tolerance against child
labour and forced labour. Therefore, we implement a series
of stringent measures to prevent child labour and forced
labour and strictly comply with the national and regional
regulations and laws, including the Law on the Protection
of Minors of the PRC, Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour, and the Labour Law of the PRC.

We have formulated preventive procedures for our
recruitment and employment process. |dentity verification
and background check are included in the recruiting process
to ensure job applicants are fulfilling the legal working
age (i.e. 16 years old). For internships and on-job training
programmes offered to students, the Group will sign a
cooperation agreement with the partner colleges and student
participants to obtain consensus on the working terms and
conditions.
on the applicable labour contract law and all employees
are required to sign the legally binding contracts before
commencement of work to prevent any form of forced labour.
Regular unannounced identity checks are conducted by the
human resources department to eliminate the possibility of
child labour employment.

In addition, all contracts are formulated based

Employees’ consent for working overtime is required to
prevent forced overtime work, and they are compensated in
accordance with the applicable labour laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any breaches of relevant laws and regulations related to child
and forced labour in our operations.

124 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED E£2&£EZERAR AT

BITEE
$%l3@TEI&€§%IJM§JTE@$§EBZ
o AL HME M — R R ERAK B
LABﬁt;I&?@%‘J**E@ I B 1 38 <F B
REMEERER  BREPEARKEM
BAKFAREELE ZHFEBEIRT

KREARAMBELEE -

BMEABERERARESNIHEEZR -
BEBREEFMNIHILRESES B
RIEHBAFTAETIIESF B (BM6
) MMBAERENEE REREIIE
Eﬁﬁa NEB K ,\m1’EH5m)§Z"<Eﬁiﬂ
EEFTEIERZE - ot TIERIE HH -
o FTEARHNHERBRENSEH AR
EEIM FTEREHAEABAEZEA
ERORDINED U IEERMERE
RH B c ANEBERIFIEEETERE
FORE  WEREREZEIMAREN -

MM TEFTRERERERE
MILTAE - BETERIEE
ERBEEE -

PABS LE 58 58
AR

E’\i&iﬁﬁlﬂ ZS’EIET%D*E%Eﬁ
E’\Jiﬂzﬁ°



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group attaches great importance to supplier
management and regards it as an important part of
our risk management strategy. Our suppliers are mainly
manufacturers of paper and auxiliary accessories. We
have formulated a series of policies and guidelines to
comprehensively standardise all supplier management
procedures, such as the identification, inspection, selection
engagement and evaluation of suppliers, to ensure that the
production process, quality, safety, finance, occupational
health, environmental protection and other aspects of
suppliers are in compliance with regulations and industry
standards, and also ensure that the relevant procedures are
carried out under the principles of transparency, fairness and
justice. We actively establish a close and mutually beneficial
relationship with approved suppliers who have passed the
assessment, so as to jointly improve the quality of products
and services and complement each other.
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We select suppliers based on their product quality, quality
system, product safety standards, production capacity,
code of conduct, service and price competitiveness. Prior
to becoming our approved suppliers, potential suppliers are
required to complete a thorough questionnaire and undergo
an on-site audit by our material sourcing department, quality
assurance department and compliance department to
comprehensively review the capabilities and track records
of the suppliers in equipment and processes of production
and inspection, quality management, compliance, financial
status, access control, network security, employee safety
and environmental protection and identify potential risks of
the suppliers in these areas. We give priority to suppliers
who have established systematic management approaches
in product quality assurance and environmental and
social responsibilities and are able to provide materials or
alternative solutions that meet environmental protection
standards. In addition, we also require our suppliers to
obtain the “Customs-Trade Partnership Against Terrorism”
certification. Approved suppliers are required to sign a
declaration of compliance and undergo our regular audits
to ensure that they fully understand and continuously meet
our quality, management and regulatory requirements in
all aspects. During the Reporting Period, the Group had a
total of 538 approved suppliers. The number of suppliers by
geographical region is as follows:

Number of suppliers by region

EHEE I NHEREE
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The PRC ] 490
Vietnam i) 31
Others H b 17
Total 48 =t 538
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As a professional paper product manufacturing and printing
service provider, the Group is committed to meeting
customers’ needs by providing quality products and
customer-oriented services, and ensuring that the Group’s
products comply with relevant laws and regulations such as
the “Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China
(FEAREFEEHE £ X)”. We have formulated a series
of policies with respect to product responsibility, covering all
aspects of production operation such as production safety
management and specifications, product quality audit, brand
copyright protection, file management, employee code of
conduct, handling of customer complaints and product
return. In addition, we fully comply with the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to advertising and labelling, including
the “Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (H
#= AR KEMERE LX), the Trade Descriptions Ordinance of
Hong Kong, and the U.S. Customs Regulations on Country of
Origin, etc., to deliver appropriate information to customers
without false, misleading or incomplete information and
misstatements.

Quality assurance

The Group is determined to continuously provide customers
with high-quality products to meet the expectations and
needs of international enterprises and brand customers
as well as individual customers, so as to maintain our
competitiveness in the industry and secure long-term
business growth, and to ensure strict compliance with
relevant laws and regulations such as the “Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China (7 # A R £ A & & &
& £ )%)” and the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests (F7 % A R £
MEH & & mRER)"
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We have a comprehensive quality management system with
ISO9001: 2015 certification, which covers three important
aspects, namely quality assurance, quality engineering and
quality control, to ensure that our entire production operation
process from product development, material procurement,
production to delivery meets the specified quality standards.
We have stringent quality control procedures in place to
control the quality of incoming materials, production process
and final products to ensure that our products meet our
internal standards and our customers’ quality requirements.
Our quality assurance team is accredited by ANSI-ASQ
National Accreditation Board under ISO 17020, which
demonstrates our technical competence in the fields of
calibration and testing. Product safety tests on raw materials
and products can be conducted by our own in-house
laboratory which is accredited by different international
professional bodies including China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), ANSI-ASQ
National Accreditation Board and U.S. Consumer Product
Safety Commission (CPSC). It also meets the requirements
of the international standard ISO/IEC17025: 2005, and is
qualified to conduct tests in accordance with international
standards toys, packaging and other goods in the U.S. and
Europe.
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Customer feedback and complaints and
product recall

We have policies and procedures in place to collect and
handle customers’ feedback and complaints. We conduct
customer satisfaction surveys with our OEM customers on
a regular basis to collect customers’ feedback on various
aspects of our services, including product quality, customer
service, delivery time, operation capability and material
procurement and development, in order to understand
customers’ opinions and needs and constantly improve our
service level.
83.7% in our latest survey. During the Reporting Period, we
received 64 and 157 complaints from our OEM customers
and web sales customers, respectively, all of which were
properly followed up and responded by our customer service
team. For example, in case of a complaint case related to
product defect, our customer service team will coordinate
with the relevant production department to conduct a
detailed investigation to identify the cause of the defect
and discuss appropriate solutions, including arranging for
replacement, return and/or refund to our customers for
product defects caused by us, and,
compensation from the third party supplier or subcontractor
who is at fault if necessary. During the Reporting Period,
we did not record any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations or product recalls due to quality or safety
reasons.

We achieved an overall satisfaction rate of

if necessary, seeking

Number of complaints received
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Intellectual property and personal data
privacy protection

We emphasise the importance of the intellectual property
rights and personal data privacy of our customers and have
established relevant procedures and guidelines to safeguard
them. We strictly comply with laws and regulations relating
to intellectual property rights and privacy, including the
“Intellectual Property Law of the People’s Republic of China
(P EE AR EFIE &N E#%)”, the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance of Hong Kong, etc.

In respect of intellectual property rights, we strictly manage
our production process and monitor documents and files
provided by our customers in accordance with relevant
established policies and procedures to prevent unauthorised
copying, illegal use or distribution or leakage of designs,
specifications and other intellectual property rights of our
products by our employees, subcontractors and third
parties. Those measures include filing customer’s digital files
to a secure database with access restricted to designated
authorised staff only, destroying and disposing of all printed
and redundant finished products after completing the
printing process, setting up 24-hour security controls in all
production facilities and warehouses, etc. In addition, we also
request our subcontractors to strictly follow our instructions
and procedures in handling our customers’ intellectual
property rights and conduct regular on-site inspections to
ensure proper safety procedures of our subcontractors. We
conduct in-house screening of photos or image in product
files to check if any infringement of third-party intellectual
property rights or violent, political, religious, trademark, or
other sensitive content. If we identify any suspicious contents
or images, we will ask the related customers for a letter of
authorisation for printing such content or images. Orders that
do not pass our in-house screening will be refunded.
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We have established procedures and guidelines related to
the protection of personal data privacy to prevent employees
from copying, using, distributing or leaking customers’
personal data without authorisation. Our website also
sets forth our privacy policy with respect to the collection,
use and protection of customers’ private information of
customers on our websites.

To enhance our internal controls on personal data and
intellectual property, we provide regular training to our
employees on personal data, intellectual property protection
and cyber security to strengthen their awareness of potential
risks of data leakage. We also include confidentiality clauses
in our employment contracts to prohibit unauthorised use,
possession and leakage of any confidential information and
documents obtained at work. Furthermore, we maintain,
inspect and enhance the information security of our
computer systems regularly to prevent leakage of files and
information.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate any
laws and regulations in relation to intellectual property rights
or privacy.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group firmly adheres to the highest standards
of business integrity and strives to maintain integrity
impartiality, work accountability and transparency. We
have formulated internal integrity management policies
and strictly implemented relevant requirements to ensure
that all business operations of the Group comply with our
integrity standards and the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the “Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China (% A R &£ F B A%)”, to eliminate any
form of illegal acts of our employees, including corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering, etc. We require
all employees to strictly comply with the relevant code of
conduct and requirements in the employee handbook and
make statement and declaration on conflict of interest. We
have established and implemented stringent regulatory and
approval processes to prevent misconduct or conflict of
interest due to procedural loopholes. We have dedicated
reporting channels in place and encourage employees
to report in writing or in person confidentially when they
identify or suspect relevant violations and conflicts of
interest. Reported cases will be investigated by our internal
audit department and reviewed by the Audit Committee to
determine further actions, including disciplinary action and
immediate dismissal, in accordance with the established
procedures. On the other hand, we provide relevant
training to directors and employees, including induction
and on-the-job training on professional ethics and anti-
corruption provided by the training department, as well
as anti-corruption seminars provided by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption to employees, especially
those with direct contact with external business partners
or those involved in financial transactions, to enhance their
awareness of business integrity and anti-corruption.

During the Reporting Period, the Group and its employees
were not involved in any corruption-related cases or
litigations.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

It is one of our corporate missions to contribute to the
betterment and sustainability of our community by always
acting with care. We adopt a policy to proactively identify
needs in different communities and devote efforts and
resources to demonstrate our community engagement and
support. During the Reporting Period, we pushed forward our
community efforts in the areas including charity and youth
education and development through various approaches
including monetary and in-kind donations, volunteering,
collaborations with external organisations and provision of
internship opportunities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made a total of
approximately HK$517,000 cash donations to charitable
organisations, with a total service time of 936.5 hours
involved in knowledge sharing and charity works.

The Group has set up a 5-year community investment target
(please refer to reference section of “Sustainability Targets”
for details).

Donations to charities

During the Reporting Period, the Group participated in
various initiatives to support different meaningful causes.
We supported the Hong Kong Red Cross as the Diamond
Sponsor of its annual fundraising event “Pass-it-On” for the
13th consecutive year, with cash donation to support its
humanitarian aid and local community work, and pro bono
printing services for the campaign’s promotional materials
to help them maximise the exposure of its campaign at a
reduced cost. We also supported different youth work with
monetary sponsorship for organisations focusing on youth
development including the Hongkong Shine Tak Foundation
and Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups.
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Volunteering

Volunteering is an essential part of our corporate social
responsibility strategy which we believe can bring benefits
not only to the beneficiaries but also to our employees. To
facilitate long-term volunteer development of the Group,
we established an internal volunteer committee formed
by top management and staff of different departments
during the Reporting Period. It aims to formulate the
objectives and strategic planning of our volunteer team,
cultivate communications and collaborations with external
organisations and promote staff’s participation in and
ownership of the Group’s charity work. To enhance
employees’ knowledge and interest in volunteering, we
arranged volunteer training for employees on social needs,
introduction to social services and essential skills and
knowledge for volunteers. Volunteering activities were
substantially affected due to concerns over health and safety
during the COVID-19 pandemic. Yet, during the Reporting
Period, we were pleased to have collaborated with an
elderly centre to deliver our care and tangible support to
the disadvantaged singleton elderly and two-elder families
through our volunteer team when the pandemic situation
eased off.
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Collaborations with charities and institutions

To expand the scope of our participation in the community,
we actively seek opportunities of collaborations with external
organisations who have a good reputation and track record
in delivering meaningful social and educational endeavours.
During the Reporting Period, we collaborated again with New
Sight Eye Care, a registered charity dedicated to restoring
and protecting the vision of people in the Republic of Congo,
for their annual desktop calendar charity sales programme
which aimed to raise funds for their eye hospital project.
We also supported Food Angel, a charity focusing on local
food rescue and food assistance, with food donations to the
deprived local communities collected from our employees
and sponsored by the Group. Moreover, we were glad to be
involved in an innovative board game design competition
organised by the S-Qube Youth Financial Empowerment
Project of the Hong Kong Family Welfare Society who is
committed to enhancing young people’s financial literacy
through a range of programmes. The competition aimed
to promote financial education through designing and
playing tabletop games as a creative educational tool. We
contributed our expertise and resources in tabletop game
manufacturing by providing participants with professional
advice on product development and sponsoring the
production of selected entries, helping talented tabletop
game designers to convert their creativity into actual game
products.

Internship programme

Young people are the future pillars and hope of our society.
To play a part in fostering development of local young
talents, we launched an internship programme to provide
opportunities for university to gain hands-on experience and
practical knowledge in a real business environment. During
the Reporting Period, we offered internship opportunities
to two university undergraduates in our human resources
and training departments with extensive job exposure, on-
the-job training and coaching by experienced staff, with
the goal of facilitating their competency development
and career planning. With the successful outcome of this
internship programme, we look to expand the scope to more
departments in the coming years.
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HONOURS AND CERTIFICATIONS

We have achieved diverse international standards of
operation systems, such as ISO 9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015,
ISO 50001:2018, to maintain our product quality and
enhance our environmental and energy performance to
ensure our efficiency and compliance. In addition, we have

also been given a number of certifications and awards from

different organisations.

Certifications/Awards

A& RE

Awarders

KERAH
BMEDARBERE
ISO 9001 : 2015 -

2 B R R R
ISO 14001 : 2015 * ISO

50001 :2018 ' ARFHR MW ERE = A
hnoe B M A IR IR R B R 5 A - BARE(R
ﬁiiia’ﬁ&?&/—\%ﬁ LN A NS A 5 ) W/

TH*&T%%E%&y 1.DL\H#%U7§I§ ©

Awardees
b N

ISO 9001:2015
ISO 14001:2015

ISO 50001:2018

SGS United Kingdom Limited

SGS-CSTC Standards Technical
Services Co. Ltd.

SCGSABFIZEERMRBE B R QA

Q P Printing Limited/Dongguan
Zensee Printing Limited/Taunus
Printing (Heshan) Company
Limited”

ERERIABARAR,

& B *ﬁﬁﬁx m,/ e E
BNl (B8 L) B R A

Dongguan Zensee Printing Limited
ESERHRERA

ISO 45001:2018

SGS Hong Kong Limited
B BRARAIRERTRAF

Q P Printing Limited/Dongguan
Zensee Printing Limited/Taunus
Printing (Heshan) Company
Limited*

ERHRABRATS

=ER Eﬂijliﬁiﬁ a,/ BE
Nl (B8 L) B R A

FSC Chain-of-Custody
FSCE tHE & ¥

SGS Hong Kong Limited
EREBARARERRAA

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Limited/Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Company Limited”/

Q P Printing Limited/QP (HK)
Limited/Q P Trading Limited/

Q P International Limited/Q P
Sourcing Limited
RERHRBERAR
BER(BL)ARRE ER
BRIBRAR/ER(EB)ER
’AT/’%FE‘\E%E—@@ CIVAE Y5
EREERATERYH
F‘fﬁ BEHR QA

C-TPAT Validation

B - BRRBREE
(C-TPAT) 8 &

China-United States Joint
Validation Team
REBAERE/ A

Dongguan Zensee Printing Limited

SEBHRER QA
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Awarders

RIE - e NERWRE

Awardees

AR RE

GSV (Global Security
Verifioation)
EREERF

BEERHEE

Intertek

RiF&EHE

EERQTF

Taunus Printing (Heshan)
Company Limited*
e E ENm (85 1) B R F)

ICTI Ethical Toy Program —
Seal of Compliance

ICTIMAREE - RBEE

The International Toy Industry
Association

B B 3 5

BEXWpe

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Limited/Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Company Limited*
=ERHRERA 7/
REER (BL)ARA

China Environmental
Labelling Product
Certification*

EF' . E& iﬁl TT 7%

] é =
/A= OR E/L RS

China Environmental United
(Beijing) Certification Center Co.,
Ltd

RIREES (LR RBRLBRAA

Dongguan Zensee Printing Limited

&R AR QA

Recognition of Achievement
(GMI)
X 5t 2R AT (GMIy#

Graphic Measures International

EN R =N

Dongguan Zensee Printing Limited

& B ERER QA

G7 Master Facility Targeted

G7E afkh- Eﬂ/b ﬂyj#

Idealliance

B R 28 1 SR e B

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Limited/Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Company Limited*
ZERHRIARA 7//
FREER (BL)FRA

High and New Technology
Enterprise Certificate

SR ERES

Department of Science and
Technology of Guangdong
Province, Department of
Finance of Guangdong Province,
Guangdong Provincial Office of
the SAT and Guangdong Local
Taxation Bureau

BREMERNE  BER4E VI
B BEXUEERBEREMKEH
kERAMAHBE

Dongguan Zensee Printing
Limited/ Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Company Limited*

REGERHBARRA 7/
BZENRI(BS 1) AR A

L

10 Years Plus Caring
Company Logo
104 Plus [ R R BE 2 |12 55

The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service

EEHeRBEHE

Q P Printing Limited

S RERIAR AR

Caring Certificate
/L\ F’ﬁ ‘,,x A2 El

Federation of Hong Kong Industries|
EETXEE

Q P Group Holdings I_irnited
EREEEZERERA

iMoney Brand Awards 2021
— Best Paper Product
Manufacturing and Printing
Services Provider*

iMoney & = fn i K 28 2021
— REAEmATH

Ko EN ol AR 755

iMoney

iz
Ho}
?Fé
i

Q P Group Holdings Limited

£ B &
=R

SEERABRA
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Certifications/Awards Awarders Awardees

RE#E HEEREE BHERQE

Good MPF Employer Award Mandatory Provident Fund Q P Printing Limited/QP (HK)
Schemes Authority Limited/DPI Laboratory Services

Limited/Product Innovator

Limited/Printer’s Studio Limited

EaiflEE REIMERNESFTEEER %EEEDF BRRAR
BREB)ERARS

=) u\ﬂA/@‘JﬂEi‘“ﬁI@E al/

Bl¥ERERARAR

Printer’s Studio Limited

# The Chinese translations of the names are for reference only. & hEEBOPXELEHRSE -

*

The English translations of the names are for reference only. - hEEHNREXEREHRSE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

DATA SUMMARY

BRRERABERE

GREENHOUSE (“GHG”)
EMISSIONS

Scope 1"

Total

Intensity 3

Scope 2 2
Total
Intensity @

AIR EMISSIONS
Nitrogen oxides
Sulphur oxides
Particulate matter

HAZARDOUS WASTES
Solid Wastes Generated:
Total

Intensity *

Wastewater Discharged:
Total
Intensity 3

NON-HAZARDOUS
WASTES

Solid Wastes Generated:
Total
Intensity 3

Wastewater Discharged:
Total
Intensity 3

PACKAGING MATERIALS
USED FOR FINISHED
GOODS

Total

Intensity *

BERBHNE

BHE—:
RES

gE—2:
48
B

BRHEKE
Ay
HEY
ERE )

HEBY
EENERED:
2%

2

1 0 B
48
BE

BREEREM

ELNEREN:
ot

B

e 0) B
48

B

A mmREETE

Tonnes CO2e
Tonnes CO2e

Tonnes CO2¢
Tonnes CO2¢

Tonnes
Tonnes
Tonnes

Tonnes
Tonnes

Tonnes
Tonnes

Tonnes
Tonnes

Tonnes
Tonnes

Tonnes
Tonnes

-l (== 405.93
Mgtk = 0.29
W-_Eikg= 21,235.28
W_E(ikg= 15.28
i 0.34
i 0.001
i 0.02
i 200.13
i 0.14
i 206.22
i 015
i 9,201.05
i 6.62
i 211,051.13
i 151.86
i 3,456.02
i 2.49
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346.06*
0.28

20,565.72
16.69

0.28
0.001
0.03

203.28
0.16

610.13
0.49

8,643.59
7.01

179,047.114
145.26¢

3,503.24
2.84
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ENERGY AND HERKERAE
WATER RESOURCES
CONSUMPTION
Electricity: Eh:
Total HwE MWh KB 26,470.16 25,620.83
Intensity @ BEs MWh KR 19.05 20.79
Gasoline: ba:
Total HE Litres NFii 45,499.08 41,620.37
Intensity ¢ R Litres A 32.74 33.77
Diesel: L
Total “g Litres A 23,512.08 19,113.40¢
Intensity 3 BEs Litres AT 16.92 15.514
Water Resources: KER:
Total Hmg Tonnes W 211,257.35  179,657.244
Intensity 3 BES Tonnes i 152.01 145.75¢
PAPER CONSUMPTION B2
Production: EE:
Total He Tonnes i 32,305.87 32,415.66
Intensity 3 BREs Tonnes i 23.25 26.30
Office: WAE:
Total “E Tonnes W 12.60 16.21
Intensity 3 BES Tonnes 5 0.009 0.013
Notes: Bt :
1 Scope 1 represents direct GHG emissions generated by the use of 1 HEEEBERIHD AR LBEL
gasoline, diesel and refrigerant. MNEELAEREHENRE -

2 Scope 2 represents indirect GHG emissions generated by the use of 2 HEEBEBFEREBEEMENIARNE S
purchased electricity from local power companies. FTEENBERAEREBERE -

3 The emission/production/consumption intensities are calculated in 3 HWRE 4+EE /FTHREZEUSIBEEST

terms of every HK$1 million of revenue. W EEtE o

4 Reasonable assumption was made to adjust the comparative figures 4 HR-_ZE_ZFENLEIATE  ®HEtEE A
due to incomplete records in 2020. (i.e. using consumption average of EREAABREEHFZ(ANFEREM B MDA
other months). T EER) ©
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Index

Reference Section

(R HERERGEHD R

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IRER EE -REERBREANER

A. Environmental

ARR

ﬂ%kkﬁv

Aspect A1: Emissions

General Disclosure: Information on the (a) policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Management of Emission

EEAL: S5 —REE AEBERARRERBHR  MARLBOET FEREZENNE | HEYHER
EE0: @R ROETHETAREAZENRBEZERANNER o
KPIA11 The types of emissions and respective emission data. Management of exhaust gas

W R ENREA

BHRNBR AR NEE -

KPI A1.2
WJ ii%)&TET A1.2

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.

/ﬂﬂiﬁ ?JFEWE&EE ¢

and greenhouse gas
(“GHG") emissions

ERRRERBHRNE
i

KPI A1.3

B ENEEAS

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FELRERNEERTE -

KPI At.4
BRERERAY

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FELEZRNEERTE -

Management of wastewater
discharge, Management
of solid waste disposal

BRERMER - ERED
REMERE

KPI A1.5
BRERERALS

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
ERARRTHREERENRENSE -

Management of Emission

B E R

KPI A1.6

wlsz )&?ET A1.6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

FURBEEREZENNA L RUCRTEREBEERERBENST o

Management of solid waste
disposal

AEBENRENEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Index

(R HERERGEHD R

Reference Section

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

IRER EE -REERBRANER

;&%szm—

Aspect A2: Use of

General Disclosure: Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,

Management of resources

Resources water and other raw materials. utilisation
EEA2: ERER —REE BRERER(BELR KREMRME)HBE ERERMER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. Energy conservation
B ARERA2 RENEAMERR /JRELREEEREE - 48R
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Water Conservation
BB AR 1R A2.2 BRKERER - AR K
KPI' A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Energy conservation
BB AR 1R AL BAERERREAURAERERAENSR - 48R
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, | Water Conservation

BRENEEA2

water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
RESKEE KR LA REIRE  EREKEREARAAEREKAEHSHE -

HRAK

KPI A2.5

B R AN IBALS

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

REmAABENHNEER(MER)BLEBMNEE -

Use of packaging materials

BEMFER

Aspect A3: Environmental
and Natural Resources|

General Disclosure: Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.

EEAS: BRER —REE AERTAURERARERERNEAY ENHE -
XAER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural

R EMIREA

resources and the actions taken to manage them.
BB RDURERARERNEAZ ERERNERART ENGD -

Environment and natural
resources

BRERBRER

Aspect A4: Climate

General Disclosure: Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate

Change related issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
BH A REZM(L —REE B REHEERIE e HETAREYENEARGEAZENEE -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those

BRENEEMI

which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
HECBRIREHETAELY ENEAREABEE REHTE -

Climate Change

ARE(
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Index

Reference Section

(R HERERGEHD R

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IRER EE -REERBREANER

B. Social
B.tE

Employment and Labour Standards

ERREIER

;&%zm—

Aspect B1: Employment

General Disclosure: Information on the (a) policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

EHB1: EfE —RRE: AEEMEEE RERER IEH RY TEEe Zak.
REBUREGEERBNE: @QBE: ROETHETAREATVENEBEE
BERADNEH -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

AR ENERBI RS BERER FRANRGEISNESLY -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

W R ENIREBR2

B FRANMBEADNEERKLE -

Employment

Aspect B2: Health and
Safety

EEB2:fEERZE2

General Disclosure: Information on the (a) policies; and (b) compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe work environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

—REE ARRUEZZIERERRREREEBENAEN  @BE: R(Db)
BFHETABEAT ENRBEERADINEN -

KPI B2.1

B3 B 21321

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

BE-F(REBREER)BFRTICHMAARLE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
BREMERB22 RIGEAIIEA
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are

BRENEEB3

implemented and monitored.
BRARBOBEREEZ 2HR URBRBRTRERNE -

Occupational Safety And
Health

=8
M
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H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Index

(R HERERGEHD R

Reference Section
ﬂ % =z IrA-

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

IRER EE -REERBRANER

Aspect B3: Development
and Training

B B3: & JEH

General Disclosure: Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

—REE AERAEERTIERENAZRREABE  MliEdEY -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.
BRENERSB RUENREREREAINZIERRAS
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee

category.

Training and Development

BURER

BB MIRIEB32 RURIREEERE D SREEXTKMNTHEE -
Aspect B4: Labour General Disclosure: Information on the (a) policies; and (b) compliance with | Labour Standards
Standard relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labor.
BAEB4: ZTRH —REE ABMLEIRRHSHN: QBEK ROBTHETAGERREN | BIRE
RRZERAGINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
labour.
B3R E MR B4 BRI REENNEEABREIREHED -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
B ANIER B42 BAEERERBERARERERBEAARDRO SR -
Operating Practices
EEEH
Aspect B5: Supply Chain | General Disclosure: Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the | Supply Chain Management
Management supply chain.
EEBS ftEHRER “REE EREEENRRRLERREE - ftEEER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.
BRENERB REEDMEERHE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where

5 E R 1ER5.2

the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

HAEEERMERNEN MERTEHAENNMERHE  URBBHTR
EESRHE o

KPI B5.3

B B MIE1EBS.0

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

il ARBA R EREERANRE R EARNED - NRBABRIRERNE -

KPI B5.4

B33 B A5 1RBoA

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

HlERELEEREESARRERRRBOED  AREBRTRER L -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Index

Reference Section

(R HERERGEHD R

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

IRER EE -REERBREANER

SZEH

Aspect B6: Product
Responsibility

EHEB6:EREF

General Disclosure: Information on the (a) policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
~REE-BRMREENNRBENREELZS B SERLRSENRE
WAEE : (6) MR R(o) BFHETAGEAT ENRBEERADINER -

KPI B6.1

BRENEEB6

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

EERDERERBRTRR 2 ERFEEMMARNRNADL «

KPI B6.2

B3 B MR 1RB6.2

Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

REARERRBRBEORFHAURES N L -

KPI B6.3

B3 B MIE1EB6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights.

fnEgERRENAERARNEDN -

KPI B6.4
FRERERB4

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
WAEERTEBRLERDLES -

KPI B6.5

BREMERB6S

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

HEEREANRRRALRIGE  URARMIRERAE -

Product Responsibility

g
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide Index

(R HERERGEHD R

Reference Section
;& % =z IrA-

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

IRER EE -REERBREANER

Aspect BT7: Anti- General Disclosure: Information on the (a) policies; and (b) compliance with relevant | Anti-Corruption
Corruption laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,

extortion, fraud and money laundering.

EHBT:RES —REE:-BANLER PR RFRAREN: @ BE ko) BFHEOA | RES
REAYENRBEERAOINER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the cases.

B & MR 1EBT REEHAANHETAIHEEREYCELNETHARANHARFDL

KPIBT7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

B ENIEIRB2 BRMBERRERRF  IREBROTRERNE -

Aspect B8: Community General Disclosure: Policies on community engagement to understand the needs | Community Investment

Investment of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests.

EEBS HERE —REE . FROHE2ERTREEMEHERENRRESXBEDEZRY | HERE
& & AR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).

B 12 MR 1288 IEREBE(NHE REFE SI1I5% BE Xt 85)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

BB MIEIEBs.2 EEIEEMBAZR(NEHAKRM) -
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INDEPENDENT

B I BED RS

AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Q P Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”),
which are set out on pages 155 to 255, comprise :

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021 :

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended ;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended :

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended : and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B XA RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision

for inventories write-down.

Key Audit Matter

HEEITEER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B X B AN RS

BMPERSAPINNERESFAFTHLH
JINEEAE RO i

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

EMNEFUMNEERRETE R

Provision for inventories write-down

FE MRS

Refer to Note 4(c) (critical accounting estimates
and judgements) and Note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
w2HREMBHmERNT4c) (AEe
) K Bt 5E21 ©

BRERPNE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held
inventories of HK$116,545,000 (2020:
HK$93,680,000), net of provision for write-
down of HK$16,796,000 (2020: HK$20,334,000).
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (“NRV”). The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories’ selling
prices declined, costs to complete or selling
costs increased or they have become obsolete or
damaged.
R-_EBE-_—&F+-_A=+—H EEEEERHF
5116,5645,000& T(= T — T % : 93,680,000/&
)?Mﬂmm%%m7%om%nm_?_7¢

20,334,000/ 7T) o 7 & JhiR A /N B A] 435 J5 8 ([ 1]
@ﬁ%ﬁbZ@ﬁ%ﬂ“  MZEFEEE T K

TIRARHEXAENKECBRFHZIE - A
AIBE AW EIF B R -

We have performed the following procedures in
relation to management’s estimation of provision
for inventories write-down :
HREREMFEMORER  RMASE
e

7R3

° Understood the methodology used by
management to determine the provision
for inventories write-down and evaluated
reasonableness of the methodology which
took into account of inventory ageing
profile, historical and post year-end usage
and sales data;

. TW”EF EFEMORBE &R %

Vet hkFERREL BERFERERD
%%ﬁ&%%@ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%éﬁﬁ:

° Understood and tested controls over
estimation of NRV of inventories and related
provision ;

. THREAAEEER
1 ) ¥ I A
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° Tested, on a sample basis, the inventory
ageing by comparing the inventory records
with the underlying documents :

. FREBBXMA LR FECEMEAATE
AR ER

° Tested, on a sample basis, the subsequent
usage of raw materials and work-in-
progress by checking to the subsequent
usage report with the underlying
documents :

. WA EREE A RS KA XY B
AR RERDOEREEBBR
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Key Audit Matter

HEEITEER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter

EMNEAUIMNEERRETS R

Management consistently applies a methodology
to make provision for inventories write-down.
Management determines the lower of cost
and NRV of inventories by considering the
estimated selling price of individual inventory
items in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs to complete and the estimated
selling expenses, their ageing profile and any
obsolescence or damages identified from
periodic inventory counts, and by reviewing their
subsequent usage and subsequent sales.
EEEERERARTEEMRBREN L - B
EERAZRAFXBARTENFEEAENME
EERMEF TR R HERS « BRECIA N
RESEEREMBNOEMBHIIEE AR
EHNERERERHERHEE ETRFENKEAR
AR FEAORESE -

We focused our work on management’s provision
for inventories because significant judgements and
assumptions are required to be made to determine
the estimated selling price of individual products,
including historical sales record of selling products
of similar nature and expectation of future sales
based on current market conditions and sales
backlog.

BN IHEEFREEENTEERE ARERE
BRERNATEETEFLEE RAEBRRE
BREREHEHEUMEERMNBTEHELHLERE
AR R ARTERHENTERRKEE -

° Tested, on a sample basis, the NRV of
selected inventory items by comparing
the estimated selling price less costs to
complete and selling expenses with post
year-end sales data, sales backlog, current
market analysis, or manufacturing costing
reports ;

. BB BMAFEERT IR REERX
ERFABEREEHE  RTKIEERE -
ERmS oM B EREIRSE - #EAH
EFFEREAMNAERFE:

° Observed management’s inventory counts
to identify any obsolete or damaged
inventories : and

. BREEENTFER I AZBIEMRESK
BEFE K

° Tested whether the inventory provisions
at the reporting date were calculated in
a manner consistent with the Group’s
inventory provision policy by recalculating
the inventory provisions based on ageing
profile and other parameters in the Group’s
inventory provision policy.

. BEE EEEFERGBERPOHEREMRRI
MEMB2HEFRFEFEEE RN R
SEHNTFERGREORE E5ERER
BERE -G AFTE -

Based on the procedures described, we found
the management’s judgements and estimates in
relation to the provision for inventories write-down
to be supportable by available evidence.
EREuigr RMAZXREREHETE MORE
R A R TR AR R X HF -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B BEN RS
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also :

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Sze To Wai.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED | &8 1B% K%
STATEMENT OF PROFIT | & ﬁziﬁuéz

TR

OR LOSS AND OTHER | #= = 7=t mess
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

—B--F —T-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

Revenue W = 5 1,389,759 1,232,631
Cost of sales 85 & A A 8 (959,651) (795,765)
Gross profit £ Fl 430,108 436,866
Other gains/(losses), net Hilkzs /(B 18)F58 6 2,828 (18,623)
Other income, net H fb W A JHRE 7 19,628 18,187
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX 8 (133,621) (108,827)
Administrative expenses TR 2 8 (187,474) (165,236)
Operating profit KR A 131,469 162,367
Finance income @ﬂéﬁlﬁl]\ 10 1,088 1,925
Finance costs B & B A 10 (1,725) (4,815)
Finance costs, net Bl & B AN F R (637) (2,890)
Profit before income tax RR B 15 B A0 & F 130,832 159,477
Income tax expense FEHRAx 11 (11,790) (30,129)
Profit for the year F R F 119,042 129,348

Earnings per share for profit AATERRREMN G
attributable to equity holders FMHERER
of the Company

— Basic and diluted earnings per — BRERAREERT
share (expressed in HK cents per (AT R &AL R)
share) 12 22.38 24.57

Other comprehensive income, HftZ2HEW R (BRBE) :

net of tax
Item that may be subsequently FERGEER 7 HE IR
reclassified to profit or loss = ZHEH
Currency translation differences B E = 17,385 37,892

Total comprehensive income for Zx72 7] £ & IR R FE {h &
the year attributable to equity RZ2EWFEEEE
holders of the Company 136,427 167,240

The notes on pages 162 to 255 are an integral part of these & 7 £162E 2558 2 M 5f & KN 4R & B 15
consolidated financial statements. WMEMABKE D ©
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CONSOLIDATED | #=& B S ARoR 3=
STATEM ENT OF R=F—_—F+=-A=+—A
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BENEE 15 421,732 383,082
Investment property B Y= 17 2,135 2,135
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 20 145,514 122,130
Intangible assets mEEE 18 30,746 28,407
Deposits and prepayments e BN HRIE 23 34,473 33,842
Deferred income tax assets RILEFTEHEE 32 8,867 8,390
643,467 577,986
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 21 116,545 93,680
Trade receivables 2 5 & WK IE 22 241,139 233,248
Deposits, prepayments and other e BEFIEREAM
receivables & U FR I8 23 50,527 35,089
Derivative financial instruments MTEL<mIEAE 24 9,497 3,866
Income tax recoverable ATk e AT 1S 61 124
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkIREEEY 25 158,781 236,670
576,550 602,677
Total assets EEH#E 1,220,017 1,180,663
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity AATREZRRESLRE
holders of the Company =
Share capital fig A 16 5,320 5,320
Share premium % 15 % (B 26 139,593 139,593
Reserves B 26 701,401 639,454
Total equity A 846,314 784,367

The notes on pages 162 to 255 are an integral part of these & 7 £162E 2558 2 M 3£ B KN 4R & B 15
consolidated financial statements. WERMABKED ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R
As at 31 December 2021
R_ZE=_—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA& T
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings N 29 - 7,456
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSTHAE 32 10,434 16,598
Lease liabilities HEBS®E 31 1,639 2,031
12,073 26,085
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables H 5 e 3IR 27 130,779 122,423
Accruals, provisions and other FEFTER - Bk EAM
payables &< 518 28 124,865 125,960
Contract liabilities AHBE 10,549 9,491
Current income tax liabilities BHARTE B E 8,159 28,881
Borrowings B 29 84,439 80,080
Lease liabilities HEaRE 31 2,839 3,376
361,630 370,211
Total liabilities BEHE 373,703 396,296
Total equity and liabilities ExhEaEHEE 1,220,017 1,180,663

The consolidated financial statements on pages 155 to 255
were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022
and were signed on its behalf.

CHENG Wan Wai
Director

YEUNG Keng Wu Kenneth
Director

The notes on pages 162 to 255 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED | 4r&tEzS B )R
STATEMENT OF BE—T-_—St-_A=t—HLFE

CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARAABAANER

Share Share Capital Statutory
Capital Premium Reserve Reserve  Translation Retained
6 (Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 26) reserve eamnings Total
r HEE )

i) (Wi (8 ) BEE  REEA g3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

(Note 1

TER TER BT BT BT BT TR

At 1 January 2020 W-8-85-5-8 i 3,762 6686 23711 (1743 512450 534497
Prolfit for the year ERgT - - - - - 129,348 129,348
Other comprehensive income  Eft2EHA
Currency translation differences ~ SHHEEZHE - - - - 37,892 = 37,892
Total comprehensive income  2EUALH - - - - 37,892 129,348 167,240
Transactions with ownersin ~ EEEANEEEAGH

their capacity as owners ETHRS
Paid up of capital EffER 1 (1) - - - - -
Capitalisation Issue B & 3,988 (3,989) = = = = -
Issuance of ordinary shares ErEak

1,330 155,610 - - - - 156,940

Underwriting commissions and
other issuance costs

BE HeRif
EIRA = (15,790) = = = = (15,790)

Dividends paid (Aofe 13) ) - - - - - (68,520) (68,520)
Statutory reserve ETEE - = = 3271 = (3,271) =
5,319 135,831 - 3,271 - (61,791) 82,630

At 31 December 2020 R-BZE%
+=H=t-H 5,320 139,593 (3,086) 26,982 36,149 580,009 784,367

The notes on pages 162 to 255 are an integral part of these &R F162F 2558 2 M 7 & K43 A B 1§
consolidated financial statements. WEMABKE D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AN T e
For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T_—F+t_A=t—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EXNCE 2N 1

Share Share Capital  Statutory
capital  premium reserve reserve Translation  Retained

(Note 16)  (Note 26/  (Note 26)  (Note 26 reserve  earnings Total
kx  RHEE  EARE  EERK

(fi#16)  (Wi#26)  (W#26)  (id26)  RERE  REEFA ait

HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Tén TéEn ThEn ThEn T TiEn ThEn

At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-£-f-H 5,320 139,593 (3,686) 26,982 36,149 580,009 784,367
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - 119,042 119,042

Other comprehensive income  Eft2E 4 A
Currency translation differences ~ E%HEZE - - - - 17,385 - 17,385

Total comprehensive income 2FERAAH - - - - 17,385 119,042 136,427

Transactions with ownersin ~ EEEANEEFA 54

their capacity as owners
Dividends paid (Note 13) - - - - - (74,430) (74,480)
Statutory reserve - - - 5,075 - (5,075) -
- - - 5,075 - (79,555) (74,480)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--£+ZR
Sr=f 5,320 139,593 (3,686) 32,057 53,534 619,496 846,314

The notes on pages 162 to 255 are an integral part of these # R F162F 2558 2 W it B K& 4 B 15
consolidated financial statements. WMEMAKI D o
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CONSOLIDATED | 48B4 e R
STATEMENT OF | #=-5= % =A=i aiss
CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021

—_E_—5F

HK$’000
FERT

2020
—E-FF

HK$'000
TAET

Cash flows from operating RETEESHEERNE

activities
Cash generated from operations KEFMRES 33 155,777 191,556
Income tax (paid)/refund Fris®i (2, B & (39,550) 2,075
Net cash generated from KEEBMEHRSFHE

operating activities 116,227 193,631
Cash flows from investing RETHMERERE

activities
Interest received 2 U A 10 1,088 1,925
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BEK

equipment and deposit for REARIE -

property, plant and equipment WBENEHEIES (119,989) (43,941)
Deposit paid in respect of acquisition Ht Uz g — R B A F 2

of a subsidiary R - (20,000)
Proceeds from disposals of HEWME BEK

property, plant and equipment BBz IS RIE 33 513 15,551
Purchase of intangible assets BAERLEE (2,217) (1,256)
Settlement of derivative financial HEHITESMITA

instruments 8,024 —
Net cash used in investing activites & & /ZEFTAR & F5 (112,581) (47,721)

The notes on pages 162 to 255 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN AT IEL

%mn:ui%i/ﬂbii’%
For the year ended 31 December 2021
 E— T —F+_A=+—BILLFE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT

Cash flows from financing METEMESRENE

activities

Proceeds from borrowings & 3P 15 318 33 212,000 77,000
Repayment of borrowings EBEEN 33 (215,309) (178,699)
Proceeds from issue of shares BATRR D FT 15 318 - 156,940
Dividends paid BRI’ E 13 (74,480) (58,520)
Payment for lease liabilities HEBBEMNK 33 (3,755) (3,478)
Listing expenses paid BEfNETHX - (7,841)
Interest paid EXNERS] (1,389) (3,723)
Release from pledged borrowing fEBR B |7 R - 381
Net cash used in financing activities gt & & Fr IR © %48 (82,933) (17,940)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash BE&RIBELZEEY

and cash equivalents Rt 2) /18 5% 58 (79,287) 127,970
Cash and cash equivalents at FYReRAEE

beginning of the year =% 236,670 104,775
Effect of changes in foreign EXFFHmg e

exchange rates 1,398 3,925
Cash and cash equivalents FREe KBS

at end of the year By 25 158,781 236,670

The notes on pages 162 to 255 are an integral part of these & 7 £162E 2558 2 M 5f & KN 4R & B 15
consolidated financial statements. WMEMABKE D ©
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE | 434 B RS sRR MIsE

CONSOLIDATED

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacturing
and trading of paper products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 19 April 2018 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3
of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office
is 71 Fort Street, P.O. Box 500, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-1106, Cayman lIslands. The Company’s
shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 16 January 2020 (the “Listing Date”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$’000”) unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied throughout the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
which are in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) are set out below. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of investment property and derivative
financial instruments, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements.

()  New standards and amendments to existing
standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
for the first time, for the annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BB A ERFE165 (1B FT &)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BAMBRELABORUEFTA) -
BB G EAFEIN(BFTA) -
BAEMBREERBTHR BT A)
BAMBWELANFI4H BT A R
BAM B EERB165E (BRI A)

The application of the amendments to HKFRS in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial position and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

21

fre SRR M

TEREHEEE(H)

REFEEAMAS(EBEE
REEGNEBMBEREEN(E
BMBHREERDREES M ®
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MBEHRAFTEERSE THERE A
it TR EEEBEAERAASEN
SRR ENBREPIEL A E - K&
BALRSEHEBHEREE Y
HEMBEBRRBEARZENRRR
&t o

() AEEFEMFTEL R E
IRA LR ZEFT AR
AEBRZZEZ—F—H—H
R FERSHEEXAER
LATMER] A #R B4R & B 765 R 38

COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions
COVID-19 HHE /M & E R

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

MEREERE — F_ER

AEZRBEBMGHREER
BEARY KRB AEEARFEE K
PATEF 2 19 B 75 AR O B 26 48 A
R/SEREMBRRAR
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ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3% 163



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEEE(ER)
(i) New standards and amendments to existing (i) 2S5 B ey R ER 49 7 3R] £E A
standards not yet adopted by the Group REIRB LA ZIEFTR

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after

RT3 BHEH

ZEREN

FEHBEX

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the 1 January 2023
related Amendments

BRI WEERFT5H Ria K MAEREE] —E-=%—A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022

HKAS 37, HKAS 16 Framework
BB HRERERSEIFRUEFIR) . BMSERNSA —E-_F—A—H

BB R ERIFIR (BT RO R
S BRSPS ACDES

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets To be determined
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
EAMBREREAFI0R(EFIA) REERABEREGEREZHE e
REBGERFE28R (BFIAR) WMEEHEIRA
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as 1 January 2023
Current or Non-current
BB G ERE15 (BT A) HEESERRBNIERD —T-=F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEEEFHENE1IRUEIT NN R AR B R —EZ=%—H—H
BEREVBREENEBRS
FE25% (IBETA)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
ER G ERESH (BRI A) ST AT EE T =%—A—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR M aE
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEEE(EK)
(i) New standards and amendments to existing (i) 2N A R B 4R 9 8 2T 2 A
standards not yet adopted by the Group REIRB LR ZIEFTAR(E)
(Continued)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on
or after

RT3 H8%
ZEREH
FEHBEN

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities Arising From a Single
Transaction

B ARG ERFE125 (BRI &) HE-QFGMELEZEEREBRE —E=%—HA—H
Bl RERIE
HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2023

— Classification by the Borrower

of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clauses
ERREFESR(ZZEEF) MBBRENER — BERADER Z—T_=F—H—H

NBEERFEREKINEHER

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022
2018-2020

FENHEIAE ERAMBHREEN =T —N\FE —E-F—A—H
TETFFENE

Certain new accounting standards and ERAMME THISHAENRRRE

interpretations have been published that are W T -_—F+A=1+—H®WME

not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting Hgoa sl ER > BARAEEIL KRE

period and have not been early adopted by the AIERA - THEIRZ S EATEH AL

Group. These standards are not expected to have ERRENRIRBEHABRTER

a material impact on the Group in the current or RARRRGEEERTE -

future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.21 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBEME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.2 B AT (&)

2.21 Consolidation (Continued) 221 A AR (E)
(a) Business combinations (Continued) (@) FREEOE)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gain or loss arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKFRS 9 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 22 B AT (&)

2.21 Consolidation (Continued) 221 e AR (&)

TERETHREHE(H)

(@) Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gain on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform to the
Group’s accounting policies.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
are required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
of the Company that make strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except when deferred
in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

2.3

2.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iiy all resulting currency translation differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2

2.5

NOTESWDTHECONSOUDATH)HNANCMLSDMEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs to their residual values over estimated useful
lives as follows:

— Buildings
— Leasehold improvements

25 years
10 years, or over lease
term, whichever is the

shorter
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain and loss on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Investment property

Investment property is held for long-term rental
yields and is not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequently, it is carried at fair value. Changes
in fair values are presented in profit or loss as part of
other gains/losses, net.

2.7 Intangible assets
(@) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

(b) Computer software

Computer software licenses are stated at
historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost
over their estimated useful lives, which are five
years.

(¢) Golf club membership

Golf club membership is stated at historical cost.
The club membership has an indefinite life which is
not subject to amortisation and is tested annually
for impairment.
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2.8

2.9
2.91

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

()  those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

(i) those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

2

2.9
2.9.1

29.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gain and loss
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model in
which the investment is held. For investments in equity
instruments, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and measurement
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

° Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit
or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
“other gains/(losses), net” in the period in which it
arises.
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2

2.9
2.9.3

294

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial assets
subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss model:

° Trade receivables
o Other receivables
o Cash and cash equivalents

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.

To manage risk arising from cash and cash equivalents,
the Group only transacts with state-owned or reputable
financial institutions. There has been no recent history
of default in relation to these financial institutions.

2

2.9
2.9.3

2.9.4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. It excludes
borrowing costs. Costs is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

2.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement
of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESHBREME(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Borrowings and borrowing costs 216 E R RfE R KA

ERNTEAFEREELENR

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statements of financial position
date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the consolidated
statement of financial position date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax
(Continued)

(0)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that
it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(@)

Retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme. Where employees leave the scheme prior
to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions cannot be
used to reduce the contributions payable by the
Group.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate outside Hong Kong are required to
participate in the central pension schemes (the
“Pension Schemes”) operated by the respective
local governments. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentages of their payroll
costs to the Pension Schemes. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Pension Schemes
is to pay the ongoing contributions under
the Pension Schemes. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Schemes.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, after taking into consideration of the
profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
and certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

fre SRR M

2 FEETHERMEGE

218 EE®A

(@)

R IRAE F

AEBRERIERTESF S
GO SEERSERE S
i) & 8 3% 37— I/ FE A 5R
B AEERKENEE (R
BMEEr&)) - R RIERTA
ZREMRAURBEEELAH S
MBDEEL - b E R MH
RERBEP IR - BIE ST
FMEERASENEENF
H—EBIEENESRHSE -
AEENEEITHRIERNRES
APEIMAE . 2MEEESR -
HEEREEHREZBEBERN
BEFGTE - QBRI R &
BTERERIDAEE RN

-

AEBEBBAINEENH B
RAIMEBEEASINHSE I
fREENHhREREEI(ER
KETE) - ZZWELRA
BREFERANETADLRA
RASAEHNK - REEBHR
KREFENE-—FTETRIMNE
REFAENFEHRR - RIFER
REFEWRA - HREXS
NRBERREBRBPILR o

TEAL 5T &l

REEF R AR R BOR RS & A &
EHE THER  AKESE
AR RAERAX AKE
REBEEARHNEFEXE—EBHE
=SB E B EREREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3} 181



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

2 FEETHEHEE)

218 EE®AI (&)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up
to the date of consolidated statement of financial
position.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Long service payments

Employees who have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group are
eligible for long service payments.

A provision is recognised in respect of the
probable future long service payment expected
to be made. The provision is measured as the
present value of expected future payments,
consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels, experience of employee departures
and periods of service.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Contingent asset is not recognised as receipt of the
amount remains uncertain.

2.20 Revenue recognition

The Group principally derives revenue from sales of
products.

Revenue from the sales of products is recognised
when control of the products are transferred to
customers. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold, stated net of
discounts, returns and value-added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.

(@) Original equipment manufacturer (‘OEM”) sales

Revenue from OEM sales (mainly including
products of greeting cards, tabletop games,
educational items and premium packaging items)
directly to customers is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, in accordance with
relevant shipping terms, to customers.

(b) Web sales

Revenue from web sales (mainly including
products of playing cards, tabletop games and
puzzles) directly to customers is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when
the products are accepted by the customers, to
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTBEMEGE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 220 = TERR(4E)

Upon entering into a contract with customer, the
Group obtains rights to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to
transfer goods to the customer. The combination of
those rights and performance give rise to a net asset
or a net liability depending on relationship between
the remaining rights and performance obligations.
The contract is an asset if the measure of remaining
conditional rights to consideration exceeds the satisfied
performance obligations. Conversely, the contract is a
liability and is recognised as a contract liability if the
measure of remaining performance obligations exceeds
measure of the remaining rights.

Rental income from investment property is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

2.21 Leases

The Group leases certain land, properties and motor
vehicles. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date on which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any incentives receivable; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the entity’s incremental borrowing rate.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made on or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

° any initial direct costs.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term or less than 12 months.

2.22 Research and development expenses

Research expenditure and development expenditure
that do not meet the criteria to capitalise as an
intangible assets are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.

2.23 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
does not use any derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes.

Risk management is carried out by management of
the Group. Formal and informal management meetings
are held to identify significant risks and to develop
procedures to deal with any risks in relation to the
Group’s businesses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk

(@)

()

Foreign exchange risk

Subsidiaries of the Company operate in the
People’s Republic of China and Hong Kong
(“PRC”) with most transactions denominated
in either Renminbi (“RMB”), HKD or United
States dollars (“USD”). The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk primarily through sales and
purchases transactions that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of
the relevant subsidiary. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure mainly arises from the
exposure of RMB, Euro (“EUR”) and USD. As
HKD is pegged to USD, the Group believes the
exposure to transactions denominated in USD
which are entered into by group companies with a
functional currency of HKD to be insignificant.

The Group manages its exposures to foreign
currency transactions by monitoring the level
of foreign currency receipts and payments. The
Group ensures that the net exposure to foreign
exchange risk is kept to an acceptable level from
time to time. The Group also regularly reviews
the portfolio of local and international customers
and the currencies in which the transactions
are denominated so as to minimise the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, approximately
HK$84,439,000 and HK$87,536,000 of the Group’s
borrowings were denominated in HKD respectively.
At present, the management does not expect that
there will be any significant foreign exchange risk
associated with the Group’s borrowings and the
Group did not use any financial instruments to
hedge its foreign exchange risk arising from the
Group’s borrowings during the year. The Group
use derivative financial instruments to manage the
foreign currency exposure. The derivative financial
instruments must be in the same currency as the
hedged item. At 31 December 2021, the fair value
derivative financial instruments presents in Note
24,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HKD with
all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for
the year would have been approximately HK$8,000
and HK$317,000 higher/lower respectively, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gain/loss on
translation of deposits, prepayments and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables and accruals, provisions and other
payables denominated in non-functional currency
of the relevant group companies.

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from
borrowings. The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly related to the fluctuation of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the
Group’s borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, if interest
rates increased or decreased by 50 basis points
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit would decrease or increase
by approximately HK$353,000 and HK$365,000
respectively as a result of increase or decrease in
net interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate short-term bank deposits
(Note 25) and lease liabilities (Note 31). The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary
action when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and bank balances,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. However, the exposure in this regard
is considered to be minimal as the bank balances
are all short-term in nature. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its borrowings at floating rate of interest
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises mainly from cash deposited with
banks and financial institutions, trade receivables and
other receivables.

Credit risk on trade debtors is managed by the
management of the individual business units and
monitored by the Group’s management on a group
basis. Most customers are sizable and renowned
companies. Management assesses the credit quality
of smaller customers by considering their financial
position, past experience therewith and other relevant
factors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly
monitored.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

=AY

3.1
(o)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has set up long-term cooperative
relationship with these customers. In view of the history
of business dealings with the customers and the sound
collection history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from these customers. Management makes
periodic assessment on the recoverability of trade and
other receivables based on historical payment records,
the length of the overdue period, the financial strength
of the debtors and whether there are any disputes
with the debtors. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

In respect of cash deposited with banks and financial
institutions, the credit risk is considered to be low as
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on the asset
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o internal credit rating

o external credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
customers’ ability to meet its obligations
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(o)

(i)

actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of customers

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of customers

significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of customers, including changes in
the payment status of customers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the customers.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
The Group considers the credit risk characteristics
and the days past due to measure the expected
credit losses. During the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, the expected losses
rate for customers of sales of goods is minimal,
given there is no history of significant defaults from
customers and insignificant impact from forward-
looking estimates. The assessed expected credit
losses for the trade receivables are not material.

The Group made no write-off of trade receivables
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk from customers. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, 78% and 75%, respectively of total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
customers. Based on the past payment history,
the directors believe that the credit risk inherent
in Group’s outstanding trade receivables from this
group of customers is low.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(o)

()

(i)

(itr)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group monitors the outstanding debts from
its customers individually due to the concentration
of credit risk. Based on historical payment trend,
there is no correlation between the risk of default
occurring and the collection past-due status as
long as there is no significant change in the credit
rating of the customers. Historically, the Group’s
loss arising from risk of default and time value of
money is negligible.

Other receivables

Other debt instruments at amortised cost include
other receivables.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, management
assessed that the expected credit losses for
the other receivables are not material when they
do not have default history and the issuer has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

Cash and cash equivalents

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, the Group only transacts with
reputable commercial banks which are all high-
credit-quality financial institutions. There has been
no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss of
cash and cash equivalents is close to zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated

with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial assets.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities from leading banks.

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group’s management aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by maintaining availability under committed
credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity reserve which comprises cash and cash
equivalents (Note 25) and undrawn banking facilities
(Note 30) on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal to their carrying
amounts as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
Within
1 year or
repayable
on demand
—FRH
REREE
HK$'000
TET

As at 31 December 2021 W=-Z=-—-%+=#

3 MBEREREGE)

31 BiEREZE(E)
© RBELERE)

Between Between
1 and 2 2and5 Over
years years CACELE

—FEWMFE WMEEIFE HENL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TRT

Total

@it
HK$'000
T

=+-H

Trade payables BAEMNFE 130,779 - - - 130,779
Accruals, provisions and other BT E M &K

payables (excluding accrued  H b & 1 5B

staff costs, other taxes (TEEREFET

payables and provision for AN~ H A FEA

social insurance and housing  F1J8 KAt &R B )2

provident fund) FERABEER) 38,439 - - - 38,439
Borrowings (including interest &3 (B2 & & F 8)

payable) 85,657 - - - 85,657
Lease liabilities (including MEEE

interest payable) (BEEGFE) 2,906 1,555 103 - 4,564

257,781 1,555 103 - 259,439
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE_-FF+=fH
=+-H

Trade payables BAENFIE 122,423 = = = 122,423
Accruals, provisions and other BT E M  EE K

payables (excluding accrued — H i & 1 7B

staff costs, other taxes (TEERFET

payables and provision for XA - EoA A

social insurance and housing  F118 KAt &R B )2

provident fund) FELRESERE) 51,138 = = = 51,138
Borrowings (including interest & 5 (B & & F &)

payable) 89,288 — — — 89,288
Lease liabilities (including HEARE

interest payable) (BEEGFE) 3,484 1,553 526 — 5,563

266,333 1,553 526 — 268,412
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3.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group uses its capital and bank borrowings to
finance its operations.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as debt divided by total capital.
Debt is calculated as total sum of borrowings and
lease liabilities. Total capital is calculated as “equity”
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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ARA SRR

Bt 7% EL e E E ()

EAEREE

AEBEREANBRAREARS
BRELEMEN  EMARERRE
B R 3 23 H A ) 25 40 BE & 1R A

mARRFHREEARBABKE
TR REEFBEBEE LR
TERASBEXHRHES -

2%%&%@2%@%%3$95%  REE A
HEBERNTERROKE - MERE

BEAR  BITHKRALEEENR
DET -

EXRNEMAF K AEEITR
Tz—«§$ﬁfi tTﬁb?&éK’EZttﬁ
PAE 75 B DA RS 48 = F R
fﬁ*h&ﬁi;ffétﬁ”]“ﬂ o AR

ﬁ'%ﬁﬁz“/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬁ [
;ij—v-

2021 240740)

—E=-—F —TTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

Borrowings & 84,439 87,536
Lease liabilities HEaE 4,478 5,407
Debt & 7% 88,917 92,943
Total equity T AR 846,314 784,367
Gearing ratio EXRBELE 10.5% 11.8%
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iR e SRR MR

3.3

3.4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
Fair value estimation

The Group does not have any financial assets/liabilities
that are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangement and similar agreements during the year.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no
financial assets or financial liabilities which were subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting or similar
agreements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(@) Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the
PRC and Hong Kong. Judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are transactions and calculations during
the ordinary course of business for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates for whether additional
taxes may be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Current and deferred income taxes
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectation
is different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and taxation charges in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, unlisted
securities) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated allowance on inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and applicable
variable selling expenses. These estimates are
based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of a similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to
industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. Such estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions.

fre SRR M

4 BTG ETR A

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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iR e SRR MR

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount
of a cash generating unit (“CGU”) is determined
based on value-in-use calculations which
require the use of assumptions. The calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a
five-years-period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates. These growth rates are consistent with
forecasts included in industry reports specific to
the industry in which each CGU operates. Details
of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact
of possible changes in key assumptions and
impact of possible changes in key assumptions
are disclosed in Note 18.

Judgement is required to determine key
assumptions adopted in the valuation models
for impairment review purpose. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in
assessing impairment could materially affect
the result of the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial condition and results
of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the key assumptions applied, it may be
necessary to take additional impairment charge to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Revenue

Revenue W &=
Sales of paper and other products iHE

An 1,389,759

ARA SRR

5 WHEKDIEHR
(a) W=

Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-A=+—BHLEE
2021 2020
—ETF
HK$’000
AT

—_E_—5F
HK$’000
FHERT

1,232,631

Sales of goods are recognised at the point in time when
a group entity has delivered products to customers and
fulfilled all the performance obligations as stipulated in
the sales contracts.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all performance
obligations not yet satisfied by the Group were from
contracts with original expected duration of less than
one year. Therefore, as permitted by the relevant
practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied performance
obligations were not disclosed.

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker that are used for making strategic
decisions. The chief operating decision-maker is
identified as the executive directors of the Group.
The executive directors consider the business from a
service perspective and assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of gross profit
for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance. These reports are prepared on the same
basis as the consolidated financial statements.

The management has identified two reportable
segments based on sales channels, namely (i) web
sales and (i) OEM sales.

HEEDREEEBKERRINE
FIXBITHEANRENMERELN
BAER TUAMER -

RZE-—FR_FT_FTF+_A4
= +—B XEBERKRBITHMAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e SRR MR

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information

The segment information provided to the executive
directors for the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

5

Web sales

MIHE
HK$’000
FERT FERT FERT

5 WuEksHERR)

(b) o E#B&E #
ARTESRENBE_T-—F
BR-F-F&E+=-A=t-BIL&E
S EBERBIIMT

Year ended 31 December 2021

E-E-_—F+-HA=+—HLFE

OEM sales Total
OEME & #at
HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue from REINE P

external customers 75 2B Wz 198,729 1,191,030 1,389,759
Cost of sales Fi=h== DN (48,282) (911,369) (959,651)
Gross profit eyl 150,447 279,661 430,108
Other gains, net H fih 7 75 5 K8 2,828
Other income, net Hfh Y A JF %A 19,628
Selling and distribution HERDHERAX

expenses (133,621)
Administrative expenses THRAX (187,474)
Finance costs, net B & K AN F BE (637)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 5% B A1 130,832
Income tax expense Fr 5 f 2 (11,790)
Profit for the year F N Al 119,042

200 Q P GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &8 5EZRERA A
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KRE BTSRRI R
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WaEkaIER(E)
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2 &HEHR (&

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-_TF+_A=t—HILFE

Web sales OEM sales Total
FERECR= OEMEE & st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET
Segment revenue from BN E P
external customers 7 &P UL & 157,988 1,074,643 1,232,631
Cost of sales iR DN (40,677) (755,088) (795,765)
Gross profit E A 117,311 319,555 436,866
Other losses, net B EsEF5E (18,623)
Other income, net H b A 558 18,187
Selling and distribution HERDHEAX
expenses (108,827)
Administrative expenses THHAX (165,236)
Finance costs, net B & B AN F B (2,890)
Profit before income tax B AT 15 6 B 159,477
Income tax expense Fr 5 M2 (30,129)
Profit for the year F N F 129,348
Revenue from major customers who have individually REFEEPEHEASEEBAKR
contributed to 10% or more of the total revenue of the 10% 3k A E) MUz a0 T

Group are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2021 2020

—EB=-—F —EEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT AT

Customer A Z2EA 306,364 299,625
Customer B =FB 285,481 304,285
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KRB MR M

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WakaIER(E)
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2 EE R (E)
Revenue from external customers by location, based on BEXINE M - i B E 5 2 5
the destination of delivery, are as follows: HEPW=IT:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-BLEFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-EF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FE T

United States of America (the “USA”) EHRERE(EE]) 948,414 852,848
Europe B M 255,129 197,261
The PRC s 96,836 97,059
Others HAh 89,380 85,463

i 1,989,799 o o 232650
fLEWT:

Non-current assets, other than deferred income tax
assets, are located as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+T—-HLEE

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

The PRC a2 609,806 549,035
Vietnam e 24,794 20,561
634,600 569,596
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KRB MR M

6 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 6 Httzm (BHR)EHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLEE

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FET

Other gains/(losses), net Hiz (BR)FE

Foreign exchange loss PEHEE (9,798) (22,005)

TEEBITARAFERSE

Fair value gain on derivative financial

instruments (Note 24) (K1 it24) 13,655 3,866
Loss on disposals of property, plant and H&EW%  HENZE 2
equipment (Note 33) & 18 (K1 7£33) (1,029) (484)
2,828 (18,623)
7 OTHER INCOME, NET 7 HWAFEEE
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-—BA=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FET
Other income, net Ha g A F 5
Rental income el A 50 49
Sales of scrap materials 3B BE R 14,459 11,373
Government grants BT 18 B 4,519 6,206
Others Efb 600 559
19,628 18,187
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RE SR M R
8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 EBMEESHMAX
Year ended 31 December
BZ+=-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—g-—% C—T-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Raw materials and consumables used  Fr B R £ & H 7 & 526,965 427,320
Changes in inventories of finished goods XN EK B ZFE

and work in progress ot (23,578) 2,002
(Reversal of)/provision for inventory T E (),

obsolescence (Note 21) BB (K at21) (4,010) 1,248
Employee benefit expenses (including EERFFX (BIEES

directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) B <) (# 229) 362,352 300,018
Sub-contracting charges SBEEH 155,447 123,246
Transportation expenses Ei B A 73,860 56,171
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BELKXETE

equipment (Note 15) (H1:£15) 50,858 44,637
Electricity expenses BEMRAX 19,820 17,280
Repair and maintenance expenses HEREEER 17,495 13,617
Sales commission HEME 10,453 7,762
Amortisation of right-of-use assets ERAEEE®E

(Note 20) (Hta220) 7,060 6,805
Service charges of payment gateways T4 RE & 6,982 5,934
Technical maintenance support B 4 v IR 6,073 4,401
Legal and professional fee ERKBEXER 5,056 6,262
Auditor’s remuneration % SEm B &

— Audit services — BZRF 2,120 1,850

— Non-audit services — EZRS 820 513
Short-term lease expense (Note 20) REEER X (M i720) 1,012 484
Amortisation of intangible assets mEBEEEEHE18)

(Note 18) 618 400
Listing expenses EFHRX - 1,166
Others = 61,343 48,712
Total cost of sales, selling and HEMKR HER D H

distribution expenses and A RITHHA 8%

administrative expenses 1,280,746 1,069,828

BE_ZE-_—GFR-_ZT-"FTF+_H4
S+ —BLEFEINMAERE S
A1 49 536,899,000 7T N 23,285,000
BT °

The research and development expenses charged for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
approximately HK$36,899,000 and HK$23,285,000,
respectively.
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 9

ARA SRR

BEENAX(BERESM

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ )
EMOLUMENTS)
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=1t—BLEE
2021 240740)
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances THe - AL KR ERY 304,043 262,212
Pension costs defined contribution plans EK & KA — RE M
&T 21 43,411 28,543
Other employee benefits H e 548 14,898 9,263
362,352 300,018
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BYKHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive AEEBEMBILIENTESIH
directors during the years were as follows: ST :

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-HA=1t—HLEE

Name of directors 2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
directors
Mr. Chan Hiu Fung Nicholas, PREZIE LA gapes.
MH, JP K F a1+ 240 230
Prof. Cheng Man Chung Daniel, Z8XIE#I% - g2z -
BBS, MH, JP KR Z ATt 240 230
Mr. Ng Shung, JP (Australia) RELE  kFm+
(BA FizE) 240 230
720 690

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2020: nil).

Mr. Chan Hiu Fung Nicholas, Prof. Cheng Man
Chung Daniel and Mr. Ng Shung were appointed
as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 20 December 2019 with effect from
11 January 2020.

FROBEEMEMNBIIERITE
EHE (—E_SF:E)o

PBREEIR LA BXRHARNMREL
ER—_E-NFF+_A=_THEZ
EAARRBILIIENITES B =
E_EF—A+—HRBEM-

= —=
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KRB MR M

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 9 EEEFMEXX(BREEML)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (#&)

EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief (b) MITEEREFETHAE
executive
The remuneration of the executive directors for the HEZZ-_—FR-_ZF-_FF
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are set +Z A=+ —HILEFE #1T
out below: EEMHMMEI DT

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-B--Ft-f=t-ALEE
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary ~ and benefits  to pension

Name of directors Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total
BER EIpEfe

fe it REEL LUk R @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR Tén Téx Téx TEx

Executive directors

— Mr. Cheng Wan Wi - 1,070 - 1,268 18 2,356
— Mr. Yeung Keng Wu Kenneth - 2,210 - 349 18 2,511
— Ms. Liu Shuk Yu Sanny - 1,950 - 838 18 2,806
— Ms. Hui Li Kwan - 650 600 113 18 1,381
— Mr. Chan Wang Tao Thomas - 1,696 1,200 539 18 3,453
— Mr. Mak Chin Pang - 1,306 1,200 425 18 2,949

- 8,682 3,000 3,532 108 15,522
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and the chief
executive (Continued)

ARA SRR

9 EERARX(BEEEME)

Name of directors Fees Salaries

Be

£1

HK$ 000

Executive directors

TiEL

(4&)

(b) BITEERTETHRAER
(&)

Year ended 31 December 2020
E-SE{-A-t-HItEE

Employer's
Discretionary Alowances and  contrioution to
bonuses  benefits in kind pension scheme
.
] & BN m
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Tin

— Mr. Cheng Wan Wai = 1,070 200 1173 18 2,461
— Mr. Yeung Keng Wu Kenneth = 2,210 200 293 18 2,121
— Ms. Liu Shuk Yu Sanny = 1,950 200 798 18 2,966
— Ms. Hui Li Kwan - 650 750 9 18 1517
— Mr. Chan Wang Tao Thomas - 1,040 1,500 460 18 3,518
— Mr. Mak Chin Pang - 1,085 1,600 373 18 2,976

= 8,505 4,350 3,196 108 16,159

Mr. Cheng Wan Wai, Mr. Yeung Keng Wu Kenneth,
Ms. Liu Shuk Yu Sanny, Ms. Hui Li Kwan, Mr. Chan
Wang Tao Thomas and Mr. Mak Chin Pang were
appointed as executive directors of the Company
in January 2019.

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by
these directors in their capacity as directors or
employees of the subsidiaries of the Group. No
directors waived any emolument during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

RZFE-—NFE—-A BREST
£ BEARE BRI L
MABERL BREBEERE
REBELEEEZERATAFNH
TES -

EXRT R MIEZEESEA
rEBNBARIZEEXESR
MEAEBEWEAOEHHN - &
BEEREE T —FRK_F
—EE+-_A=+-—HIFE
WEEARMNE -
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KRB MR M

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 9 EEREINFEXX(BREE=EMH=)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief

(c)

(#%&)

(b) BITEERTETHRAER

executive (Continued) (#&)
No director fees were paid to these directors in RBEEZZE=—FREK=FT=F

their capacity as directors of the Company or the
operating companies and no emoluments were
paid by the Company or the operating companies
to the directors as an inducement to join the
Company or the operating companies, or as
compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group include four directors and five
directors for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, respectively, whose emoluments were
reflected in the analysis presented in Note 9(b).
The emoluments payable to the remaining one
individual (2020: nil) is as follow:

Salaries, allowances and

e ZMEREYH S

(c)

Ft-A=+—BLEEFEE #
BERERARRRINEERNAE
EMARFEETNESTHE
MARE L EERRINERE
EXNMEER/MARRE K
LENR RS BER M
f

mE I

o

EEBRESHAL
HE-_Z-_—ERK-_ZT-_FT&
+-A=+—BLtFE K&
BEREmes AL R EEN
HEERRBEET EMER
B 5E9(0) 2 7| By D AT P R B o
ENEG—FBAL (T T4
E)NBN ST

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020

—E-FF

HK$’000
T

—E-—fF
HK$’000
THERT

benefits in kind 1,040 —
Discretionary bonus B 1E TE AL 1,856 —

Employer’s contribution to & = MR K& &5F &1 £ 3k
pension scheme 18 —
2,914 —
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Five highest paid individuals
(Continued)

The emoluments of the individual fell within the
following band:

ARA SRR

9 REERIFAX(BREEENE)
(nﬁ)

(c)

EE&EHAL(HE)

ZALTHME N FIATEE:

Number of individual

2,500,001 T E
3,000,0007% 7T

HK$2,500,001 —
HK$3,000,000

No emolument was paid by the Group to the
individual as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for the loss of
office.

Directors’ retirement and termination
benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services
in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries’ undertaking
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

No payment was made to the directors as
compensation for early termination of appointment
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

(d)

AEEBERZALTMER
MEERMAREBEHKMAR
SEFNRBREEREE -

ESRAREBERER

REBEZE-_ZE-_—FK_ZT_-F
F+-_A=+—BIEFE " #§
EEEREEBEEEANFK
EfNBARSEH 2 EMREMm

TE XA sk U A AT SR AR 4B A o
RBE_ZE-_—FKR_ZF_-F

Ft-A=+—BLEFEE #
EREFRAR LRI A
EfIfE -
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Consideration provided to third
parties for making available directors’
services

No payment was made to any former employers
of the directors for making available the services
of them as a director of the Company during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Information about loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 35, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or
at any time during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.
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10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

10 BL & B A3 88
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-ALEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Finance income Rl & WA
Bank interest income R17F B WA 1,088 1,925
Finance costs Al & B AR
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITERFNERX (1,601) (4,671)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBEMERX
(Note 20) (ki 20) (124) (144)
(1,725) (4,815)
Finance costs, net Al & A F R (637) (2,890)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11 FIEHEX
Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—HLEFE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FE T

Current income tax BN ER P 15 7 18,568 29,270
Deferred income tax (Note 32) EEFTIS (K 7232) (6,778) 859
11,790 30,129

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong
Kong profits tax, the first HK$2 million of assessable
profits of a qualifying group entity in Hong Kong will be
taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The assessable profits of
group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the two-

EEBNMESHMASG T  2&ER
MELEEERENE2AEE B LR
R Bt A A 128.25% B R EL 0
8 B2H & B JT B B SR B 0w A K 3R
16.5% B XEHH > TR AENEHM
A ) E 8 & B E 58 R R TOE M S

tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed M BIR16.5% 5 — T B -

at a flat rate of 16.5%.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC
are subject to the PRC Corporate Income Tax at the
rate of 25% during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in the PRC,
the Group’s subsidiary, Dongguan Zensee Printing
Limited (3R =& B EIfH A BR A A]), was accredited as a
high-tech enterprise, and is entitled to the preferential
tax rate of 15% for three years since 2017. The
Company has renewed the accreditation as high-tech
enterprise for three years since 2020. In addition, the
Group’s another subsidiary, Taunus Printing (Heshan)
Company Limited* (% = EN Rl (85 1L) B BR A &) was also
accredited as a high-tech enterprise, and is entitled
to the preferential tax rate of 15% for three years from
2021.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulation in the PRC,
certain entities of the Group qualified as small-scale
and marginal profit enterprises. As a result, they were
entitled to preferential tax of 2.5% (2020: 5%) for profits
of first RMB1 million, and 10% (2020: 10%) for profits
ranging from RMB1 million to RMB3 million during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietnam
are subject to the Vietnam Corporate Income Tax
(“CIT") at the rate of 20%, and are entitled to a 30%
reduction of CIT payable since their revenue is not
exceeding Vietnamese Dong (“VND”) 200 billion
(equivalent to approximately HK$68.4 million) for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
Vietnam, the Group’s subsidiary, Q P Enterprise
(Vietnam) Company Limited, which was undertaking
a new investment project in an industrial park, and is
entitled to tax holiday under which its taxable income
would be fully exempted from CIT for two years from
the first year an enterprise has taxable income from
a new investment project eligible for tax incentives
after offsetting prior year tax losses, followed by 50%
reduction in CIT in next four years. If an enterprise has
no taxable income for the first 3 years, counting from
the first year if it has turnover from a new investment
project, the tax exemption or reduction duration shall
be counted from the fourth year.

The subsidiary established and operated in the USA
is subject to the Federal and State income tax of 21%
and 8.84%, respectively during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020. No provision for the Federal
and State income tax has been made during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the USA
subsidiary did not generate any taxable profits in the
USA for both years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Cayman Islands, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the BVI and Cayman
Islands during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The English translation of company name is for reference only.
The official name is in Chinese.

11

fre SRR M

Fr 8 BB X (&)

BEEENEBEERER K
S E /MKW B 2 aF QP Enterprise
(Vietnam) Company Limited /A T % &
BEAEZEFKEEEYZEELEME -
HEXRDKRATEZBRRHEMNDE
XMENMFEBEL—FHES
BrR)NEFEHE BEOFND
FEISB Al BERER50% o fil (& R
BoFIWEBERTWA - BIEREH
REBAERFEZFENEFRITHE
%% B 2 3 BB B B & T FRE AT

= o
Ean

REBKZRELHHNE R RE
B —FRZTTF+A
=+ —BILFEED BN TR
M T8 5121% 5.8.84% ° 7 35 B Hf
BAARBE-_ZTE-_—FK_F—
EF+_AZ+—HLEFEITERE
EFEHEATMNERB RN - g\
R M PTIS TR AT IR B4

BEABHBREES(AEEBER
BENDCHEBEEZEIERER XK
EEREFEE_ZE-_—FR_ZT_F
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 Fr5BiE < (&)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs 7N £R B BT 15 70 Bl m A1 59 A% 18 B iR &
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the BIR &) ARE R G T EENE R
tax calculated at domestic tax rate applicable to profits R ENERESBRAENTER:

in the respective countries/jurisdictions as follows:

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLEE

2021 2020
—E——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FAT
Profit before income tax b BT 15 74 Bl i A 130,832 159,477
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REBABRR GEER
applicable to profits in the respective Z%Ti FiE AR E H B X
countries/jurisdictions HISHMIE 20,907 29,595
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose T —HD TR & 1,688 2,959
Income not subject to tax B AR U A (1,264) (1,030)
Tax effect of deductible temporary N 7R A H0 R BT B
differences not recognised EHENMB L E 392 (67)
Additional tax deduction for research Bt 2% 58 SN B T8 30 Rk
and development (3,084) (2,615)
Tax losses not recognised KRR IE B B 441 2,265
Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 — B AR RS Y
January resulting from the change in —A—REEMIB L
tax rate of a subsidiary BT E (6,025) =
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ) 2 Al ?ﬁﬁ?’é R
tax losses WIEEE (139) (103)
Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC FFEE B Ry F £ (881) (651)
Tax exemption o (245) (224)
Income tax expense FT 15 % 2 11,790 30,129
The weighted average tax rate was 9.0% (2020: 18.9%). METFHH X RIOK (ZEZF
The decrease is caused by a subsidiary entitled to the F :18.9%) o HE T TJ PINE=S
preferential tax rate of 15% for three years from 2021. Z—BEHWNBRAB=ZZT=—%F

@Eiﬁﬁw%m@%fﬁi :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 532,000,000 (2020:
526,549,180).

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and

2020.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

Earnings

12

ARA SRR

NN E R R R AL =AY
BERERN

EREREBNTTERAQRE BE
ﬁﬁ&?ﬁﬂﬁimmﬂﬂ&&momxmo

% (= & = & F :526,549,180/%) &
B I EY N A% B o

AEBREBE_TE-_—FR=_F=
TF+_A=+—HLEFEILER
BITHEBETEEL AR -

SHESYE - PENE-3. S

A H -

2 7
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+-BLEFE

2021 2020
—E--F —T-EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Profit attributable to equity holders of ~— ZN/A &) 4 25 I% B8 & 15 & F
the Company 119,042 129,348
Shares iz 17

Weighted average number of ordinary

Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+t—HLEE
Number of share

IR BB
2021

2020

BT E BB INEFY

shares in issue (thousands) Bz 8 (F %) 532,000 526,549
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) & % & 7| (F ML) 22.38 24.57
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13 DIVIDENDS 13 B E
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t=-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—Eg=-- —T_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHET
Interim dividend declared and paid MAFEEE R RIRKNM
in respect of the current year of B R ERRR B A BT
HK2.0 cents (2020: HK2.0 cents) per BR20BIW(ZE=Z
ordinary share & 2.081) 10,640 10,640

Final dividend declared in respect of the Ft F— A BFED =
previous financial year, approved and A S FAER KRB
paid during the year of HK12.0 cents KNBWEBREEAE

(2020: HK9.0 cents) per ordinary A% @A 12.058 1L (=
share T_FF :9.0/81l) 63,840 47,880
74,480 58,520

Final dividend proposed after the end of ¥R 4 B 45 R 1% 22 s 00 H3

the reporting period of HK11.0 cents AR EREREERKR

(2020: HK12.0 cents) per ordinary NOBI(ZE=FF:

share 12.07 1) 58,520 63,840
Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting R EHERERZZNEHRRER
period is not recognised as a liability as at the end of REHERKERERRRAE -

the reporting period.
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14 SUBSIDIARIES

NOTESTOTHECONSOLE%TBDHNANCMLSWHEMENTS

14

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

MEAREM

Directly held
EERA
QP Holdings Limited?

Indirectly held
BEEE

Q P International Limited

FERRA

SEEBL

Q P Sourcing Limited
ERMHREEERAT

Q P Printing Limited
ERORBRAR

QP (HK) Limited

ER(EB)BRAR

(i) Country of incorporation/
establishment;

(ii) Principal country of
operations;

(iii) Date of incorporation/
establishment

Issued and
paid-up
capital/

registered

capital
BRTRAR

()EMEL/ RLER;
(EEEE-EES
(iii) FE M AR 32/ AL B 3

BVI / Hong Kong / HK$77,400
10 March 1998

ABERRNE/ BA/ 77,400 7T
—AANE=RATH

Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$1
16 March 2006
BR/BR/ 18
“EEREZATAH

Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000
2 April 2002

ER|EBR/ 10,0007% Tt
“ZZ-FWAZH

Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$37,000,000
5 July 1985
BB/ BB/ 37,000,0003 ¢
-AWARELARA

Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000
2 April 2002
B/ BE/ 10,000 ¢
“ZFFMACH

B B 2 A

ARA SRR

R-_B_—FR-_ZF_FTF+_H

=t HNKER

Effective interest
held as at

REIBRERN
ERED

2021 2020
:i_ ﬁ—?—?i

100%
100% 100%

100%

100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

BESEE

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

REERK

Trading of paper products
and investment holding
BnEIRREER

Sourcing of materials and
products

MHRERKE

Trading of paper products
and mvestment holdmg
BmBEFRREER

Trading of paper products
and investment holding
BnEIRREER
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(i) Country of incorporation/
establishment;

(ii) Principal country of
operations;

(iii) Date of incorporation/

Name of subsidiary establishment

(VEMEL/ RIER;
(EEEEEZR,

14 BT (HE)

Issued and
paid-up
capital/

registered

capital
BYFARAR
k&

Effective interest

held as at

RTSIRAERAY

Principal activities

SMEE  EBEN
2021 2020

it Sk Sk Sk 32

MEARAR TEXR

(iii)aE WAL/ B 3 B A

Indirectly held (Continued)
BEEE (&)

Q P Trading Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000 100% 100% Trading of paper products
21 May 2013 and investment holding
ERESERAR %%/f’%cﬁé/ﬁ - 10,0008 7T 100% 100% #HmEHFREEER
“E--ERAZTH
Dongguan Zensee Printing~ PRC/ PRC / HK$211,167,245 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading
Limited' 15 January 1992 of paper products
SERORBRRAAN $ﬁéﬁ§% - 211,167, 45% L | 100%  100% BERHERES
—WNZ_F—AThH
Q P Enterprises Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
16 November 2017
ERLEARAT ﬁiﬁ/ﬁﬁi/ﬁ - 1000047 = 100%  100% HREZR
—F- —R+<A
Taunus Printing (Heshan) PRC /PRC/ US$8,800,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and trading
Gompany Limited"* 17 November 2006 of paper products
BE DR (B BRAF ﬁP/fﬁP/E T 8,800000%7 = 100%  100% #MERZLERES
“EERET- =
DPI Laboratory Services Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HKS1 100% 100%  Provision of laboratory
Limited 22 June 2010 testing services
ERRARBERLA é%/é%% - i 100% 100% REZRERMIRHE
“E-TFH-TCH
Product Innovator Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$370,000 100% 100% Trading and retailing
26 September 1996 of merchandise and
investment holding
ARERRRERAR  FE/BE/ ‘ 8700007 | 100%  100% BREHRTEURRES
—MAARENAZTRE i
Multi International Investment Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$2 100% 100% Property holding
Group Limited 3 March 2015
BEEARREEERRAT %%Lﬁ%/f 2B T 100%  100% WEER

=A=H

—<
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

MEARAR

Indirectly held (Continued)

BEEH(E)

Eternity Year Investment
. Limited
EFREARRA
Archer Praise Limited

hEERAF

Radiant Keen Limited

RRBRAF

Printer's Studio Limited?

TianJin ZenSee Technology

Co., Ltd!
REERRRERAR

CS Works Corp.*

(i) Country of incorporation/
establishment;

(ii) Principal country of
operations;

(iii) Date of incorporation/
establishment

(BFMAYL/ IR
(|TEEBEAR;
(ili)EMEL L/ BB

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
24 October 2014

BB/ BB/
“E2-METAZTHEA

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
6 March 2015
BB/ BR/

“E-RE=ARA

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
13 March 2015

B8/ BH/
“Z-nFE=AT=H

Hong Kong / Hong Kong /
19 October 2009

BB/ BB/
“Z2ENETATAA

PRC / PRC / 19 May 2005

e/ B/
“EZRERATNA

United States / United States /
16 May 2016

X8/ %8/
“E-NERATHRAH

ARA SRR

14 KB DT (F)

Issued and
paid-up
capital/

registered

capital

HK$2
2B

HK$2

2B

HK$2

2T

HK$10,000
10,000 T

HK$30,000,000

30,000,000/ 7

US$10
10X

Effective interest

held
RT3IA

as at

AEAEN

BRER

2021
—E-_-F

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

N/A
TER

2020
3

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

Principal activities

ITERE

Property holding

mEER

Property holding

ESE

Property holding
ESIL

Sales of website products

RPUHEEER

Trading of paper products
KmES

Provision of customer
Services

REEFRS
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14 KB A7 (&)
(i) Country of incorporation/
establishment; Issued and
(ii) Principal country of paid-up
operations; capital/
(iii) Date of incorporation/ registered  Effective interest
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held as at Principal activities
()EMBL/ RIER; BERTRMR
(||)I§“5§§m y E"Tﬂﬁﬁﬂ?—:ﬁﬁﬁ
WERARER (iii) FE M ER 3L/ AL B B it fft BB IEXRE
2021 2020
:§:_ g 2% E

Indirectly held (Continued)

BEEE(R)

Shenzhen Zen See PRC/ PRC /9 May 2014 RMB100,000 100% 100%  Provision of information
Information Technology technology support for
Co., Ltd‘ web sales

RSB EENHERAT DE/ hE/ AR®1000007C © 100%  100% AREHEREEARK

“Z-NERANA XE

Dongguan ZenSee Product ~ PRC/PRC/ RMB4,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of laboratory
Testing Limited? 9 February 2010 testing services

RETERERBAEGR  HE/ RE/ ARE 100%  100% REERZHARE
AT —“Z-TE-ANA 4,000,0007C

Q P Holdings (Vietnam) BVI/ Hong Kong / USD50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited? 10 September 2020

RERBRES/BE/ 5000027 |« 100%  100% RERRK
“Z2CZEARTA

Q P Trading (Vietnam) Vietnam / Vietnam / VND300,000,000 100% 100% Trading of paper products

Company Limited* 16 January 2020
W/ e/ 300,000,000 ~ 100%  100% #MRESH
“E2-ZE-A1RH BB

Q P Technology Development Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000 100% N/A  Information Technology

Limited 20 May 2021

EERRERARAT E\‘E/a/a/_y_ ERAZT 10,0008 1T 100% TER AARR

makeplayingcards.com Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000 100% N/A  Sales of website products
Limited? 20 September 2021 e
E#/F%/-2-—FAB-tE 1000087 | 100% AR RELEEER
createjigsawpuzzles.com Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000 100% N/A  Sales of website products
Limited? 20 September 2021 o o o
BA/BB/ZF--FNAZTR  10000E7L = 100% FER RBUEEER
boardgamesmaker.com Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$10,000 100% N/A  Sales of website products
Limited? 20 September 2021

EE/ER/ZE--FnA-TH 100008 100% 7TER REEBEESR
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14 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) Country of incorporation/

establishment;
(ii) Principal country of
operations;

Issued and
paid-up
capital/

Name of subsidiary

MEARAR

(iii) Date of incorporation/
establishment

registered
capital
BRARMAR
Rx/
dfEX

()AL RYER;
(TELEEX,
(iii) s AL/ A L B A

Billion Space Development  Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$2
~ Limited B 24 October 2014 e
EEZRARAR BB/B8/_B-NETAZTN 2AT
=t
Brighten Wish Limited Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$2
13 March 2015 e
EERRAA B8/EB/_E-REZA1Z 28T
H
Goldenway Fortune Limited ~ Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$2
‘ 3 March 2015 e
SHERERAR BA/B%/-5-1E=A=H 2T
Mega Access Capital Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$2
Resources Limited 16 March 2015 e
EBELBRAT BB/EB/_E-REZRtX 28T
H
Universe Oriental Enterprise  Hong Kong / Hong Kong / HK$2
Limited 16 March 2015 e
BRRATCRERAT BB/BR/_E-RFZATA 2RT
=t
Q P TRADING ASIA PTE. Singapore / Singapore / Singapore
LTD# 26 April 2021 dollars 100
WK/ MK/ ZBZ—FMA  100F MK T
iy =
Q P Enterprise (Vietnam) Vietnam / Vietnam / VND67,980,000,000
Company Limited* 7 December 2021 -
W/ BE/—E % 679800000004 &
TZAtH
Notes:

These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises
registered in the PRC.

These are wholly-domestic owned enterprises under the PRC
law.

The English translation of the names of the companies and the
types of legal entity types are for reference only. The official

names/types are in Chinese.

The Chinese name of these companies are not avaliable.

ARA SRR

14 KB D7 (F&)

Effective interest

-2

—=

held as at

AL

R

2021

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

# iz

1.

Principal activities

IERE

Ex
2020

i—FF—FF
— E-=
—_T —T

N/A
@R

Property holding

N/A
ayeti

Property holding

MEER

N/A
@R
N/A
ayeti

Property holding
EZ

Property holding

N/A
@R

Wholesale of paper and
paper products, and
packaging materials

B%R- fmkak
ME B %

N/A

Manufacturing and trading

of paper products
BRmRERES

T F
ZEIEBE AR TR R EEMA L
2NER

Al DR P BOA 2

& /N

’ %Z S AN

B/ AR
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15

Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery equipment  vehicles i progress
BF HENEZE BER#E BRERE hE fRIR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T ThL Thn Thr
At 1 January 2020 R-E-%E-F-5
Cost B 163,383 84,830 425,305 86,339 11,834 - 770,691
Accumulated depreciation  ZifHTE (39,603) (35,259) (299,459) (40662 (11,729) - (426,706)
Net book amount REFE 123,780 49,51 126,862 44677 106 - 343,985
Year ended HE-E-EF
31 December 2020 +ZB=1-A
‘ \&EEI
Opening net book amount ~ E4IRAF(E 123780 49,571 125,852 44,677 105 - 343,985
Additions AE 12,920 9,529 25,607 4,312 1,367 12,375 66,110
Disposals : - - (539) (85) - - (623)
Depreciation (Votz &) (7,642) (9,069) (19,431) 18,325) (170 — (463
Exchange realignment 5,532 3439 6,295 2,281 15 73 18,247
Closing net book amount X & % & 134,500 53470 137,785 42,810 1317 13110 383,082
At31December2020  R-E-FEfZf
=t-A
Cost KA 184,632 100,762 479,907 94,134 12,313 13,110 884,858
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HTE (60,042) (47,29 (342,12) 61324 (10,99 - 01,778
Net book amount FHFE 134,590 53470 137,785 42810 1317 13,110 383,082
Year ended
31 December 2021
Opening net book amount 134,590 53,470 137,785 42,810 1,317 13,110 383,082
Additions 26,211 7,815 38,012 8,893 43 1,744 82,718
Disposals - - (1,455) (87) - - (1,542)
Depreciation (Note 6) (8,820) (9,599) (23,531) (8,629) (285) - (50,858)
Exchange realignment 2,228 1,375 3,350 921 6 386 8,212
Closing net book amount 154,209 53,061 154,221 43,920 1,081 15,240 421,732
At31December2021 ~ R-E=-%
+ZA=1-H
Cost KA 214,374 102,320 498,614 102,700 12,453 15240 945,701
Accumulated depreciation  Z3rHTE (60,165) (49,259) (344,393) (58,780)  (11,372) - (523,969)
Net book amount REFE 154,209 53,061 154,221 43,920 1,081 15,240 421,732
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$27,071,000
and HK$22,593,000 have been charged in “Cost
of sales”, and approximately HK$23,787,000 and
HK$22,044,000 have been charged in “Administrative
expenses” for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 respectively.

Buildings with a net carrying amount of approximately
HK$33,403,000 and HK$35,020,000 were pledged
as collateral for the banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 29) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
respectively.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, formal real estate
ownership certificates have not been obtained for
certain of the Group’s properties with total carrying
value of approximately HK$2,171,000 and HK$2,402,000
respectively. The Group has taken remedial actions
and is in the process of obtaining the necessary real
estate ownership certificates. In the opinion of the
directors, the absence of formal title to these real estate
ownership certificates is not an indicator for impairment
in the value of these properties as the Group has paid
the full purchase consideration for these buildings and
the probability of being evicted on the ground of an
absence of formal title is remote.

ARA SRR MR

156 W% BEKRE(E

@i_;zfﬁ&_7_$¢+:ﬂ
=+—BIEFE ' »5%27,071,000
# Jr }22,593,000/% 7T B T & B
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23,787,0007% JT [ 22,044,000 7T HY
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8 ® ¥ (B #%33,403,000% 7T &
35,020,000;‘% THEFEERBER
AEEBHIR-ZE-_—FR_T—
TFE+ A=+ HEERNETE
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RZEBEZ—FR_ZF_ZFTF+
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KRE TR R MI T
16 SHARE CAPITAL 16 KA
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
R-ZB--F R-T-TF R-ZB--F N-ZT-TF
T=A +=A +=A
=+—-H Er=f =+—H
Number
of shares of shares HK$’000 HK$’000
ReEE BHEE TET FAT
Authorised: EE
At beginning and end of the R E# K E K
year 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 20,000 20,000

Issued and fully paid: BETRBE:

At beginning of the year F4) 532,000,000 77,400 5,320 1
Paid up of capital BEWER - 77,400 - 1
Capitalisation issue (Note a) Bt 347 (#7ita) — 398,845,200 - 3,988
New issue of shares from 2 IRBEEMNFETRM

Global Offering (Note b) (B £b) - 133,000,000 - 1,330

At end of the year REXR 532,000,000 532,000,000 5,320 5,320

Notes: B iz -

a. Pursuant to a written resolution of the then Shareholders, a a. BEREIRRNEBDRER BE
total of 398,845,200 shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and AARRHR ETBEB Emal &%
issued at par value to the Shareholders immediately before 398,845,2000% & i% M {50.017% T &9 f%
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Listing Date by way MEERBEBERZERETTITRE 7
of capitalisation of HK$3,988,452 from the Company’s share BEARG R ETBHORKRN ®ER
premium account on the Listing Date. 3,088,452 B LB FE A K ©

b. On the Listing Date, 133,000,000 new shares were issued at a b. RETBEH  XRARBEBERHF
price of HK$1.18 per share in connection with the Company’s ARARER LTI AFRR1.187 TE
listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong %% 17133,000,000 A% ¥ f% °
Limited.
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KRB MR M

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTY 17 REYZE

As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+—H

2021

—EC-—F
HK$’000
TERT

2020
—E-FF
HK$’000
FH& T

Non-current assets — at fair value ¥ RBEE — R A FE

At beginning of the year R 7] 2,135 2,135
Fair value changes N {EE — —
At end of the year REXR 2,135 2,135

Investment property is situated in Hong Kong and
rented out under operating leases. Amounts recognised
in profit and loss for investment property are as follows:

REMEMRERE  RLELEHEHH
HeMREMENEZINERNE
EER N

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-BLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAT

Rental income recognised in 7O B T A TE 5B A
other income HEWKA 50 49
Direct operating expenses BEEEERX (6) 6)
44 43

The directors performed a valuation of the investment
property under the market comparable approach using
the current market price and adjusting for factors
regarding the location and size of the property to
determine the fair value as at 31 December 2021 and
2020. No change in fair value of investment property
was recognised for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

The fair value measurement is categorised in Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy, and there were no transfers
between level 1, 2 and 3 during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

The key inputs as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are
average market price of similar investment properties
after adjusting for age, location, condition and
surrounding facility. The higher the market price, the
higher the fair value.

EEREMBULRSE  FRE
AMEREBZYEMBERREN
AERZEHKEMEETHE N
EER-_Z_—FRk-_FT_FTF+=
A=+—HHMAFE HE-_ZT—_—
FR_EBE_ZEF+_A=F+—HLHF
B REMENLATFELEEZL -

NFEFEFARAFEERANE =
BH BERNEBEE_ZT-_—FEK-_FT—
TFE+-_A=t+—HItFE F—&E
F_ERFE=ZE 2RI EmEHE -

RZEBE-_—FR-_F_FTF+_A4
—+—BMNEEEHAEIE S ER
NE HKAKBAERBELAER
MEUEEDENFHYmE - mE
e AFEBS -
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

HE
HK$'000

BREE

Golf club
Membership  Computer

(Note) software

ELES

LS £

(# ) LS

HK$'000 HK$'000

T

Year ended 31 December BE-Z-ZF+ZH

THT TET

2020 =t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount i NEHFE 24,280 943 591 25,814
Additions NE = - 1,256 1,256
Amortisation (Note 8) B35 (f7 28) - = (400) (400)
Exchange realignment X EE 1,674 — 63 1,737
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 25,954 943 1,510 28,407
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EE£+ZH
=t+-H
Cost B < 25,954 943 2,291 29,188
Accumulated amortisation LG 4 - - (781) (781)
Net book amount RHFE 25,954 943 1,510 28,407
Year ended 31 December BZ-Z-_-§1+ZH
2021 =t+-HILEE
Opening net book amount FUEREFE 25,954 943 1,510 28,407
Additions NE - - 2,217 2,217
Amortisation (Note 8) B8 - — (618) (618)
Exchange realignment [ i A8 710 - 30 740
Closing net book amount FREMFE 26,664 943 3,139 30,746
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-%5+Z8
=+-H

Cost B A 26,664 943 4,558 32,165
Accumulated amortisation 2t E - - (1,419) (1,419)
Net book amount RHEFE 26,664 943 3,139 30,746

Note: Golf club membership is stated at historical cost. The golf
club membership has an indefinite life which is not subject to
amortisation and is tested annually for impairment and applied
fair value less costs to sell when determining its recoverable
amounts. During the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, no impairment was made in relation to the golf club
membership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation expenses relating to computer software
of approximately HK$618,000 and HK$400,000 have
been charged in “Administrative expenses” for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Goodwill arose from the purchase of Taunus Printing
(Heshan) Company Limited (“TPC”) from certain third
parties during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Goodwill arising from acquisition is allocated to the
relevant CGU, composed of Q P Enterprises Limited
and TPC, which are expected to benefit from the
business combination. Management reviews annually
whether the carrying amount of a CGU is higher than
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of a
CGU is determined based on a value-in-use calculation
with key parameters including revenue growth rate
and gross profit margin. The calculation uses pre-
tax cash flow projection based on five-year financial
budget approved by management using the estimated
growth rate of the relevant CGU, taking into account
the Group’s overall growth rate of 3% and gross profit
margin of 25%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated assuming a terminal growth rate of
3% and no material change in the existing scope of
business, business environment and market conditions.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
15% and management believes it reflects specific risks
relating to the segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of the key assumptions would not result
in an impairment provision of goodwill. There was no
impairment provision for intangible assets during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

ARA SRR MR

8 BMEEE(E)
@ﬁ_;:—iﬁ_z_%$+:H
=+—BILFE 5 54618,000%
7T %400,0007% 7T #) 5 B #1448 B8
HWRAXERMTTHRBA JFME -

BEBERE_E-N\F+-_A=1+—H
Ltfﬁfkrj%§:F*k_'?3E%,\%§ Z ER (%5
WERRBE(TPC)) -

Wﬁﬁimﬁﬁﬂ EEHEERD

Aﬁ$ mHEBEIR e E S BA(H
ERCEERARIRTIPCARK) - &
EESFRAeELEMONERE
BEREaRAKOEsE REEE
B RESBEHERERAEER
HTEEE HFrZ288F W AT
RERENE - ZdBEFERNE
BESENTFMBEESER -
KAEBAREEESUNMEFEER
WA RAEERNEBBIEREI%
REFMELY% ETTHRAIR S RE
EA - BAAFHRNRERET
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BB EmERMIEE
19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 19 REHESTNWEMIA
CATEGORY
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8”
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost 122 8 5H K AN B BR &Y
TREE
— Trade receivables — B EIKER 241,139 233,248
— Deposits, prepayments and other —EE - TEH T/\ 15&
receivables (excluding prepayments H {th & W I8
and VAT receivables) (T BiEE ﬁ A K
FE U 2 B B 30,219 41,629
— Cash and cash equivalents —BekRaFE fﬁ ) 158,781 236,670
Financial assets at fair value through ERAFEGFABERZD
profit or loss SEEE
— Derivative financial instruments — TS T A 9,497 3,866
439,636 515,413
Financial liabilities stHas
Other financial liabilities at amortised 12 8 5 K AR B BR &Y
cost HEthemaEi
— Trade payables — B R FIA 130,779 122,423
— Accruals, provisions and other — EFER  BEREM
payables (excluding accrued staff R RIB(TBIEE
costs, other taxes payables and FFEIAA - EfufE
provision for social insurance and NEHBEERtERE R
housing provident fund) FELAESEME) 38,439 51,138
— Borrowings — B 84,439 87,536
— Lease liabilities — HE&E 4,478 5,407
258,135 266,504
20 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20 FRAREE
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As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+—8H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T T
Land + i 140,490 115,692
Properties ) 2% 4,700 5,580
Motor vehicles RE 324 858
145,514 122,130
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20 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 20 FHAEEE(E)

Motor
Land Properties vehicles Total

T ES nE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr  TER TR TR

Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ-E-E&5+_A

=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FVREFE 114,633 4,490 1,636 120,759
Additions NE = 4,403 - 4,403
Remeasurement EHIE — 150 — 150
Amortisation (Note 8) B (h s (2,602) (3,425) (778) (6,805)
Disposal & - (220) = (220)
Exchange realignment fE o5 & 3,661 182 - 3,843
Closing net book amount FREMFE 115,692 5,580 858 122,130
At 31 December 2020 R=-ZZB-2%+=A

=t+-H
Cost BN 125,143 13,319 3,894 142,356
Accumulated amortisation BT H (9,451) (7,739) (3,036) (20,226)
Net book amount REEE 115,692 5,580 858 122,130

Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ-E-—-%£+-8

=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount EVEREFE 115,692 5,580 858 122,130
Additions NE 26,211 2,635 - 28,846
Amortisation (Note 8) B3H (28 (2,938) (3,588) (534) (7,060)
Exchange realignment [E 5 52 1,525 73 - 1,598
Closing net book amount FREBFE 140,490 4,700 324 145,514
At 31 December 2021 R-E--%+=A8

=t+-H
Cost X AR 153,045 12,605 3,894 169,544
Accumulated amortisation RiTH (12,555) (7,905) (3,570) (24,030)
Net book amount REFE 140,490 4,700 324 145,514
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20 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 20 FRAEEE(E)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the MeEEmRINRATEHBEESR 2
following amounts relating to leases: B

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Expense relating to short-term lease BHEHBEEENEHE 2
contract (Note 8) M (#1:28) 1,012 484
Amortisation of right-of-use EREEE®EN 7S
assets (Note 8) 7,060 6,805
Interest expenses (included in FERX (GTARE K A)
finance cost) (Note 10) (Htat10) 124 144
21 INVENTORIES 21 58
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Raw materials R 41 33,761 36,820
Work in progress £ 2 i 28,815 30,909
Finished goods X & 53,969 25,951
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 116,545 93,680
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses HEe— s -—— 4R -—_FT-—FF+-H
and included in “cost of sales” amounted to =+ —BItEE FERAERZ A
HK$503,387,000 and HK$429,322,000 for the years B AT ER AL DR
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 respectively. 5503,387,000/% 7T & 429,322,0005%
I o
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iR ISR M aE
21 INVENTORIES (Continued) 21 &8 (#E)
The carrying amount of inventories is stated net of FENREELHIRFETFE R
provision for inventory obsolescences of HK$16,796,000 #16,796,0008 (= T = T F:
(2020: HK$20,334,000). 20,334,000 7T) 1% 2 51] °

As at 31 December

Rt+t=ZA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —EFTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
Movement of inventory provision FEREE
As at 1 January Rn—H—H 20,334 17,655
(Reversal of)/provision for the year FA(BLE),#E
(Note 8) (K1 it8) (4,010) 1,248
Translation adjustment M 5, 58 B 472 1,431
As at 31 December Rt=—A=+—H° 16,796 20,334
22 TRADE RECEIVABLES 22 EF WA
As at 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2021 2020
—B--F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TAET
Trade receivables EE )R ¢ e 241,139 233,248
Trade receivables represent goods sold to third parties. oW RBERAE=-THEHENE
The credit terms granted by the Group are generally B o AREFBREHNEZEEH —HBNTE
ranging from 30 to 90 days. 30FE90K o
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22 E5EWREGR)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis
of the trade receivables, based on invoice date, were as
follows:

RZE—_—FR_FT_FTF+_A4
—t+t— B RBZEHHIENES
JEUWRTERERE AT T ¢

As at 31 December

R+=-ZB=+—8H

2021 2020
—E-—£F

HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FAT
Within 30 days 30K AR 98,619 99,497
31-60 days 31E60K 87,256 74,064
61-90 days 61E90KX 38,311 32,854
Over 90 days 90K M £ 16,953 26,833
241,139 233,248

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of the trade receivables. The
Group does not hold any collateral as security.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. The Group considers
the credit risk characteristics and the days past due to
measure the expected credit losses. During the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the expected
losses for customers of sales of goods are minimal,
given there is no history of significant defaults from
customers and no adverse change is anticipated
in the future business environment. No provision
for impairment of trade receivables has been made
throughout the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate
their fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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22 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group’s trade receivables were denominated in the
following currencies:

ARA SRR

22 E5EWARIEA(E)

2 55 (81 0 B 5) 8 M #OB T A T 51
o

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHE T FA T
Usb ETT 122,511 139,042
HKD BT 111,566 88,844
RMB AR ¥ 6,854 5,156
EUR BX 7T 125 175
Others Hib 83 31
241,139 233,248

23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

M

1’2&% CENREREMER

As at 31 December

R+=—H=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T F& T
Prepayments AN 38,729 6,126
Other receivables H fih fE Yo X IB 6,762 5,889
Rental and other deposits HekEMmiZe 23,457 35,740
VAT receivables JE Lt 38 B AR 16,052 21,176
85,000 68,931
Less: Non-current portion (Note) B FEBNERER > (K i) (34,473) (33,842)
Current portion Bl ER &8 5 50,527 35,089

Note: Included in the non-current portion deposits and prepayment
is a deposit paid in respect of acquisition of a subsidiary of
HK$nil (2020: HK$20,000,000).

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and
other receivables of the Group approximate their fair
values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

et FERNHBHZRE REMFELERK
B-RHNBRARIANZRST ST (=
T — =4 : 20,000,000 T )

RZE-_—FR_FT_FTF+_A4
=t+—H AXEEWMNEE BEXK
EHREMERZENEREREERD
FEHEE -
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23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Their recoverability was assessed with reference to the
credit status of each counterparty, and no expected
credit loss has been made.

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other
receivables were denominated in the following
currencies:

rEENES -
WHRIRTIA T B ®EHE

23 % EARARHMER

A (&)
EA G2 R RS & 01
WoRMEFE - BYBMBEREEEHAE -

A FRIR N H

As at 31 December

R+=-—H=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F bl Sl ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBxT FE T
RMB AR 42,315 42 572
HKD BT 30,876 26,171
VND i E 11,341 —
Usb ETT 274 105
Others HAh 194 83
85,000 68,931
24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 24 fTEE€MIA
INSTRUMENTS
2021 2020
—B=-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT F& T
Forward foreign exchange BEHIIEEN
contracts
As at 1 January Rn—HA—H 3,866 —
Fair value gain on derivative financial MTEEMIANRTERK
instruments (Note 6) @ (B it6) 13,655 3,866
Settlement of derivative financial MTEESMTHELE
instruments (8,024) —
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 9,497 3,866

The total notional principal amounts of the outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31
December 2021 were US$46,000,000 (approximately
HK$358,800,000) (2020: US$15,000,000 (approximately
HK$117,000,000)).
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KRB MR M

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 HERBEEEEY
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+-—8H
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T 7T
Short-term bank deposits G HRIR 1717 X 7,347 46,484
Cash on hand FHEBEE 300 411
Cash at bank F1TR % 151,134 189,775
Total cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEYERE 158,781 236,670
The carrying amounts of short-term bank deposits, EHRTER  FEREeRRTE
cash on hand and cash at bank are denominated in the S ZHREAEDARNYEEBEE:

following currencies:

As at 31 December

R+=-A=+—A”
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FE T
UsD ETT 64,544 38,791
HKD & 7T 62,544 131,838
RMB AR 30,042 64,751
Others H A 1,651 1,290
158,781 236,670
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26 SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES 26 RO RERRHE

Share premium of the Company is mainly attributable
to the completion of the reorganisation and issuance of
ordinary shares. Reserves during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 comprised of capital reserve,
statutory reserve, translation reserve and retained
earnings.

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations
applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries established
and operated in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required
to make appropriation from profit after tax (after
offsetting prior years’ losses) to statutory reserve. The
PRC entities are required to transfer at least 10% of
its net profit as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to their statutory reserve. The
appropriations to the statutory reserve are required until
the balance reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset
prior year losses or be utilised for issuance of bonus
shares. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are restricted
in their ability to transfer a portion of their reserve either
in the form of dividends, loans or advances.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
reserves arising from the reorganisation for the purpose
of the Listing.

Retained earnings during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 represents the deficits/equities of the
operating companies after elimination of inter-company
transactions and balances. The movements in retained
earnings during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 mainly comprised of profit for the year and
dividends paid during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020. Please see Note 13 for more detail on
the dividends.
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27 TRADE PAYABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR Bk MR

27 EZENFE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—AH
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Trade payables B 5 N 3R 130,779 122,423
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis RZEZ—FR-ZTTF+=AH
of the trade payables, based on invoice date, were as =t+—HB REZAHHFENES

follows:

FER FRIRE BR e AT EAE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2021 2020
—_E_—%F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FEX FET
Within 30 days 30KARA 63,799 63,335
31-60 days 31£260X 45,039 33,086
61-90 days 61£290K 15,870 17,288
Over 90 days 90K KA F 6,071 8,714
130,779 122,423
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate RZEZ—FRZFE-ZTF+=A
their fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. =+t—HB BZENRENEARE

HERNFEEE -

The Group’s trade payables were denominated in the AEBEMESRNFKBBIDUNTIE

following currencies:

5t

As at 31 December

R+=-—H=+—H
2020
HK$000 HK$ 000
FHBxT F& T
RMB AR 102,169 94,131
HKD B JT 23,688 21,380
UsD X TT 3,747 6,684
Others E b 1,175 228
130,779 122,423
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28 ACCRUALS, PROVISIONS AND OTHER 28 E:t&EH - BERHMENS

PAYABLES ;18
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F& T
Accrued staff costs JEEFEB IR A 48,044 42,417
Accrued expenses FEETRAX 16,231 6,390
Other taxes payables HAth fE S B 0B 10,202 1,725
Provision for social insurance and ?i@ﬁ MEERE
housing provident fund NG iﬁfé = 28,180 30,670
VAT payables e 18 8 8 B - 10
Payables for properties, plants and R/ ER f)ﬁ
equipment A% f%fﬁ - 16,207
Other payables H A B S R 22,208 28,541
124,865 125,960
The carrying amounts of accruals, provisions and RNR_E_—FRZFZFTF+A
other payables approximate their fair values as at 31 = T—HB EFER BEKEAM

December 2021 and 2020. JER BRI ERmEEEAFFEREE -

AEBWNEFTER BENEME

The Group’s accruals, provisions and other payables
were denominated in the following currencies: NFIBTIATYE ¥ EHE -

As at 31 December

R+=—H=+—8H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT T
RMB AR 86,394 88,270
HKD T 26,898 31,910
UsD ETT 11,470 5,648
EUR B 7T 95 108
Others H1th 8 24
124,865 125,960
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29 BORROWINGS

ARA SRR

29 &

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—8H

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T 7T

Bank borrowings RITER 84,439 87,536
Less: amounts due on demand and/or & : A B BEIE T IRIE
within one year shown under current Bk K/ HR—FRE

liabilities HA ) 2K 18 (84,439) (80,080)

Non-current portion JE BN HA 26 > - 7,456

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, borrowings of
approximately HK$76,980,000 and HK$24,773,000,
respectively, are subject to repayable on demand
clause.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s
borrowings were repayable as follows:

RZE-_—FR T -_FTF+_A4
=+ —HMEF D R4 576,980,000
7 7T 24,773,000 7T 0 AR E K
EEFERKLR -

R-_E_—FR_ZT_TF+_A
=t—B AEEEXNEFHM
I

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2021 2020
—B-—-F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FA7T
Within 1 year —F PR 61,363 58,545
Between 1 and 2 years —EWE 5,914 10,700
Between 2 and 5 years WERF 12,023 9,773
Over 5 years FE 5,139 8,518
84,439 87,536

The above amounts due are based on the respective
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on

demand clause.

bt B HA 5RO0R Th AR IR

& 5K 1 &% P &K

EHFEXAHFAFAE LEEZE

EAATIR 2K B E R R
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KRB MR M

29 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The effective interest rates of the above loans (per
annum) as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:

29 fa (&)
LERERR T —FR-FT_F
F+-A=+—BNEREFEMNT :

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2021

_7_

e

Bank borrowings RITER

— {8 A

FEMERMI%E

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the borrowings are
pledged by certain assets with carrying values shown
below:

1-month HIBOR

1-month/3-month
HIBOR plus 1%-2%
—@A/=@A
BABRITEE
FEMEIM%ZE2%

plus 1%-2%
BEBRITRZE
2%

R-B_—FR_ZF_FTF+_H
=t+—8B BREETEEFLR

HEREES] R0

— = — =&
=

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 57,845 59,112
Property, plant and equipment I 33,403 35,020
91,248 94,132
The carrying amounts of borrowings of the Group RZEZ—FRZFE-ZFTF+=A
approximate their fair values as at 31 December 2021 =+—B AEEERNRAEHA
and 2020. HAFEEE

The Group’s borrowings were denominated in HKD.

30 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had aggregate
banking facilities of approximately HK$197,026,000
(2020: HK$226,333,000) for overdrafts, loans, letter of
credit and trade financing. Unused facilities as at the
same date amounted to approximately HK$102,993,000
(2020: HK$142,919,000). These facilities were secured
by pledges over the Group’s right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment as set out in Note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

31 LEASE LIABILITIES

31 HEE®E

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021 240210]
—E-—F —T_ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET A&7
Within one year —F UK 2,839 3,376
Within a period of more than one year HiREBBE—F BB B

but not exceeding two years R 1,638 1,516

Within a period of more than two years HifREBBEMF - (BT B
but not exceeding five years R 101 515

4,478 5,407
Less : Amount due for settlement with & : SR EBN BEE T /R12
12 months shown under current & A 7 2| HA 7 5838
liabilities (2,839) (3,376)

Amount due for settlement after 12
months shown under non-current

FERBABIE T R121E
A& B 88 508

liabilities

1,639 2,031

The Group leases various properties to operate its
businesses and these lease liabilities were measured
at net present value of the lease payments during the
lease terms that are not yet paid. No extension option
and no residual value guarantee are included in such
property and equipment leases across the Group.

The total cash outflows for lease payment including
lease liabilities and interest expenses on leases, for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were
HK$3,755,000 and HK$3,478,000 respectively.

The total cash outflows for payments associated with
short-term lease contract for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 were HK$1,012,000 and
HK$484,000 respectively.

AEEHEZEMEUNEEER
HZEsHEREREAMARINHA
ERENEREFRFE - BHER
BEABREEERMEFAALTEE
HEMELRREHE -

HEREMBR e REEERES
E_T_—HR-_FT_FTF+_A
Tt HIFENHEHEEAEAHEE
A EBEFZ 258l A&3755000% T &
3,478,000/ JT, °

BE-_S-_ Gk F+=
A=+ BLHFEHEHBEED
EBZANZNBEREAED R A
1,012,000 JT }2484,0005 JT °
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iR e SRR MR

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred

income tax liabilities are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets to be

32 IEEFTBH
EEFMSHREERELEMSHERE
BT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

B E121E A & # T W = &

2021

—2_—F

— g

HK$’000

FTRERT

2020
—E-ZF

HK$’000
TET

recovered after more than 12 months RIEFTSIHEE 6,466 7,274
Deferred income tax assets to be 1218 A A # F 4 = #Y
recovered within 12 months RIEMEHEE 2,401 1,116
8,867 8,390
Deferred income tax liabilities to be f @128 A& 45 7 U= &9
recovered after more than 12 months BEEMEHAE (9,404) (16,062)
Deferred income tax liabilities to be 1218 A A #% T Y e #Y
recovered within 12 months BELEFBRARE (1,030) (536)
(10,434) (16,598)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net EREMEHAaE R (1,567) (8,208)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account

is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H

2021 2020

—B--F —T-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAT

At 1 January R—HA—8 (8,208) (6,820)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss FA (BB AE) B

(Note 11) (Hrat11) 6,778 (859)

Translation adjustment PE 5 & (137) (529)

Deferred income tax liabilities BELEFSHAE (1,567) (8,208)
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is

as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

Property,
plant and
equipment

0
R ET
HK$'000
A7

iR Bk MR

32 JE L Fr 15 B ()

BEEMSHEERABEREEZEZ
T FERZEZEFFHA=1+—H
FFE(WEEZERERTER T
AAERAEE) MBI T

ELEREHERE
Provision
for social
insurance
and housing
Inventory  provident
provision fund

HERBR

EELRE
FERE 4 At Az
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR BT TER TER

Balances at 1 January 2020 RIZZZF-A-HNEH 869 5,009 5,573 3,341 14,792
(Charged)/credited to (Mka)/FAB%
profit or loss (61) (1,979 (292) 29 (2,303)
Translation adjustment EHAE 2 207 379 233 841
Balances at 31 December 2020 R=E-FF+-A=+—-AEK
and 1 January 2021 “E-F-A-BMEH 810 3,257 5,660 3,603 13,330
Credited/(charged) to A/ (kA R
orofit or loss 739 (957) (1,311) 1,842 313
Translation adjustment ERHEE (121) 74 134 108 195
Balances at 31 December 2021  R=F-—-E+-A=+—HH
£ 1,428 2,374 4,483 5,553 13,838
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 iE i ff 18 B (&)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFIEHEE

Property,
plant and Land use
equipment right Total

BERRE LHERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TAL

Balances at 1 January 2020 RZEZFF—-H—H

H) 4 84 13,902 7,710 21,612
Credited to profit or loss FABR (1,247) (197) (1,444)
Translation adjustment BE 5 38 2 849 521 1,370
Balances at 31 December 2020 and RZEZTE+=A

1 January 2021 =+-BRZIT-F

—A—HE&EH 13,504 8,034 21,538
Credited to profit or loss AR (2,958) (3,507) (6,465)
Translation adjustment fE 5 A= 167 165 332
Balances at 31 December 2021 \ZF-_—%+ZHA

S+-AMEs 10,713 4,692 15,405
The Group takes into account the probability that AEBREREEMSEREERDE
deductible temporary differences or tax losses carried ZRAMBERFEEEXEEEH
forward can be utilised against future taxable profits on TH [B5 18 ] A3 DA #K 48 oR 2R B ER A i A
recognition of deferred income tax assets. In assessing WAgEM - R BEEMIHEE
recoverability of deferred income tax assets, the Group AU B R - R EE R T AT
takes into account scheduled reversal of deferred SHAGEMNFEIBE KRB RKE
income tax liabilities and projected future taxable profit. u% im Al o
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 32 J i it 8 i (#)

Deferred income tax liabilities ELEMEBBAEE)
(Continued)

The expiration of tax losses carried forward for which HENMBEEBEECRERRELEMRSE
deferred income tax assets are not recognised is as TRéf?)E’J,HH FR AT

follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Tax losses expiring within 5 years RERIHANRIBEEE 16,283 15,396
Tax losses expiring after 5 years hFERFEBHBIEEIER 4,098 2,768
Total @5t 20,381 18,164
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, deferred RZE-_—FR T -_FTF+_H
income tax liabilities have not been recognised =+—HB  WESRAQRTRPED
for the withholding tax that would be payable on WBARE—_TZTN\F—H—H%
the distributable retained earnings amounting to BT EHLSEREEF DB A
approximately HK$245,991,500 and HK$198,934,000, 245,991,500 7T & 198,934,000/% 7T
respectively, of the Company’s subsidiaries in the EARNBENRERELERSHARE -
PRC earned after 1 January 2008. Such amounts RARER: BHZEREBEITE D
are not expected to be distributed to the subsidiaries & T 1E AR BB SN A S /9 B B A
incorporated outside of the PRC in the foreseeable Al °
future.
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RE SR M R
33 CASH GENERATED FROM 33 REFMBHRE
OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BZ+=-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E——F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
Profit before income tax Br BT 15 24 A1 i A 130,832 159,477
Adjustments for: BUATSIBMELAE:
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BER
equipment HEITE 50,858 44,637
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEME - BEK
and equipment LEEE 1,029 484
(Reversal of)/provision for inventory HHEEE (I,
obsolescence BB (4,010) 1,248
Amortisation of right-of-use assets ERAEEE®E 7,060 6,805
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EEE 618 400
Finance income B E WA (1,088) (1,925)
Finance costs RPN 1,725 4,815
Termination of lease contract HIEHESHD - (13)
Reversal of social security insurance AR B
provision (2,516) (1,523)
Fair value gain on derivative financial TEeRITHE
instruments NEEK S (13,655) (3,866)
Unrealised exchange loss REIRE K EE 7,079 14,174
177,932 224,713
Changes in working capital: LEECEE:
Inventories FE (16,327) (3,401)
Trade receivables B 5 UK (7,726) (65,915)
Deposits, prepayments and other Z& ~ A /T)\IE&
receivables At e UK (3,927) (223)
Trade payables B 5 N IR 5,689 24,439
Accruals, provisions and other EtER BER
payables H {th FE 5 5B (922) 7,203
Contract liabilities ABHEaE 1,058 4,740
Cash generated from operations KEFBIR e 155,777 191,556
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33 CASH GENERATED FROM 33 REFMBHRE(E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EiReRenegxkyd HEDWE .-
from disposals of property, plant and equipment WEREEBFIBERE:
comprise:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Net book amount R FE 1,542 623
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HEW ¥ - M E K&
equipment (Note 6) RIBBE N T6) (1,029) (484)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BENM&RE
plant and equipment Fr 15 3k 18 513 139
Decrease in receivable as at 31 RT+—A=+—H8HK
December Ji& U 5K 38 R, - 15,412

Cash flow from disposals of property, RELEWE  BEX
plant and equipment HEHNR2MA 513 15,551
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33 CASH GENERATED FROM 33 REMBRE(E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)
This section sets out an analysis of reconciliation of RTINS FENFEE S
liabilities from financing activities for each of the years FTEEMBEYHERSN:
presented:

Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEAE R # gt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAL TAET

Year ended 31 December HE-E=-—$+—-F
2021 =t+t—HLEE
As at 1 January 2021 R-ZB=-—-%5—-—A—H 5,407 87,536 92,943

Changes from financing cash BEREFRES
flows:

Proceeds from borrowings B X FT 15 5018 - 212,000 212,000
Repayment of borrowings BEBX - (215,309) (215,309)
Interest paid EfF S - (1,389) (1,389)
Capital element of lease rentals B &AL 5

paid (3,631) - (3,631)
Interest element of lease rentals B & 8 X5

paid (124) - (124)
Total changes from financing MERCREZERHE

cash flows (3,755) (4,698) (8,453)
Exchange adjustments/other ER#EE ' HitE R &

non-cash movement #E 67 - 67
Other changes: Hn# 5 :
Increase in lease liabilities from — F A ] 32 % & E B

entering into new leases during & & & 12 A1

the year 2,635 - 2,635
Interest expenses FEFX 124 1,601 1,725
Total other changes Hin S B)4a%8 2,759 1,601 4,360
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZ2-_—-%+=A

Sr=/g 4,478 84,439 88,917
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33 CASH GENERATED FROM 33 KEMBRAE(E)
OPERATIONS (Continued)

Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEAE & = Gt

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
TET TEL TERT

Year ended 31 December BE-_Z_Z5+_-H8
2020 =t+t—HLEFE

As at 1 January 2020 R-ZZE_ZTF—-A—H 4,333 188,287 192,620

Changes from financing cash BEREFRER

flows:
Proceeds from borrowings BERATEZIA = 77,000 77,000
Repayment of borrowings BE1H = (178,699) (178,699)
Interest paid EENEIRSA = (3,723) (3,723)
Capital element of lease rentals TR £ K4S 5o

paid (3,334) . (3,334)
Interest element of lease rentals BT & F| 825

paid (144) - (144)
Total changes from financing MERCREZERE

cash flows (3,478) (105,422) (108,900)

Exchange adjustments/other ERHE ' Hit kR &
non-cash movement 25 (145) = (145)

Other changes: Hfn %5 :
Increase in lease liabilities from  F R &I HHEEHMA
entering into new leases during & & & /1

the year 4,553 — 4,553
Interest expenses M ERX 144 4,671 4,815
Total other changes H & 8 1 28 4,697 4,671 9,368
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTHE+H

=+—H 5,407 87,536 92,943
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34 COMMITMENTS 34 A
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
At 31 December 2021 and 2020 capital RZEZ—FRZEZEF
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred are +=—A=+—H' BiIHEH
as follows: REENEARAZAT:

As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020

—EB-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T FHT

Capital expenditure contracted for B 5] #J1{B & & & £ &

but not yet incurred BARARAX

— Property, plant and equipment — ¥ BEXKHE 25,004 6,392

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) ®REMEAIE

(i) As alessee iy 1EBAMEA
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the RZEZ—FRZF_F
Group had future aggregate minimum lease F+ZA=1T—"H K&
payments under non-cancellable operating ERTAIHELEHET
leases in respect of office premises, factory AW AME  BEDE
premises and equipments as follows: R R R &K

ERBABNOT

As at 31 December
R+t=ZBA=+—H
2021 2020

—EZ—F —EEF

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F& T

No later than one year —F R 12 31
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34 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 34 AIE(E)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) ®REMEEAE (&)

(Continued)

(i) As alessor iy EARLMEA
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the RZEZ—FRZFE=F
Group’s had future aggregate minimum lease F+ZA=1+—H &K
receipts under non-cancellable operating ERTAHEECEHRET
leases in respect of investment property are LI E W) WA oK 2K &%
as follows: EHEREBELENOT

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H

2021 2020

—B-—-F —ZT-FTH

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FHET

No later than one year —F R 34 34

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 ARG

For the purposes of this report, parties are considered BLAImEMST - 0 —F 7] B # =k
to be related to the Group if the party has the ability, YRS BN REERK N
directly or indirectly, to exercise significant influence BEATEN AR THRBEARE
over the Group in making financial and operating EEREE - BT A REARE
decisions. Related parties may be individuals (being EEBRAE FEBRRE HEF
members of key management personnel, significant KRB B) M B - T8
shareholders and/or their close family members) or RRASEEE S (RSB AR

BAERTENER X HFA=E
HIE BT AR BB R o

other entities and include entities which are under the
significant influence of related parties of the Group
where those parties are individuals. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control.
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

35 B A X5 (&)

The directors are of the view that the following EERAE UTHEA & RN
individuals and companies were related parties that E_T - —FRER-_FTF ¢+ A
had transactions or balances with the Group during the ST RALEFEHREASEEETRS
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020: ok 8RS A5 BR Y A B 5
Name of related parties Relationship with the Company/Group
BB MEE8 BAQT /EAEBENER
Big Elegant Limited Controlled by two of the executive directors of the Company
EERRAA ERAVNSI VIR K- =gty vl
Hongkong Shine Tak Controlled by one of the executive directors of the Company
Foundation Association
Limited
EREREAsgARAA HARRAIH) —BHNITES P ZEH
Other than those transactions and balances disclosed ﬂ% REEHEMEMMBENRS R
elsewhere in this report, the following transactions were RN AT AR5 Ty EL A B 5 iR &
carried out with related parties during the years ended ?:2:* FR_ZE-_ZTF+=A
31 December 2021 and 2020: = t+—HILEFEET:

(@) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions were undertaken by the
Group with related parties during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020:

(@) BBARZ
AT R 5 )5 i 7K £ 8 54 B B 05
REBEE-_T-_—Fk=
FH-A=1t—HIFEZ#&

= — 5=
= =

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+T—-HLEE

2021 2A0740)
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Rental payment to: 1 & H
— Big Elegant Limited — ﬁE%ﬁBﬁ 1,140 1,140
Donation to: BRF
— Hongkong Shine Tak - BESEE2EER
Foundation Association NG|
Limited 200 150
The amounts shown on the above table represent ERFREEREBE_ZT ——

the cash amounts paid to the related parties
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties
(Continued)

On 1 September 2019, the Group entered into
a lease with Big Elegant Limited in respect of a
property in Hong Kong with a lease term from 1
September 2019 to 31 December 2021. At the
commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
of HK$2,587,000. As at 31 December 2021, the
lease liability balance under this lease amounted
to HK$nil (2020: HK$1,127,000).

On 2 December 2021, the Group entered into
a lease with Big Elegant Limited in respect of a
property in Hong Kong with a lease term from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2023. At the
commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
of HK$2,063,000. As at 31 December 2021, the
lease liability balance under this lease amounted
to HK$2,063,000.

Such operating lease payment to the related party
has been classified and presented as depreciation
of the right-of-use assets and interest expense
accrued over the lease liabilities due to the
adoption of HKFRS 16.

The above transaction with a related party was
conducted in the ordinary course of the business
of the Group based on the terms mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors of the
Group. The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is disclosed in
Note 9.

ARA SRR MR

35 B A X5 (&)

(a)

(b) =

BBL XS (&)

RZE—hAhFNLA—B &&
EHEEERARGRE—EE D
MEITT—BAE Ak =
TE—hFLhE—BE-_ZT_——
F+-_A=+-—-B -RHEEH
MAH AEERRBERAESL
ZE= N E 8 &2,587,000% T °
R-_ZE_—F+-_A=+—H"

ZHEBE ITHWHEAGELEH® A
ZET(ZE=-FF 1,127,000
/%71:)

RZZEZ—F+H=ZH K&
BEHGEEBRARR® —BEEH B

METY—BHEE HAHdA—
T - _—_F#—fA—HE_T_-_=
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BB KREBEBEREAES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 AARMBEMRREREE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BB R
COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the RN B AR R R
Company
As at 31 December
R+=-—H=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBxT F& T
Assets BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RN—HEHEBARIRKRE 3,763 3,763
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment TR FRIB 151 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Y& i B A &) ZL I8 172,076 110,546
Cash and cash equivalents HekIREEEY 73,933 72,258
Total assets EE®#E 249,923 186,567
Equity and liabilities ExRkEasE
Equity attributable to ANE SRR EM,
equity holders of the fE =
Company
Share capital % 25 16 5,320 5,320
Share premium & 1% B 139,593 139,593
Reserves 1 2,686 3,206
Total equity EEEEHE 147,599 148,119
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE @] 102,324 38,433
Accruals e E - 15
Total liabilities EEHEE 102,324 38,448
Total equity and liabilities ®EZEREEHEE 249,923 186,567
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB MR M

36 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 AATHMBMRERREE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE #ExR(E)
COMPANY (Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company AAFRERE X

Share Share
capital Premium
R & 17 % B
HK$'000
TAET

Retained
earnings Total
RE & A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

HK$'000
T

Balances at 1 January 2020 R=—ZE_Z & —A
— B &t 1 3,762 (1,319) 0444
Profit for the year F N A - - 63,045 63,045
Paid up of capital BENER 1 (1) - -
Capitalisation issue BEAR{ETT 3,988 (3,988) = =
Issuance of ordinary shares BITEARK 1,330 155,610 — 156,940
Underwriting commissions and 8 $8 {1 & & H A 2517
other issuance costs DN — (15,790) — (15,790)
Dividends paid B AR 2 - . (58,520) (58,520)
5,319 135,831 (58,520 82,630
Balance at 31 December R=-TE-ZTF+=
2020 and 1 January 2021 A=+—-HRZ=%
——f—HF—H®
e 5,320 139,593 3,206 148,119
Profit for the year F N 7 - - 73,960 73,960
Dividends paid BRI’ E - - (74,480) (74,480)
Balances at 31 December R=-ZE=-—%F+=A
2021 =+—HH&&k 5,320 139,593 2,686 147,599
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FINANCIAL | B 7&#5 =&
SUMMARY

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mE¥E

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2017

“T—+F
HK$'000
TET

2018
—T-N\F
HK$'000
TEL

2019
“E-NF
HK$'000
TET

2020
“ZI-%F
HK$'000
T

2021
“EC--F
HK$’000
FHR

Revenue W& 1,079,630 1,162,979 1,193,641 1,232,631 1,389,759
Gross profit e 275,663 282,067 365,558 436,866 430,108
Profit before income tax bR BT 15 B A0 A 96,259 59,152 101,446 159,477 130,832
Income tax expense FEREY (17,370) (8,161) (17,158) (30,129) (11,790)
Profit for the year ERE 78,889 50,991 84,288 129,348 119,042
Profit attributable to equity NG E G ey

holders of the Company 78,889 50,991 84,288 129,348 119,042

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND

LIABILITIES

2017

HK$'000
TR

REEE BEREE

2018

:%3 _/ﬂ\ﬁ
HK$'000
THET

As at 31 December
BET-A=t-HLEE

2019

HK$'000
A7

2020
“E-%F
HK$'000
TEL

2021
“B--F
HK$'000
TR

Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 404,303 547,907 520,633 577,986 643,467
Current assets TRHEE 391,483 392,010 435,627 602,677 576,550
Total assets EE#E 795,786 939,917 956,260 1,180,663 1,220,017
Equity and liabilities ERREE
Non-current liabilities EnBEE 5,438 109,222 100,686 26,085 12,073
Current liabilities REaE 337476 361,229 321,077 370,211 361,630
Total liabilities BfEME 342,914 470,451 421,763 396,296 373,703
Equity attributable to equity ARAERERR

holders of the Company fElh iR 452872 469,466 534,497 784,367 846,314
Total equity and liabilties EaRkaELEE 795,786 939,917 956,260 1,180,663 1,220,017
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